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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 March 2023

The directors of the Company present their staterment to the member together with the audited financial
statements of TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED (the “Company”) for the financial year ended 31 March 2023,

In the opinion of the directors,

a) the financial statements set out on pages 5 to 32 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and the financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1967 and Financial Reperting Standards in Singapore; and

b} at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay
its debts as and when they fall due.
Directors of the Company
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are: -
Madan Mohan Mohanka
Mehul Mohanka
Wadhwani Tarun Pahlaj
Arrangement to enable director to acquire shares or debentures
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to
which the Company is a party, to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
Directors’ interests in shares or debentures
According to the registers required to be kept under Section 164 of the Companies Act 1967, particulars of

interests of directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, in shares or debentures of the Company
are as follows: -

Held in name of director Deemed interest
Number of shares Number of shares
As at As at As at As at
1/4/2022 31/3/2023 1/4/2022 31/3/2023
The holding company
Teqga Industries Limited: -
Madan Mohan Mohanka - - 100,280 100,280

By virtue of Section 7 of the Companies Act, the above director, with his shareholdings in the ultimate holding
company, is deemed to have interests in the Company and all its related companies.



TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 March 2023 {cont'd)

Share options
There were no share options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company.

There were no shares issued during the financlal year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued
shares of the Company.
There ware no unissued shares of the Company under options at the end of the financial year.

Auditors

The auditors, JH Tan & Associates, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appoinimeant,

On behalf of the Board,

e

MADAN MOHAN MOHANKA MERULMOHANKA
DIRECTOR DIRECTDR

Date: 23 May 2023



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED

(Company Registration No: 201025465K}

(incomporated in the Republic of Singapore)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (*FRSs”) s0 as to give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and of the financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the financial year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing {“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority (*“ACRA") Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting
Entities {"ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Directors' Statement, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereen.

Our apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowtedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibifities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reascnable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going coneern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors' responsibilities include overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED

(Company Registration No: 201025465K)

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

-

JH TAN & ASSOCIATES
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants Singapore

Singapore, 23 May 2023



TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Note
Revenue 3
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income 4
Other operating expenses 5
Finance costs 7
(Loss)/Profit before taxation
Taxation 8

(L.oss)/Profit for the year, representing total comprehensive
(loss)/income for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2023 2022
S$ S$

885,039 1,965,801
(840,787) (1,818,608)
44252 147,193
3,458,172 5,628,496
(3,847.417) (3,809,782)
(158,748) (8,163)
(503,741) 1,957,744
(110,151) (168,514)
(613,892) 1,789,230




TEGA HGOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
investments in subsidiary companies
Due from subsidiary companies
Deferred tax assets
Other receivables

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Due from subsidiary companies
Due from fellow subsidiary companies
Due from immediate holding company — non-trade
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Accumulated losses

Non-current liabilities
Due to immediate holding company — non-trade

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Due to feltow subsidiary company
Due to immediate holding company — trade
Income tax payable

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note

10
1
12
13

13
11
14
15
16

17

19

18
20
21

2023 2022
S$ S$

112,361 135,478
56,261,000 48,343,190
3,981,000 6,164,737
3,803 3,803
49,221 -
80,407,385 54,647,208
1,188,899 3,060,279
6,371,519 7,239,778
- 17,380
1,585,070 2,323,164
469,163 272,873
9,624,651 12,013,474
70,032,036 67,560,682
80,693,726 80,693,726

(14,945,213)

(14,331,321)

65,748,513 66,362,405
3,118,450 .
950,150 856,414

- 250,043

- 840

214,923 90,980
1,165,073 1,198,277
70,032,038 67,560,682




TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Share Accumulated
capital losses Total
S5 35 S3
Balance as at 1 April 2021 12,350 (16,120,551) (16,108,201)
Ordinary shares issued during the year (Note 17) 80,681,376 - 80,681,376
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,789,230 1,789,230
Balance as at 31 March 2022 80,693,726 (14,331,321} 66,362,405
Total comprehensive loss for the year - {(613,892) (613,892
Balance as at 31 March 2023 80,893,726 {14,945,213) 65,748,513

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before taxation
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation of plant and equipment 9
Interest income 4
Interest expenses 7

Allowance/(reversal) of expected credit losses
Reversal of impairment loss on investment in subsidiary
company 4
Unrealised exchange differences

Operating loss before working capital changes

Changes in working capital. -
Trade and other receivables
Advances to subsidiary companies, net
Advances to a fellow subsidiary company, net
Advances to immediate holding company, net
Trade and other payables

Net cash generated from/(used in) operations
Interest received

[nterest paid

Income tax refunded/(paid) net

Withholding tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of ordinary shares in subsidiaries
Purchase of plant and equipment 9
Proceeds from sales of plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
Net increasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2023 2022
S$ S$

(503,741) 1,957,744
32,292 35,665
(625,712) (829,935)
158,748 8,163
47 (139,545)
- (1,800,000)
- 489,296
(938,366) (278,612)
1,812,112 (562,977)
3,051,996 53,040
(232,663) 6,513,338
3,855,704 (7,149,758)
93,736 (98,398)
8,580,885 (1,243,855)
7,642,519 (1,522,467)
625,712 829,935
(158,748) (8,163)
13,576 (43,068)
- (44,842)
8,123,059 (788,805)
(7,917,594) -
(41,431) (2,196)
32,256 -
(7,926,769) (2,196)
196,290 (790,801)
272,873 1,063,674
469,163 272,873




TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of Singapore. Its principal activities are those of
an investments holding company and general wholesale trade. There have been no significant changes in

the nature of these activities during the financial year.

The Company's registered address and principal place of business is at 9 Temasek Boulevard #26-02A,
Suntec Tower 2, Singapore 038989,

The principal activities of its subsidiary companies are set out under Note 10 to these financial statements.

The Company established the foltowing four branches which act as marketing offices:

i) Peruvian Branch, namely Tega Holdings Pte. Limited Sucursal del Peru whose principal activities
are those of marketing activities of wear products;
i) Dubai Branch, namely Tega Holdings Pte Limited RAKFTZ whose principal activities are those of

marketing activities of wear products;

iii) Mali Branch, Tega Holdings Pte. Limited SARL, whose principal activities are those of the marketing
activities of wear products.

iv) Ghana Branch, Tega Holdings Pte. Limited, whose principal activities are those of the marketing
activities of wear products.

The Company is whoily owned by Tega Industries Limited and its ultimate holding company is Nihal Fiscal
Services Pvt Ltd. Both companies are incorporated in India.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorised for issue by
the Board on the date of the Directors’ statement.

2. SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore (‘FRSs”) as required by the Companies Act. The accounting policies have been consistently
applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year. The financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis modified where applicable and as disclosed
in these notes. These financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollar.

b) Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current financial year, the Company has adopted alt the new and revised FRSs and interpretation
of FRSs (“INT FRSs") that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2022. The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes in
the Company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current
or prior year.

¢) ERSs and INT FRSs not yet effective

The Company has not adopted the FRSs, INT FRSs and Amendments to FRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective.

The directors expect that the adoption of those pronouncements will have no material impact on the
financial statements in the period of initial application.



TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No. 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

d)

Significant accounting estirmates and judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the
financial statements, They affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies, reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going
basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. There were no significant judgements and estimates
made during the year except as discussed below.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting periods, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financtal year, are discussed below.

{iy Loss allowance for trade receivables and loans

The management establishes provision for impairment of trade receivables using a forward-looking
expected credit loss model. On initial recognition of the financial asset, management has determined
the expected credit loss rates by considering the credit risk profile of the customers and considered if
there will be default payment. The Company's credit risk exposure for trade receivables are digclosed in
Note 24(a). There is no allowance required as at 31 March 2023.

The carrying amount of the Company’s trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 was S§10,629 (2022
S$152,731).

Loans to related companies

Management determines whether there is significant increase in credit risk of these counterparties since
initial recognition. Management considers historical loss pattern, reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant, various operating performance ratios as well as liquidity ratios of these
counterparties. As at 31 March 2023, there is no significant increase in credit risk on these balances.

The carrying amounts of the Company's loans to subsidiaries and holding company as at 31 March 2023
totalled $$11,837,589 (2022: $$15,727,679) respectively.

(i) Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

The Company's investments in subsidiaries comprised mainly investment in Tega Industries Chile SpA,
Tega Holdings Pty Limited and Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited and their subsidiaries.
The management views each subsidiary as one cash-generating unit ("CGU").

The management follows the guidance of FRS 36 in determining whether the CGU is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgements and estimates involved in key assumptions used.
Management has obtained the valuation of each subsidiary frem an independent professional valuer
who estimates the value-in-use of the CGU by forecasting the expected future cash flows for a period
up to 5 years including terminal value, where appropriate, using a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Other than terminal value and discount rate, other key
assumptions were also considered such as future market conditions, revenue and cost growth rates and
projected costs in forecasting the expected future cash flows. The recoverable amounts determined
exceeded the carrying amounts of investments, hence no Impairment allowance was recognised for the
financial year.

The Company's carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 was $$56,261,000
{2022: 5$48,343,190).
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

d)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont'd)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Management is of the opinion that there are significant judgements made in applying the Company’s
accounting policies, as follows:

Determination of functional currency
The directors consider the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates to be the Singapore dollar as this is the currency which in their opinion most faithfully represents

the economic effects of the Company’s underlying transactions, events and conditions. The Singapore
dollar is the currency in which the Company measures its performance and reports its results,

Functional and foreign currency

Functional currency

The management has determined that the Singapore dollar (S$) is the Company's functional currency,
being the curency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. Revenue and
major operating expenses are primarily influenced by fluctuations in Singapore dollar.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the functional currency of the Company and are
recorded on initial recognition at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or a translating monetary item at the
reporting date are recognised in the profit or [oss.

Consolidation

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of Tega Holdings Pte. Limited. The
Company is exempted from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as the
Company is a wholly owned subsidiary corporation of Tega Industries Limited, a carporation
incorporated and domiciled in India. The immediate holding company prepares consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 that are publicly available. The registered office
of the holding corporation is located at 147, Block G, Humayun Kabir Sarani, New Alipore, Kolkata
700053 India.

Subsidiary corporation
Subsidiary corporation are entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee,

* s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
+  has the ability to use its power to affect is returns,
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

fi

Consolidation {cont'd)
Subsidiary corporation {cont'd)

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers ali relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

s The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

+  Potential voting rights held by the Campany, other vote holders or other parties;

¢  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

»  Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Accounting for subsidiary corporation by the Company
Investment in subsidiary company is stated in the Company's statement of financial position at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of such investment, the difference between disposal

proceeds and the carrying amounts of the investment is recognised in profit or loss.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase price and any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of
the cost of the assets if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred as a
consequence of acquiring or using the plant and equipment.

Depreciation is charged using the straight-line method so as to write off the cost of plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Computers - 3-5years
Mator vehicles - 5 years

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate, at the end of each financial year.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss,

Fully depreciated plant and equipment are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer
in use.

12



TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

h) Financial instruments

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when the entity becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit of loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets cartied at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss,

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third party, if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component
at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

Investments in debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. The three measurement categories
for ciassification of debt instruments are amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI") and FVPL. The Company only has debt instruments at amortised cost.

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation
process.

Derecognition

A financia! asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has
expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in
other comprehensive income for debt instruments is recognised in profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
confractual provisions of the financiat instrument. The Company determines the classification of its

financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities not at
FVPL, directly attribute transaction costs.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

h) Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at FVPL are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amounts and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs") for ail debt instruments not
held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integrai to the contractual terms,

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
recognised for credit losses expected over the remaining fife of the exposure irrespective of timing of the
default {a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the
Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment which could affect debtors’ ability to pay.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractuai cash
flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is indication that these assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable
amount.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is written down to its recoverable amount.

14



TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

)

k)

Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd)

Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss except for assets that are previously revalued
where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also
recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no fonger exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss unless the asset is measured at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and cash eqguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in hand, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If
it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation,
the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost,

Taxes
Current taxation

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of financial year.

Deferred taxation

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to
apply to the taxable profitin the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the financial year-end.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary difference, carry-forward of unused tax
assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses
can be recognised.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 2071025465K}
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY QOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

m} Taxes (cont'd)

Deferred taxation {cont'd)

At each financial year end, the Company re-assesses recognised deferred tax assets and the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets. The Company recognised a previously recognised deferred tax asset to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recovered. The Company conversely reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent
that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax assets
ta be recognised.

Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

+ Where the GST incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

« Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as a receivable when there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attached conditions will be compiled with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as deferred income on the statement over the expected
useful lie of the related asset.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions with an interest
rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as
additional governmental grant.

Special Employment Credit ("SEC") and Wage Credit Scheme (“WCS") are cash grants that are
recognised upon receipt. During the financial year, due to Covid-19 Pandemic, government provided
some support and relief such as Jobs Support Scheme (*JSS"), property tax rebate and rental relief.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the censideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts coliected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recoghised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A
performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue
recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when perfarmance obligation is satisfied which generally
coincides with their delivery and acceptance.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(incomorated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

0)

r)

5)

Revenue recognition (cont'd)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Management fee income
Management fee income refers to fee charged for performing corporate and administrative services.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Share capital

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Increments costs
directly attribute to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund scheme in Singapore, a defined
contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

iy A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
a. Has control or joint control over the Company;
b.  Has significant influence over the Company; or
c. Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

jiy An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

a. The entity and the Company are members of the same group {which means that each subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
b. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture or

a member of a group which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the entity.

e, The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit if employees of either the Company
or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsor employers
are also related to the Company.

f.  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in i),

g. A person identified in i) a. has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
management personnel of the entity (or a parent of the entity).

oo
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(incomorated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

3. REVENUE

Sale of goods — at a point in time

4. REVENUE

Interest income
Management fee income
Miscellaneous

Reversal of expected credit losses

Reversal of impairment loss on investment in subsidiary
company

Others

5. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses include the following: -

Allowance for expected credit loss
Bank charges

Legal fees

Professional fees

Travelling expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment
Loss on exchange difference
Employee costs (Note 6)

8. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Director's remuneration
Salaries and bonuses
Contributions to pension fund and social fund

18

2023 2022
s$ S$
885,039 1,965,801
2023 2022
S$ S$
625,712 829,935
2,814,118 2,530,404
14,951 236,555
- 139,545
- 1,800,000
3,391 92,057
3,458,172 5,628,496
2023 2022
5% 5%
47 -
25,568 33,284
7,649 6,500
341,316 389,287
284 954 164,815
32,292 35,665
1,140,888 602,526
1,444,533 2,013,323
2023 2022
5% 3%
- 496,323
1,444,533 1,516,868
- 132
1,444,533 2,013.323




TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

6. EMPLOYEE COSTS (cont'd)

The above included the foliowing key management personnel compensation during the financial year: -

2023 2022
3% S%
Director of the Company:
- Director's salaries and bonus - 489,123
- Rental - accommodation - 7,200
- 496,323
7. FINANCE COSTS
2023 2022
S$ S35
Interest expenses on loan from subsidiary companies 158,748 8,163
8. TAXATION
2023 2022
5% S$
Current year taxation 110,151 115,376
Overprovision in prior years - {10,194)
Deferred taxation - 4,124
Withholding tax - 59,208
110,151 168,514

A reconciliation of the tax expense and the results for the year is as follows:

{Loss)/Profit before taxation (503,741) 1,957,744
Tax benefits at statutory rate of 17% (85,635) 332,816
Non-taxable income - (346,214)
Non-deductible expenses 195,786 124 311
Stepped income exemption - {15,975)
Withholding tax - 59,208
Others - 24,562

110,151 178,708
Overprovision in prior years - (10,194}

110,151 168,514
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

9.

10.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
As at 1 April 2021
Addition
Disposals
As at 31 March 2022
Additions
Disposals
As at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals
As at 31 March 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals
As at 31 March 2023

Net carrying amount
As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

At cost

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Ordinary shares in unquoted subsidiary companies

0.1% non-cumulative preference shares

Less: Impairment allowance

At beginning of the year
Reversal during the year
At end of the year

Motor
Computers vehicles Total
S% 5% S3
15,331 200,759 216,080
2,196 - 2,196
(258) {1,205) {1,463)
17,269 199,554 216,823
41,431 - 41,431
(980) {71,869) (72,849}
57,720 127 685 185,405
9,899 37,244 47,143
3,162 32,503 35,665
(258) (1,205) (1,463)
12,803 68,542 81,345
6,160 26,132 32,292
(413) (40,180) (40,593)
18,550 54,494 73,044
39,170 73,191 112,361
4,466 131,012 135,478
2023 2022
S$ S$
16,773,302 16,773,086
45 414,189 37,496,685
62,187,491 54,269,681
(5,926,491) (7,726,491)
- 1,800,000
(5,926,491) (5,926,491) |
56,261,000 48,343,190

20

On 7 June 2022, the company acquired an additional 53,933 preference shares paid through the conversion
of loan due from a subsidiary comprising principal amount of US$4,555,000 and interest receivable of
US$1,186,547 totaling US$5,741,547. This amounted to $$7,917,594 upon conversion into Singapore
dollar. The preference shares known as series C shares, are for the period to 31 December 2029 when they
are convertible, at their subscription price, to ordinary shares with equal voting right.

The Company assessed the carrying amounts of its investments in subsidiaries and the loans advanced,
Note 11, for indicators of impairment. The assessment is supported by the valuations performed by an
independent professional valuer to determine the recoverable amounts of investments in subsidiaries. Based
on this assessment, no impairment loss was recognised for the financial year.



TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES {(cont'd)

Details of the subsidiary companies as at the financial year end are as follows: -

Country of
Name of incorporation Proportion
subsidiary & place of Principal of ownership Proportion of
companies business activities (interest) voting power held
2023 2022 2023 2022
% % % %
Tega Holdings Australia Investment 100 100 100 100
Pty Limited holding
Tega South Africa Investment 100 100 100 100
Investments holding
South Africa
Froprietary
Limited
Tega Chile Manufacturer of 100 100 100 100
Industries wear resistant
Chile SpA product for
mining
application &
slursy handling
system

The following subsidiary companies are held by the above subsidiary companies at the financial year end: -

Country of
Name of incorporation Proportion
subsidiary & place of Principal of ownership Proportion of
companies business activities (interest) voting power held
2023 2022 2023 2022
% % % %
Held by Tega Holdings Pty Limited: -
Losugen Pty Australia Manufacturer of 100 100 100 100
Ltd wear
components,
especially in
rubber
Held by Tega Industries Chile SpA: -
*Edoctum Chile Involvement and 99.89 99.89 99.89 99.89
SA. holding
technical
events,
courses,

seminars and
congresses on
mining industry
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (cont'd)

Country of
Name of incorporation Proportion
subsidiary & place of Principal of ownership Proportion of
companies business activities (interest) voting power held
2023 2022 2023 2022
% % % %
Held by Teqa Industries Chile SpA: -
Edoctum Peru Chile Involvement and 100 100 100 100
S.A.C. (held holding
by Edoctum technical
SA) events,
courses,
seminars and
congresses on
mining industry
Held by Tega Invesiments South Africa Proprietary Limited: -
Tega South Africa Involvement and 100 100 100 100
Industries holding
Africa technical
Proprietary events,
Limited courses,

seminars and
congresses on
mining industry

All of the above subsidiary companies are audited by other audit firms in their respective countries.

* The remaining shares in Edoctum S.A. are held by the Company.

Details of the 0.1% non-cumulative preference shares in subsidiary companies as at the financial year end

is set out below: -

Country of Cost of 0.1% Non-
Incorporation cumulative Preference
Name of & Place of Principal Shares
Companies Business Activities (Percentage of)
2023 2022
S$ S$
Tega Industries Chile Manufacturer of 45,414,189 37,496,595
Chile SpA wear resistant {100%) {100%)

product for mining
application & sturry
handling system

45,414,189 37,496,585

The Company's investment in subsidiary, Tega Industries Chile SpA comprise of equity shares and
redeemable preference shares with carrying amounts of $$11,420,896 (2022: 5%11,429,896) and
S$45,414,189 (2022: S$37,496,595) respectively. The Company regards the subsidiary as a long-term
investment.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

11, DUE FROM SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

2023 2022
3% S$
Due from subsidiary companies 10,352,519 13,404,515
Less: current portion of amount due from subsidiary companies {6,371,519) {7,239,778)
Non-current portion of due from subsidiary companies 3,981,000 6,164,737

Amount due from subsidiary companies are denominated in the following currencies: -
Interest bearing advances:

Australian dollar 6,371,519 7,239,778
United States dollar 3,981,000 6,164,737
10,352,519 13,404 515

Due from subsidiary company denominated in Australian dollar is an unsecured loan with annual interest
ranged from 4.58% to 7.10% (2022: 8.20%) and no fixed terms of repayment.

Due from subsidiary company denominated in United States dollar is an unsecured loan with annual interest
ranged from 3.96% to 7.10% {2022: of 3.20% to 4.50%) and a repayment due after completion of 3 years
from the date of crediting the loan amount.

The loans due from subsidiaries which are without collaterals, are assessed to be unimpaired as mentioned
in Note 10, Investments in Subsidiary Companies.

12. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Accelerated

tax depreciation Total
S$ S$
At 1 April 2021 (7,927) (7,927)
Charged to profit or loss (Note 8) 4,124 4,124
At 31 March 2022 and 2023 (3,803) (3,803)

Deferred tax asset arose from tax losses and capital allowances.

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
5% S$

Trade receivables - third parties 12,351 184 407
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (1,722) (1,8676)
10,629 152,731

Other receivables:
Interest on loans to subsidiaries 949,725 2,754,083
Security deposits 8,219 8,219
Other receivables 211,160 44,622

Prepayments:

Prepaid expenses 68,387 100,644
1,248,120 3,060,279
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

13. TRADE AND GTHER RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

2023 2022
S$ S§
Trade and other receivables:
Non-current 49,221 -
Current 1,198,899 3,080,279
1,248,120 3,060,279

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generatly on a 30 (2022: 30) day credit terms.

Other receivables are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

Trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies: -

2023 2022
S% 53

Australian dollar 752,693 1,194,327
Euro 14,575 152,739
Peruvian nuevo $0l 34,109 30,030
Singapore dollar 236,534 74,017
United States doliar 210,209 1,609,166

1,248,120 3,060,279

14.

15.

DUE FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Amount due from fellow subsidiary companies are denominated in Singapore.

Due from fellow subsidiary companies is trade in nature, non-interest bearing and are generally on a 30 day
credit terms.

DUE FROM IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY -- NON-TRADE

Non-trade amount due from immediate holding company is unsecured, interest free and is payable on
demand.

Amount due from immediate holding company is denominated in the following currencies.

2023 2022
S$ S$
Singapare dollar 970,611 2,311,615
United States dollar 614,459 11,549
1,585,070 2,323,164
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022
S$ S$
Cash at banks 467,634 265,412
Cash on hand 1,529 7,461
469,163 272,873
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: -
2023 2022
S$ S$
Australian dollar 8,808 29,043
West African CFA franc 51 1,046
Euro 7,679 1,104
Ghanaian cedi 26,102 3,791
Peruvian nuevo sol 3,563 23,891
Singapore dollar 103,328 56,225
United States doYiar 319,832 157,773
469,163 272,873
17. SHARE CAPITAL
2023 2022
S$ S3
Issued and fully paid-up share capital:
100,280 (2022: 100,280) ordinary shares 80,693,726 80,693,726

In previous year, 87,930 ordinary shares were issued as part of the conversion of 595,250 redeemable

preference shares at a consideration of 5§917.56 per share.

The ordinary shares in the capital are without par value. Ali ordinary shares carry one vote per share without

restrictions.

The ordinary shareholders are entitied to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regards to the Company's

residual assets.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022
S$ S$
Trade payables 607,211 95,325
Interest payables on loans to fellow subsidiary company - 16,461
Accruals for operating expenses 66,620 332,677
Provision for long service leave benefits 143,372 243,713
Other payables 132,947 168,238
950,150 856,414
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cont’d)

Trade payables are normally settled within 30 (2022: 30) days. Other payables are non-trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and are payable as due.

Trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies: -

2023 2022
S3 S$
Ghanaian Cedi 193,857 80,553
Peruvian nuevo sol 127,614 216,985
Singapore dollar 218,100 530,617
United States dollar 410,779 28,259
950,150 856,414

DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY — NON-TRADE

Amount due to immediate holding company is an unsecured loan with an interest ranged 4.48% to 7.00%
per annum with repayment due more than 12 months from year-end. Amount due to immediate holding
company is denominated in United States dollar.

DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The amount due to fellow subsidiary company is an unsecured loan and repayable on demand. Interest is
payable at Libor plus 300 basis paint,

Arnount due to subsidiary company is denominated in United States dollar.

DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY — TRADE

Trade amounts due to immediate holding company are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.

Amount due to immediate holding company — trade is denominated in Singapore dollar.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant inter-company transactions during the financial year, transacted on terms agreed between the
parties, are: -

2023 2022
S35 S8
With immediate holding company: -
Payment on behalf for immediate holding company, net {1,741,595) (1,185,750)
Management fee income 2,095,893 2,423,434
Purchases 840,787 1,815,608
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

22, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)

2023 2022
S$ S¥
With subsidiary companies: -
Management fee income 602,310 230,492
Interest on loan charged to subsidiary companies 625712 790,222
With fellow subsidiary companies: -
Interest on loan charged by subsidiary companies (4,685) (8,163)
Loan repayment to fellow subsidiary companies - (2,845,794)
Interest on loan charged to fellow subsidiary companies - 39,713
Management fes income 115,914 106,970
Payment cn behalf - {40,169)
Sales - 1,445,913

23. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table analyses the financial instruments in the statement of financial position, by their classes
and categories: -

2023 2022
S8 S%
Financial assets. -
At amortised cost 13,375,325 18,032,945
Financial liabilities: -
At amortised cost 3,858,608 868,827

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The directors review management policies for the following financial risks which arise in the normal course
of business: -

a) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
loss to the Company. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Trade receivables of the Company are mainly due from
companies with good collection track record with the Company. Cash balances are placed with
reputable banks and financial institutions which are regulated.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The Company

performs ongoing credit evaluation of its counterparties’ financial condition and generally do not require
a collateral.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No. 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

a)

Credit risk (cont'd)

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting pertod.

The Company has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when internal and/or external
information indicates that the financial asset is unlikely to be received, which could include default of
contractual payments due for more than 90 days, or there is significant difficulty of the counterparty.

To minimise credit risk, the Company has developed and maintained the Company’s credit risk gradings
to categories exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The credit rating information is
supplied by publicly available financial information and the Company’s own trading records to rate its
major customers and other debtors, The Company considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information which includes the following indicators:

- Internal crediting rating

- External credit rating

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic cenditions
that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor's ability to meet its obligations

- Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor

- Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor

- Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtor, including
changes in the payment status of debtors in the group and changes in the operating results of
the debtar.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more
than 60 days past due in making contractual payment.

The Company determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired wher:
- There is significant difficulty of the debtor
- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event
- It is becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation
- There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulty

The Company categorises a receivable for potential write-off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments more than 120 days past due. Financial assets are written off when there is evidence
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and the debtor has no realistic prospect of
recovery.

The Company's current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category | Definition of category Basis for recognising
expected credit loss
{ECL)

1 Counterparty has a low risk of default and does | 12-month ECL

not have any past-due amounts.
Ii Amount is >80 days past due or there has been a | Lifetime ECL - not credit
significant increase in credit risk since initial | impaired

recagnition.
t Amount is >90 days past due or there is evidence | Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
indicating the asset is credit-impaired (in default).
v There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in | Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the debtor has no
realistic prospect of recovery.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

a) Credit risk (cont'd)

The table below details the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets, as well as maximum
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating categories: -

Gross Net
12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Note Category  lifetime ECL amount  allowance  amount
S$ 5% S3
As at 31 March 2023: -
Lifetime ECL
Trade receivables 13 Note 1 {simpiified) 12,351 (1,722) 10,629
Other receivables 13 | 12-month ECL 1,237,491 - 1,237,491
{1,722)
As at 31 March 2022: -
Lifetime ECL
Trade receivables 13 Note 1 (simplified) 154,407 (1,676) 152,731
Other receivables 13 | 12-month ECL 2,907,548 - 2,904,548
(1,676)

Trade receivables (Note 1)

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simpilified approach in FRS 109 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Company determines the ECL by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as
appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the
credit risk profile of trade receivables is presented based on their past due status in terms of the provision
matrix.

Trade receivables

Days past due

<180 days =180 days Total
S S$ S$
As at 31 March 2023: -
ECL rate - 160%
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default - 12,351 12,351
ECL - (1,722) (1,722)
10,629
As at 31 March 2022: -
ECL rate - 100%
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 83,809 70,598 154,407
ECL - {1,676) (1,678)
152,731

Information regarding loss allowance movement of trade receivables is disclosed in Note 13,

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographical region, or have exonymic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, pelitical or other conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting
a particular industry.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorparated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

a)

Credit risk (cont'd)

Exposure to credit risk

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk other than those balances with immediate
holding company, subsidiary companies and fellow subsidiary companies. The Company has credit
policies and procedures in place to minimise and mitigate its credit risk exposure.

Foreign currency risk
The Company’s foreign exchange risk results from cash flows transactions denominated in foreign
currencies mainly in Australian doltar and United States dollar. It is the Company’s policy not to enter

into derivative forward foreign exchange contracts for hedging and speculative purposes.

The carrying amounts of significant monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in non-
functional currencies are as follows: -

Assets Liabilities Net
5% 53 S$
As at 31 March 2023: -
Australian dollar 7,133,020 - 7,133,020
United States dollar 5,125,300 (3,529,229) 1,596,071
As at 31 March 2022: -
Australian dollar 8,463,148 - 8,463,148
United States dollar 7,943,225 (428,621) 7,514 604

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% (2022: 5%) increase and decrease in the Singapore
dollar against the refevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2022: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans to
foreign operations within the Company where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than
the currency of the lender or the borrower.

If the Singapore dollar appreciates/(depreciates) by 5% (2022: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currency, profit or loss will increase/(decrease) by: -

Australian dollar impact United States dollar impact
2023 2022 2023 2022
53 5% S$ S§
Appreciates by 5% (2022: 5%): -
Profit or loss (356,651) (423,157) (79,804) (375,730)
Depreciates by 5% (2022: 5%]): -
Profit or loss 356,651 423,157 79,804 375,730
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
{Company Registration No: 201025465K)
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore}

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
¢) Interest rate risk
The Company's expostire to interest rate risk arises primarily from its advances to subsidiary companies
and fellow subsidiary companies and bank borrowings. Movements in interest rates are monitored to
ensure that borrowing rates are comparable to current incremental borrowing rates for similar type of
borrowing arrangement.

As at the financial year end, the profile of the, Company's interest-bearing financial liabilities are as

follows: -
2023 2022
S$ S$
Financial liabilities:
Due to immediate holding company — non-trade 3,118,450 -
Due to fellow subsidiary company - 250,043
3,118,450 250,043

Interest rate risk sensitivity

As at the financial year end, if the interest rates had been 50 (2022: 50) basis points higher/lower with
all variables held constant, profit or loss will increase/(decrease) by: -

2023 2022
S$ S$
Higher by 50 basis points: -
Profit or loss 15,592 1,250
Lower by 50 basis points: -
Profit or loss (15,692) (1,250)

d) Liquidity risk

Liguidity is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligation as and when they
fall due.

The directors maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Company's
operations and to mitigate cash flows fluctuation. Due to the dynamic nature of business, the Company
also maintains flexibility in funding by ensuring that ample of credit facilities and working capital lives
are available at any point in time.

25. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
return to its shareholders and benefits for any other stakehelders. The capital structure of the Company
cansists of equity attributable to its shareholders, comprising share capital and accumulated losses.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made to the
objectives, policies and processes during the financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2023

26. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of financial assets and liahiiities is the amount at which the instrument couid be exchanged or
settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than a forced or
liguidation sale.
Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities are categerised as follows: -

a) quoted price {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

b) inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either
directly (is as price) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

¢) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market price or rate (unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

Financial instruments whose carrying amount approximate fair value

The management has determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, due from subsidiary companies, due from fellow subsidiary companies, due from immediate
holding company, trade and other payables, due to fellow subsidiary company and due to immediate holding
company are based on their notional amounts reasonably approximate their fair values because these are
mostly short-term in nature or are repriced frequently within a year.

End of the Audited Financial Statements
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TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

DETAILED PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Revenue
Sales

Less: Cost of sales
Purchases

Gross profit

Add: Other operating income
Interest income
Management fee income
Miscellaneous income
Reversal of expected credit losses
Reversal of impairment loss on investment in subsidiary company
Others

Less: Other operating expenses (Annex 1)
Less: Finance costs (Annex 1)

({Loss)/Profit before taxation

This schedule does not form part of the audited financial statements.

2023 2022
S$ 5%

885,039 1,965,801
840,787 1,818,608
44,252 147,193
625,712 829,935
2,814,118 2,530,404
14,951 236,555
- 139,545
- 1,800,000
3,391 92,057
3,458,172 5,628,496
(3,847 417) (3,809,782)
(158,748) (8,163)
(503,741) 1,057,744




TEGA HOLDINGS PTE. LIMITED
(Company Registration No: 201025465K)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

DETAILED PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 (cont’d)

Other operating expenses
Audit fee
Less overprovision of audit fee in prior year
Allowance for expected credit loss
Bank charges
Business support expense
Contributions to pension fund and sccial fund
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Director's remuneration
Loss on exchange differences
General expenses
Insurance
Legal fees
Motor vehicle expense
Postage and telephone
Professicnal fees
Rental - accommodation
Repair and maintenance
Subscription fee
Salaries and bonuses
Travelling expenses
Utilities

Finance cosis

Interest expenses on foan from subsidiary companies

This schedule does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Annex 1
2023 2022
S$ S5

13,000 23,510
(11,551) -
47 -
25,568 33,284
- 13,228
- 132
32,292 35,665
- 489,323
1,140,888 602,526
350,637 384,078
43 386 29,840
7,649 6,509
106,182 33,697
12,016 12,685
341,316 389,287
42,873 54,956
12,164 14,814
- 1,905
1,444 533 1,516,868
284,954 164,815
1,463 2,760
3,847 417 3,809,782
158,748 8,163
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Tega Industries Canada Inc
Balance Sheet as at 31 March zo23

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipnient 3(a) 94,074 70,408
Righl-of-Use Assels a(b) 230,317 167,658
Other intangible assets ale) 4] 3
Financial assels
Other financial assels 4 4,030 4,030
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 111,491 6,771
Other non-current assets 6 = 2,488
Total non-current assets 449,811 251,355
Current assets
Inventories 7 573.483 2,201,084
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets 8 2,545,277 3,087,405
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 283,465 1,448,612
Current tax assets (net) 10 201,644 -
Other current assets 11 64,688 50,923
Eotnl current assets 3,758,558 6,788,024
Total assets 4,208,368 7,039,379
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity shate capital 12 50,000 50,000
Other equity 13 1,445,141 1,748,232
Total equity 1,495.141 1,798,232
Liabfilities
Non-eurrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 45,687 11,815
(i) Lease Liabilities 3(b) 164,851 125,618
Total non-current liabilities 210,538 137,433 |
Current liabilities
Tinancial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 20,965 70,817
(ii) Lease Liabilities 3(b) 76,137 49,064
(ifi) Trade payables
(a) Total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 16 - -
(b} Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro and small enterprises 16 1,265,713 4,416,577
(iv) Other financial liahilities 17 162,472 213,487
Provisions 18 4,253 32,399
Current tax liahilities (net} 19 - 169,177
Other current liabilities 20 923,149 152,193
Total current liabilities 2,502,689 5,10
[Total liahilities 2,713,227 5,241,147
Total equity and Habilities 4.208.368 fogg,_;ﬁ

{All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Balance Sheet referved to in our report of even date The accompanying notes are the integral part of this

Special Purpose Financial Information

For Goenka Suresh & Associates
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Avcountants
(SURESH Kt-'ﬁRNKA)

Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 051226

Place : Kolkata

Date: 90 ™ M&a ’202,3

LIDIM ' BOSTRARG BEGUIAC-BBI



Tega Industrics Canada Inc
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2oz #1 March 2oua
Revenue from operations 21 9,449,530 13,060,269
Other income 22 25,458 204,525
Total income 9.474.988 13,264,703
Expenses
Purchase of Stock in Trade 23 6,045,285 10,107,321
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 24 1,627,601 (74,820)
Employee benefits expense 25 1,149,014 1,141,619
Finance costs 26 7,731 14,473
Diepreciation and amortisation expenses 27 81,704 92,724
Other expenses 28 664,445 927,831
Total expenses 9,875,781 12,209,148
Profit hefore exceptional items and tax {400,793) 1,055,640
Exceptional Items = -
Profit before tax (400,703) 1,055,646
Income tax expense
- Current tax 29 7,017 289,303
- Deferred tax = 29 [104,720) (1,619)
Total tax expense/ {credit) (07,703) 257,684
Total Prafit for the year (A} {203.091) 767.062
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {(B) 3 =
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (303,091) 767,962
Earnings Per equity share:
Basic 33 -6.06 15.36
Diluted 33 -6,06 15.36

The accompanying notes are the integral part of this Special Purpose
Tinanecial Information

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For and on hehalf of Board of Directors

(ot

Director Director

Firm R 7.4 No. 313139E
d Accountants

Charte

Proprietor
Membership No. 051220

Place : Kolkata

Date ; 20‘“‘% \2e2.%
LOIN ' 23051226 BGUILSC.IR(!



Tega Industries Canada Inc
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

40,
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

A, Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax {400,793) 1,055,647
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 81,704 92,724
Finance costs H73 14,473
Interest income = (4)
Allowance for expected credit loss (including bad debts and advances written off) 13,641 160,456
Net Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (12,456) m
Provision for slow moving/ non- moving and obsolete inventory 116,329 .
Effect of unrealised exchange differences (3rd party) 161,012 {36,939)
Effect of unrealised exchange differences (related party) (6.597) (5.833)
Operating profit before working capital changes (30.420) 1,280,525
Changes in Working Capital:
{Increase)/ decrease in Non Current/ Current financial and other assets 512,556 (1,039,773)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 1,511,272 (74,820)
Increase/ (decrease) in Non Current/ Current financial and other liabilities/ provisions {2,452,473) 1,556,159
Cash Generated from Operations (468,074) 1,722,091
Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds) (467 B3R) (230.906)
Net cash generated from operating activities (935,912) 1,491,186

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities:

Purchase of capital assets (63,937) (12,783)

Sale of capilal assets 25,250 -

Interest received - 4
Net cash (used in) investing activities (38,688) (12,779)

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from/ (repayment of) Long termm borrowings (net) 13,873 =
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) shert term borrowings (net) 148 (220,300)
Finance cost paid {2,724) (7,107}
Finance cost paid on account of Lease Liability (5,007) (7,366)
Repayment of Lease Liability (60,480) (58,036)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (24.100) (203,799)
Net inerease in cash and eash equivalents (1,008,780) 1,184,607
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,448,612 230,964
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 439,822 1,415,571
Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Losses 156,357 (33,041)
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 283,465 1,448,612
31 March 2023 31 March zo22
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise :
Cash on hand 1,251 500
Balances with banks on current account 2fz,21% 1,448,112
283,405 1,448,612
Notes:
1. The above cash flow statement bas been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows",
The accompanying nates are the integral part of this
This is the Statement of Cash Flows teferred to in our report of even date. Special Purpose Financial Information

Suresh & Associates
. 313139F

N

(SURESH K GOENEKA) A
Proprietor
Membership Ne. 051226

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(B,

Director . Direetor

Place : Kolkata

Date : zon\Ma‘: '102_3
LLDIN: RBO5/ 226 BGU89C 381/
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TEGA INDUSTRIES CANADA Inc.
Notes to Special Purpose Flnancial Information

1. Company Information

Tega Industries Canada Inc. is a company limited by shares and is incorporated in Canada.The Company was engaged in the business of sale of mill liners, screen media, conveyor accessories
whe rein materials were sourced mainly from its group company in India and seld mostly within Canada. The parent company 's Tega Industries Ltd., a company incorporated in India.

The Special Purpose Financial Informations as at 31 March 2o23 present the financial position of the Company.
z.5ummary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of Prcparation

{i) Compliance with Tega Industrics Limited Group's Accounting Policies

These Special Purpose Financia! Information (which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2033, the Staternent of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive [ncome), the Staterment
of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and nctes to the Special Purpose Financial Information, ineluding a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information) of Tega Industries Canada Inc. have heen prepared in accordance with the group accounting policies of Tega Industries Limited, which in turn are aligned with
Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') as natified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to seeton 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the
Cempanies {Indian Acconnting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). These Special Purpose Financial Information have been prepated to facilitate consolidation of the finaneial information of
the subsidiary into the consolidated financial information of Tega Industries Limited. These Special Purpose Financial Information have been presented in accerdance with Schedule 1T of the
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended).

{ii) Historical Cost Convenlion
The Special Purpose Financia! Information been prepared as going concern on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except for the specified assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value or revalued amount (if any).

(ii1) Current versus Non Current Classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-ciirrent as per the Company's operating cycle, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of cirrrent — non-current elassification of assets and
liabilities.

2.2 Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial staternents require the Management to make estimates and assurnptions considered in the reported ameunts of the assets and liabilities ineluding Contingent

Liabilities as on the date of the financial statements and the reported income and expenses for the reporting period. Management belleves that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates, Any adjustments based on actuals are effected in the subseqiient perinds.

2.3 Property plant and equipment and Intangible assets

2.3.1 Property plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property plant and equipment are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and accwnulated impairment, if any.
Histerical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that futui e economic benefits associaled with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured rellably, The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

2.3.2 Intangible asscts

Intangible Assels are stated at cost of acquisition net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased when the asset is complete and
available far its intended use.
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with definite vseful lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisaticn and accumulated impairment, if any.

An asset’s earrying ameunt is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carmying amonnl. These are inelided in the statement af profit or loss.

Soltware 1to 3 Years

2.4 Depreciation and Amortisation

Computers 45% - 100%

Plant and Equipment _20%
Furniture and Fixtures 20%
Vehirles 0%
Office equipment 20%
Lease hold [mprovement 20%

Lease Improvements are deps

inted equally over the period of lease, which is 5 vears.
Depreciation in the year of addition is charged at 50% of the respective rate.

2.5 Impairment

At each balance sheet dale, the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying vatue
of those assets may not be recoverable threngh contiriting use, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of impairment, if any.
Where the asset does not generate cash llows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
disceunt rate that reflects eurrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash Aows have not been adjusted. An
impairment loss is recognised in the staternent of profit and loss 25 and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequent|y reveises, the carrying value of the asset (or eash generating unit) is increased te the revised estimate of its receverable amount so that the increased
carrying value does nct exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.




2.6 Financial Instruments

_Financial Asscis

The financial assets are ¢lassified in the following categaries:

1. financial assets measured at amortised cost,

2. financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss, and
3. financial assets at fair value threugh other comprehensive income,

The classification of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for managing financial assets and the contiactual terms of the cash flow.
Al initlal recognition, the finaneial assets are measured at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit or lass.

Financial assels measured at amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection ¢f cantractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. After initlal measurement,
such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The lasses arising from impairment are recognised in the staternent of profit or loss.

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial instroments inciuded within fair value through profit and loss category are measured Tnitially as well as at each reporting period at fair value plus transaction costs as applicable, Fair
value movements are recorded in staternent of profit and loss.

Investments in units ¢f mutual funds are accounted for at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial asseis at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ifthese financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flews that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
ameunt outstanding.

De-recognition of financial assct
The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or it transfers the financial assets and such transfer qualifies for de-
recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carrled at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit rigk.

For trade receivables the simplified approach of lifetime expected credii lnsses has been recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Tmpairment loss allowance recognised /reversed during the year are charged/written back to statement of profit and loss.

Finaneial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any diffeionee between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amaunt is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Cornpany has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a
breach of 2 material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reparting pertad with the effect that the liability becornes payable on demand on the teporting dale, the
entity dees not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, net to demand payment as a
consequence of the breach.

For trade and cther payables maturing within ene year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amount approximates fair value to short-term maturity of these instruments

A financial liability (or a part of financial liability} is de-recognised from Company's balance sheet when obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

In the Statement of Cash Mlows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments, if any, with original maturities of three
months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet,

2.7 Inventories

[nventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on Weighted Average Basis. The cost of finished goods and work 'n progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.




2.8 Revenue Recognilion
Effeclive April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Lnd AS 115 which establishes a compiebensive fiamework for delermining whether, how muceh and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115
replaces Ind AS i8 Revenue, The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrespeclive effect method. There is no material impact for the Company on adoption of the slandard.

Revenue shall Le recagnised to depict the tiansfer of pramised goods or services to customers in an amount that tellects the consideration te which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
thase goads and services

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when contiol of the products has been Lansferred te Lhe buyer, being when the products are dispatched/ delivered to the customer depending on the contract terms, as that is
the point when the buyer has filll diseretion aver the channel and price to sell and there is o unfulfilled obligation that could affect Lhe buyer's acceplance of the products per the terms of the
centract and no significant nncertainty exists regnrding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. It includes excise duty and excludes value added tax/sales
Lax/Goeds and Service tax, No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are generally made with a credit term of upto 180 days, which is consisient with market practice.

Revenue is recognised based an the price specified in the coniract.

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such as sale of product and certain related services, However, the services nre simple, does not include an integration service and could be performed
by another party. It is therefore accounted for as a separate performance cbligation. Where the contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be allacated to each
perfermance cbligation based on the stand-alene selling prices. Where these are not directly observable, they are estimated based on the expected cost plus margin. If contracts include the
installation of praduet, revenue for the produet is recognized at a peint in time when Lhe preduct is delivered, the legal title has passed and the customer has aceepted the product.

In seme contracts the Company’s performance does not ereate an asset with alternative use to the Company and the Company has concluded that it has an enforceable right to payment for
perfermance completed to date. In the said cases, the Cempany transfers contiol of a good ot service over time and, therefare, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue cver time
The Company uses the input method to recognize revenue

The Company has determined that the Input method is the best method for measuring progress for these contiacts because there is a direct relationship between the costs incurred by the
Company and the transfer of goods and services te the customer.

A recetvable is recognised when the goeds are despatched or delivered, depending on the contraet terms, as this is the point in time that the consideration is nconditional because enly the passage
of time is required belore the payment is due.

A contract assel is recognized in respect of those perfarmance obligations where the control of the gocds has been transferred te the buyer, and only delivery of the goods is pending.

The Comuany does nct have any contracts where the period between the tiansfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year, As a
consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Company generally provides for warranties which are assurance-lype watranlies under [nd AS 115, and are accounted for under Ind A8 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets,

Sale of services:
Sale of Services are recognised on rendering of the related services.

2.¢ Government Grants
(i) Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company wili comply with all attached conditions

(ii) Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended t¢ compensate and
presented within ather opeiating income

(iii} Governt gants relating to interest fiee loan: The difference between the fair value of the government lean on the transaction date and the proceeds received should e recognlsed as a
government grant. This gevernment grant shall be recognised in the prefit or loss either immediately or amortised over a period of time depending upon the cbjective/purpose of granting this loan
al below market rate of interest.

2,10 Rorrowing Cosls

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with barrowing and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings Lo the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying assets, which are assets that neeessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Premium in the form of fees paid on refinancing of loans are accounted for as an expense over the life of the loan using effective interest rate method. All ather borrowing costs are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the peried in which they are incurred.

2,11 Foreign Currency Transactions
These financial statements of the Company are presented in Canadian Dollar (CAD), which Is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial staternents.

Initial Recognition: On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying te the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subsequent Recognitjon: Foreign currency denominated menetary assets and liabilities are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange 1ates in effect at the balance sheet date. The
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the statement of profit and loss. Nen-monetary assets and non-maonetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency
and measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monelary assets and non-monetary liabilities deneminated in a
foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Transaction gains or lesses realized vpon settlement of foreign curtency transactions are included in determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

2.12 Employee Benefils

a) Short-term Employee Benefits:
Short-term Employee Benefits {i.e. benefits payable within cne year) are recognised in the period in which employee services are rendered.

h) Leave Encashment Benefits
Leave encashment benefit is in the nature of short term benefit and is accounted for on the basis given above, Liabillty is calculated based on the respective unavailed leave at year end and the
salary of the concerned staff and the amount accrued during the year is recognised as a charge.

¢) Defined Contribukion Plan

Payments to defined centribution plans are charged as an expense in the period in which they accrue. Payments made to state managed retirement bienefit schemnes ave dealt with as payments to
defined contribution schemes where the Company's cbligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retitement beneflt scheme.




2,13 Current and Deferred Tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax Jaws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evalnates positions taken in
tax returns with respeet to sltuaticns in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where apprepriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting peried.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carmying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss), Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible termporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be availablé to utilise those lemporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsat when there is a legally enforceakle right to affset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or tc realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except o the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.




2.14 Provision and Conlingent Liabilitics

The Company recognises a provision where there is a present obligation as a result of a past event Lhat probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. A disclosuie for a contingent liabilily is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources or there is
a present obligatian, reliable estimate of the amount of which cannot be made. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and Lhe likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision ar disclosure for contingent liabilily is made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting peried. The discount rate used Lo
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects cnient market assessments of the time value of money and the visks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Provision for warrantu

The estimated Liabilily for the warranty is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are established using historical information on the nature,frequency and average cost of obligations
and management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions an precuct failuce. Teh timing of ontflows will vary as and when the abligations will arise-being typically
up to two years,

2.15 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing net profit or loss for the period attiibutable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
periad. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit or loss for the period.The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the period
and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shaies, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a carresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares ontstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.16 Leases

Company as o Lessee

The Company assesses whether a rontract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right te control the use of an identified asset

for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU"} and a corresponding lease liabilily with respect to all lease arrangerments in which it is the lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
manths or less (short-term leases) and leases of low-value assets. Payments associated with short term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value
(i) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable,

(ii) variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date,
(iii) amounts expected 1o be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees,

(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

(v) payments of peanltica for terminating the Icasc, if the leage term eefleets the Company exercising that option.

asis, Lease labiliti g lense payments:

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate Implicit in the lease, Ifthat rate ean not be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lesser's
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to boriow the funds necessary to oblain an asset of similar value to the right-af-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, seeurity and conditions.

The Company is exposed to potential future increase in variable lease payments based on anindex or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. The lease liability will
be reassessed and adjusted as & when such changes takes ¢ffect. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance eost. The finance tost s charged to the profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining lralance of the liability for each period. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use asset if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise am extension or a termination aption,

The right-of-use asscts comprise the initial measurement of the carresponding lease liability, lease payments made at o1 befote the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease tevm and useful life af the inderlying ascer

Lease liability and right-of-use asset (ROU) have been separately presemted in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash Mows.

2.17 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the nctual results, Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides ao overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assamptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

(ii} Critical jud t in determining the lease term
The Company determines the lease term on the basis of termination and renewal options in various lease contracts where the company applies its judgements. Refer note 3(b) for details.
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Tegn Tudustries Canada Ine
Noles o the Special Purpose Financial Information

Note 3(b): Right-of-Use Assetls

a) The company as a lessee

(Allamounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

The Company ‘s significant leasing anrangements include assets dedicated far use under long-term arrangements for Vehicles and Office Space. Lease of vehicle
have lease lerms between 3 1o 5 years and Office have lease Yerm of 5years. Lease lerms are negoliated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of

different lerms and Leases are

d a% a righl-of-use asset and a corresponding liability al ihe date at which the leased asset is available for use

by the compamy. For leases recognised under leng term aimangemenls involing use of a dedicated assel, non-lease components are excluded based on the

| terms and condi

underlying

b) gniscd in Bal

Sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Particulars

a1 March 2083

A1 March 2088

Right-of-use nssets

Office 147,004
Veliicle 20,655 |
Totnl 167,650

Particulars

g1 March2ozy

21 March 2022

Lense Liabilities

Current 76,137 49,064
Non-Current 164851 125,668
Total 240,988 174,682

c) Following are the changes in earrying valne of right-of-use assels

Particulars

Office BEquinment

Right-of-Use

Vehicle

Opening Balance as at 1 April zozz 192,574 94,834 287,408
Additionz during the year 46,568 80,218 126,786
Rarly Termination of ROU Assels - - -
Asse|s disposed [ discarded doring the year - - .
Balance as at 31 March 2023 239,142 175,052 414,194
Ac wilated depreciation as ut 1 April 2022 45,57¢ 74179 119,749
s or the yeire 45,590 9,538 55,128
Assets disposed / discnrdod during e year - =
Accumulnted deprecintion us at March 31, 2023 91,160 ¥3,717 174,877
147.982 91335 239,317

Total Right-of-Lse
Assels

Porticulnrs

Opening Balance as ata April 2021 (Al cost)
Additions during the year

Assets disposed/ discaided during the vear
Bulanee as st 31 March 2022 (At cost)

[ Acenmulited depreciation as at 1 April zozi
Chinrge for the year #

Assel=disposed/ discarded during the year
Aceunnilated deprecialion as at 31 March 2022

Carrying smount Balance us 0l 31 Marveh soos

Right-of-{Tse
Olfice Equipment
303,077

{110,503)
192,574

116,936

39,137
{110,508)

45570

147,004

Right-of-Use
Vehicle
92,019
26,533
{23,718)
94,834

49,250
24,929

74,179

20,655

Total Right-nf-Use
Assels
395,006
26,533
{1a4.am)
287,408

166,186
04,066

frio,mna)

119,749

167,654

# Included under Depreciation and Amarlisation expense (Refer Note z7)

(d) Following are the changes in earrying value of leage Habilities

Particalars

Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Finanee costs during Hie vear
Early Caneellation of keases

Lasaset praayan

Closing Balance

51 March 2033

F1 March 2020

174,68z 231,720
126,786 26,533
5,007 7,366
= {24.004)
s diring he vear (65.487) [GIET ]
240,088 174,662

d in the S of Profit and Loss

(el A r

The Statemen! of Profit and Loss shows the following amounts relating to leases;

Particalars March 2022

. Pepreciation chege of vight-of-use assets [(Refer Note =7) 64,066
1y, Pnterest expreinse (licludod in finance costs) (Refer Note 26) 7,366
¢, Expenses relating 1o short-term leases 57,546
{ineludod In other expenses) (Refer Note 28}

Total 100,531 128,978

{N The company had a total cash outflow of CAD 65,487 for leases for the year ended 31 March 2023,

(g} Extepsion and termination options

Extension and tetmination options are ineluded in the company 's lease contracts. Tliese are used fo inaximise operational Aexibility in terms of managing the

assels used in the company s operalions. In majority of the lease eontracts, the extension and termination aptions held are exey cisable by mutual consent of both
the lessor and the lessee and in few contiacts, (he option to terminate the lease is with lessee only
For determining the leasa teym Land, Plam & Machinery, office Space and Office Equipinents, the following factors are normally the nost relevant:

+ Ifthere are si cant petially pavinenls to terimiuate {or not extend), the

5 el
is typically

bly certain to exlk

« If any leasehold improvemenls are expected to have a signifieant

During the previous year the holding

tered into a long-ten

value, the I

lease for an office space w

1y is typically

d (or not terininate)

L1y vertain ta extend (or not terminate)
= Otherwise, the company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to replace the lessed asset.

ich contains furthier renewal oplions and only the holding

company can terminate the lease giving 6 months notice, Cansidering the above factors, the termination option wilh the holding company and the expected

period of use, the lease te1m has been determined as 60 yeavs which is shorter than the centractual duration

(h} Residuel velnc guamntees
There are no residual 1alue guarantees in relstion to any lease conlracts




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpese Financial Information

{All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)
Note; 4 Other financial assets - non current

Particulirs

31 Marvch 2023 31 March nonz
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Security Deposits

Total

450 4,030

4,030 4,030

Note: 5 Deferred tax assets (net)

Partienlars

31 March 2023 31 Murch 2022

The balanee comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred tax assets

Lease lighilities 63,862 46,291

f)i'hll-:}_léﬁin- amg difference 111,048 5160
Total 174,910 512400
Deferred tax liabilities

Right-of-Llse assets 13414 Adid 29

[Total 63,419 44.429

Deferred tax assets (net) 111,491 6,771
Retfer note 29 [or tax expenses




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information

Note: 6 Other non-current assets

I'articnlars

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses

(All amounts in CAD, unless ctherwise stated)

31 Mavcch 2023

31 March 2022

Total

Note: 7 Inventories

Particuluars

21 March 2023

31 March 2022

Stock in Trade - at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower (Net of provision for dimunition in value CAD 1,47,167 (31 March 2022 : CAD 30,838) 573,483 2,201,084
| Total 573,483 3,201,084

Note: 8 Trade receivables and contract assets

Trarticulars 31 March 2023 34 March 2022
urren

'I'raude Receivables

(a) Unsecured, censidered goed 2,545,277 3,087,405

(b) Credil impaired E 1,210
4.545,277 4,178,615

Allowance for credit lossesy ~. {G1,210)

Net Receivables 2,545,277 3,087,405

Contract assets

{a) Unsecured, considered good

Allowance for credit losses -

Nut Contract Assets - -

Tolal 2,545,277 3,087,405

Trade receivables ageing schedule: (i) As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due dalke of payment

Partdculurs - ] Lessthan 6 | 6 Months-1 =}iJ ] More than 3 )
ot Due Bonths year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Tota
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered geod -
Other than Related Party 2,049,586 495,415 - 276 2,545,277
Related Party -
(i) Tndispited Trade Recpivables - eredit impaired -
Other than Related Party - - - -
Retated Party -
(1iiy Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -
|ess: Credit impaired good ~
Cther than Related Party
Related Party -
‘Totat 2,040,586 405,415 - - - - 2,645,277

Trade receivables ageing schedule: (£) As at 21 Mareh 2022

Particulurs

Not Due

Outstandiag for (ollowing periods from due dute of payment

Less than 6

6 Months -1

1=Z ycars

2-3 years

More than 3

‘I'otal

{i) Undisputed Trade receivables - censidered pood
Other than Related Party
Related Party
(if) Undisputed Trade Receivables - eredit impaired
Other than Related Party
Related Party
fiii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
Less: Credit impaired good
Other than Related Party
Related Party

2,665,580

Months

421,425

year

73,894

14,987

2,329

years

3,087,405
91,210

Total

2,665,080

az21.425

72,894

14,087

2,229

2.178.615

Naote:

{i) There are no outstanding receivable due from directors or other officers of the company.

(ii) Refer note 31(A) for credit risk




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 9 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 1,251 500
Balances with banks

In current accounts 282,213 1,448,112
Total 283,465 1,448,612

Naote: 10 Current tax assets (net)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Advanee Income Tax (Net of Provision for Income Tax) 201,644
Total 201,644 -

Note: 11 Other current assets

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 36,917 32,631
Employee advances 27,771 18,291
Total 64,6088 50,023




Tega Industries Canada Inc

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 12 Equity share capital

{a) Authorised share capital

Nuniber of

Farticulars e Amnount
As ol 1 April 2oz Unlimited Unlimited
Changes during the year - -
Ax al 31 March 202z Unlimited Unlimited
Changes during the period - -

IMI at 31 March zazg Unlimited Unlimited

(h) Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid -up Shares

Number of

e hares Amount

50,000

As at 1 April 2021
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2022 50,000 50,000
Changes during the period = =

As al 31 March 2022 50,000 50,000

{c) Equity shares held by the holding company

3 As AL 31 March 2003 As al 31 March 2oz
gauallaz . % holding No. 2a luolding
Ordinary Shares
Tega Industries Limited 50,000 100.00% 50,000 100.00%

(d) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares of the company

W As aL 31 March 2023 Asal 31 March 2022
S0 RGECTE D : % holding No. . %holding
Ordinary Shares

Tega [ndustries Limited 100.00%

(e) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has one class of equity shares having par value of CAD 1. All shares are fully paid up.The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and aie entitled to one
vote at meeting of the Company. In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary sharehclders are entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of Ordinary Shares held Ly the share holders,

() Shares held by the promaters : (i) As at 315t March 2023

% change during

Promoter name No. of shares %.0f tolal shares T
the period

Ordinary Shares
Tega Industries Limited 50,000 100.00% NIL

(ii) As at 31st March 2022

2 change during

o ;
Pronioler name Ne. of shares %sof total Khares the perioil

Ordinary Shares
Tega Industries Limited 50,000 100,00% MNIL




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(Al amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 13 Other equity

Particulars Refer below 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Retained earnings i 1,445,141 1,748,232
Total 1,445:141 1,748,232

Pavticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(i) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the period 1,748,232 980,270
Profit for the year (303,091) 707,062
Balance at the end of the year 1,445,141 1,748,232

Nature and purpose of other equity
(i) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profit that the Compatty has eartied till date, less any transfer to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes Lo the Special Purpose Finaneial Information
{All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 14 Borrowings - Non current

Secured 3¢ March a4 31 March 2022
Secured
Vehicle loans from banks (Refer (a) below} 56,652 24,103
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note 15) (10,665) (12,288)

{a} Vehicle loans are secured by hypathecation of the vehicle purchased. The loan of CAD 24,103 as
at 31 March 2022 was squared up during the year. The loan of CAD 56,652 is repayable in equal
monthly instalments of CAD 913.75 each npta 30 May, 2028.

Total Secnred Borrowings §.687 11,815
Unsecured
Term Loans (Refer (b) below)* 60,000 58,529
Less: Current Maturities of Lang Term Debt (Refer Note 15) (60,000) {58.529)

- RBC Credit Line under Canada Emergency Business Account
{b) The loan is interest free upto 315t December, 2023 (extended from 31st December, 2022) and is
eligible for forgiveness of CAD 20,000, if the balance amount of CAD 40,000 is repaid by the said
date.

Total Unsecured Borrowings - -

Total 45,687 11,815




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 15 Borrowings - current

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured
Cash Credit from Banks (Refer (a) below) - -
Term Loan 60,000 58,529
Secured
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt
Vehicle loan from banks 10,965 12,288
Total 70,965 70,817




Tegn Tudustries Canada Inc

Notes to the Special Purpose Fimnedal Information
{All amounts im CAD, unless utherwise stated)

Note: 16 Trade payables

Particalars guMnarch zoag A Mareh zozs

Total outstanding dues of erediturs other than wivre enterpises and small enterprises

B Acceplimoes
{ii] Others 1,265,718 4,416,576

| 1l 1,265,713 [ LT I

Trade puyvabiles sgelg sehedule: (1) As al g Marveh sazg

Outstanding for followiig periods from due date of payment

Purticnlars Ti
nhilled Not Dy Less than 1 T yents | [Exaseare Aoee than 3
Due year = Years

() Undisputed totu] nulstanding tues of micro al small enterprises
(k) Undisputed totul outstunding dues of ereditors other than micio and small cater prises

Cther than Relsted Party 5793 73,573 - 79,356
Related Party 1,186,357 - 1,186,357
(¢} Disputed dues of micrn und small enterprises - - - - .

() Disputed total vutstunding dues of evediters ollier than miers and small enterprises

5,783 LE50.030 = - = =

Outstanding far following periods frem due date of payment
Particulars =l -
articula Unbilled Not D e Lessthans el More than 3
Drue ear

la) Undisputed total outstanding dues of micro and smull enterprises

(b} Undisputed total outstanding duex of ereditors other than mice and simall enlerprises

Other than Related Purty 27,346 71401 5562 104,300
Reluted Party 2,138,719 2,173,550 4,312,268

() Disputed dues of micro and smusll enterprises -
(I} Disputed total outstanding dues of eveditors ether than micro and small enter prises.
1 27,346 8,210,120 2,179,112 - - - 4,416,577 |

Notet 17 Other finanelal liabilities- cnrrent

Partienlars At March gozy A1 March 2ome

Other payaliles

mployee elated Hahilitics 162472 247
(i
162472 g, g8

Nole: 18 Provisions - enppent

Particolars .' i g1 Mareh 2oag 41 Mareh 20us

Provision fer employee benefits
Prosvision fior compernmite] absences pa5 32,350
Tatal 4253 aza09 |

Nate: 19 Current tax lisbilities (1.et)

March zozz

of ibanie) 1065377
= 165,177

for inoomme g

Naoles 20 Other current linbilities

FParticulurs a1 March 2023 &1 March zoon

Aul reevived fiom Bazabe 84,093
Uitlier: paynbles
Stalutory ducs {Contribution to PF and ESIC, GST, Withholding Taxes, Entry Tax, ete,) 99,989 68,160

Tertinl Q2,140 152,100 |




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information

(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)
Note: 21 Revenue from operations

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations
Sale of products 9,449,530 13,060,269

Total 9,449,530 13,060,269

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

The company derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services in the following geographical regions:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
CANADA 9:449.530 13,000,260
Total 9,449,530 13,060,269

(ii) The company has recognised the following revenue-related contract assets and liabilities:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total contract assets - -
Contract liabilities - Advance from customers 823,160 84,033
Total contract liabiiities 823,160 84,033

(iii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

Particulars : . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liahilities balance at the beginning
of e period:

Sale contracls s 84,033 120,550
" These untullilled obligations are expected (o be settled within the next 12 months.

Note: 22 Other income

Particulars 31 March zo23 31 March zoz22
(a) Interest income
on financial instruments at amortised cost - 4
{b) Other non-operating income
Government grant on account of Covid-19 6,671 211,138
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translations 6,331 (54,999)
Miscellaneous receipts 12,456 48,382
Total 25,458 204,525




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information

(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 23 Purchase of Stock in Trade

Particulars 321 March 2023 31 March 2022

6,045,285 10,107,321

Purchases

Total 6,045,285 10,107,321

Note: 24 Changes in inventories of stock in trade

Particulars . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 ..

Inventories at the end of the yera:

Stock in trade 573,483 2,201,084
573,483 2,201,084

Less : Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Stock in trade 2,201,084 2,126,264
2,201,084 2,120,204

Increase)/decrease in stock 1n trade 1,627,601 74,820
( ! i k i d 627,6 (74,820)

(Increase)/decrease in stock in trade 1,627,601 (74,820)




Tega Industries Canada Ine¢
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 25 Employee benefits expense

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Salaries and wages 997,163 1,005,086
Contribution to pension and other funds 83,744 73,587
Staff welfare expenses 68,107 62,046
Total 1,149,014 1,141,619

Note: 26 Finance costs

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense on
Leases 5,007 7,366
Bank Borrowings and Others 2,724 7,107
Total 7,731 14,473

Note: 27 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Particulars Wliin ! e ) [ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment [refer note 3(a)i 26,576 28,408
Depreciation of Right of Use of Asset [refer note 3{b)] 55,128 64,066
Amortisation of intangible assets [refer note 3(d)] - 160
Total 81,704 92,724

Note: 28 Other expenses

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Rent 46,396 57,546
Repairs to others 8,665 12,689
Insurance expenses 52,514 53,497
Bank charges 8,878 8,789
Rates and taxes 32 142
Travelling and conveyance 515,977 230,107
Packing and forwarding (net) - 146,714
Postage, telephone and fax 30,334 28,342
Sales promotion expenses 63,107 16,211
Subeontract 69,325 92,128
Professional fees 49,999 30,347
13,641 160,456
Allowance for expected credit loss (including bad debts and advances written off) [refer note 311
Miscellancous expenses 105,579 90,561
Total 964,445 927,831
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Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 30 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

31 March 2023 31 March zo22

Particulors

FVTPL Amortised cost FVITPL Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 2,545,277 3,087,405
Cash and cash equivalents 283,465 1,448,612
Other financial assets 4,030 4,030
Total iinancial assets 2,832,772 4,540,047
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 116,652 82,631
Trade payables 1,265,713 4,416,576
Other fibancial Uabilities 162,472 211,487
‘Total financial liabilities 1,544,838 4,712,695




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 31 Financial risk management
The company ’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk}.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk:

Exposure arising from Management

Credit risk Cash and  cash  equivalents, trade]Diversification  of  bank  deposits  and
receivables and contract assets and otherfinvestments. Enlering inlo transactions with
Hinancial assets measured at amortisedfeustomers of repute / customers having sound
cosl, finaneial position.

Liquidity risk Financial liabilities that are settled by|Projecting cash flows and considering the level of|
delivering cash or another financial asset. [ligquid assets necessary to meet the liabilities.

Market risk — foreign exchange Future ¢commercial transactions and Entering into forward contracts, options and
recognised financial assets and liabilities [interest rate swaps.
not denominated in Indian rupee (INR). :

Mariket risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates.  |Entering into derivative comtracts such as
interest rate swaps and currency swaps,

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or eustomer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and contract assets) including deposits with banks,
investments and other financial instruments. The company periodically monitors the recoverability and credit risks of its other financial assets
including security deposits and other receivables.

i) Trade receivables and contract assets
Customer credit risk is managed by the management subject to the compzny 's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Trade receivables and contract assets are non-interest bearing. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

At each reporting date the company measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on historical trend industry practice and the
business environment in which the company operates.

ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and investments is managed by the company in accordance with the company s policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The company s maximutn exposure to credit risk for the compenents of the balaace sheet at 31 March 2023 is the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets, investments, balances with bank and other financial assets.

Provision for expected credit loss

In determination of the allowance for credit losses on receivables, the company has used a practical experience by computing the expected credit
losses based on provision matrix, which has taken into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward leoking information. The
company also analyses all its receivables periodically for recoverability assessment and wherever they have analysed that the receivable may be
credit impaired on account of non recoverability, loss allowance on such receivables have been provided in full.

Details of allowances for expected credit loss are provided hereunder ;-

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2zo22

At the beginning of the year 91,210 2,329
Provisions created/ (written back) during the period (net)(a) (91.210) 88.881
Closing at the end of the year - 91,210
Bad debts and advances written off (b) 104,851 71,575

Total Charge to Statement of Profit & Loss (a+b} 13,641 160,456
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Tega Industrics Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information

(All amounts in CAT}, unless otherwise stated}
Note: 31 Financial risk management (continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The eompany 's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates velates primarily to the company ’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

The company s main interest rate risk avises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the compatyy to cash flow interest rate risk.

The company s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

{a) Interest rate risk exposure

On Financial Liabilities:
The exposure of the company s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows;

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2zozz

Variable rate borrowings -

Fixed rate borrowin,Es 116,652 82,631
Total horrowings 116,652 82,631 |
(b) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings ns o result of changes in interest rotes os below:

Interest expense rates — increase by 50 basis points (50 bps)* - -
Interest expense rates — decrense by 50 basis points (50 bps)® ~ =
* Holding all other variables constant




Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in CAD, unless otherwise stated)
Hote: 31 Fi fal risk gement (continued)
(C) Market risk

(i} Foreign currency risk
The company deals with foreign currency bank accounts, trade receivables and contract assets, borrowings, trade payables and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange 1isk associated with exchange rate movement,

The company operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales in overseas and purchases
from overseas suppliers in various foreign cwrrencies. Foreign cusrency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods, commodities and services in the Lespective enrrencies. The company
primarily uses derivatives to hedge its risk against foreign currency balances of borrowings, trade payables, trade receivables and contract assets. Such exposures are managed within approved policy parameters
utilising foreign exchange forward contracts and options. Further, the company also has variable interest rate loan in foreign currency. To manage its risk against interest rate movements the company has taken an
interest rate swap. The company also enter into derivative contracts to hedge forecast sales and purchase transactions using forward contracts.

Forelgn currency risk exposure
The company s exposure to foreign currency risk for major currencies at the end of the reporting period expressed in USD (foreign currency amount muktiplied by closing rate), are as follows:-

31 March 2023

Particulars B usp

Financial assets
‘Trade receivables and contract assets

Other than Related Party 556,369
Bank balances 154,950
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) - - - 711,318 - - -

Financial liabilities

Trade and other pavables

Third Party {142)

Related Party - (771,806)
Net exposure to foreign carrency risk (abiliti

L - OGRS = = = (771,948) = = .
Net exposure - - - (60,6:24) - = -

: 31 March 2022
Particulars UShH GHS

Financial nssets
‘Trade recelvables and contract assets

Other tian Relaled Paily 23,947
|Bank balances 507,494
Net exposure to foreign currency risk {assets) - - - 621,439 = ) -

Financial liabilities

‘Trade and other payables
Related Party (356,309)

Nel exposure Lo foreign currency Tisk (liabilities)

< - = (356,309) < = -

—
Nel exposure = - - 205,130 - = =

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments,

Impact on profit before tax

Particulars EUR UsD

4t March 2023

CAD appreciates by 5%* - - - 3031 - £ :
CAD depreciates Ly 5%° - - - (3,041} - - -
41 Mapch 2022

CAD appreciates by 5% . - - (13,257) = = =
CAD depreciites by 5%° - 18,257 = - :

* Holding all ofher varinbles constant
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Tega Industries Canada Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in CAT), unless otherwise stated)

Note: 34 Parnings per share

Particulars g1 March 2023 31 March 2022

Computation of Earnings for Equity Shares

A Net Profit attributable to the shareholders of the company -303,091 767,962
B Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period other than which are dilutive 50,000 . 50,000
(%] Effect of equity shares which are dilutive

D = (B+C) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period (dilutive) 50,000 50,000

Earnings per equtty share

A/B Earnings per share - Basic {6.06) 15.36
ASD Earnings per share - Diluted {6.06) 15.36




LSEgRTT

00F0E'0L
Er50g8boR‘S

[BIeL

LETHL

96E'6

QzTT'6LIT

Potiol
oTH*S6.'S

"TdHL

sa[qeded apeiL
Saounog

asuadxy soareg Woddng ssoutsng
sasuadxy jJo Areacosy
Spo0Q) Jo aseng

SIE[MAIeJ

:£z0%T YoJB[y 1€ 18 Se SUIpuEe)sino saoueeq pue £20% Yodely 1€ papua pouad 91 40] suonaesuel] Alied paje|ad Jo spelaq

JumaFRUE]Y 217 AQ PAUIIUApT Uaaq aARy sarded pajeiay 10N

(pale1s aSLMIRTIO SS3[UTL (V) UI SPUNOLTE [[V)

(uontsog predup)) exueyoy [y
(uonisod preduf)) eueqol Yeqoy uepel

(patmur] ssLnsnpu] e9s] JO s1njuaa juior) peymury (erpuj) juswdinby yosop]

(£z0% ‘62 Ya1epy ojdn £Z0zT ‘20 Iaquada( Ja'm Aeprsqng ) parun] sjead Jusmdinby efag,

(€z0T ‘6z yoIel o ATEIpISqns aq 0] pasea) pue £z0T bz Areniqs Uo AIEIpIsqng SwWessq) ‘PIT 1ad BIpu] ASo[ouysa, [BI9UIl 3 [20D AT

_ (£30% ‘bz Aneniqay 7a'm ATe1pisqng) paanur] Suussuriuy 1lefes A[ENOW
g ‘)Y'S Mg Wnpopy
314D Y5 Wnpopy

(5011 vds 21y setnsnpuf e8],

(1dVLL) ®13V [IN0S ‘pr] A4 edLyy satnsnpuf 23a,
(TdVSLL) =LYV [UOS ‘PYT A4 B0LY [Nog Jusunsaaaf eda],
(ALJHL) eNensty ‘I A4 sSupjoy eda,

(TdT) eIEOSOY ‘pIT 414 waSnso

(20T “F1 HQUBAON 35 M AIRIPISQNG 5 01 Pasea)) (TI1) Sewsyesy ‘pojiury Jusunsaauy e3ay,
(1LSIQL) PSeIg BPIWIT SOUYIA], SONATIG [15eag o B3],
(TIVLL) BIensIY ‘Y] A4 Bensny sainsnpu] e331,

(youeag nuag e3a], Jurpnpour) (LTLJHI) "PI1 23 sSuIpjoH ela)

(I1L) ¥$11 ‘ou] sernsnpuy eda) |

(P3MUITT 3JEAL] SIS [EOSL [EYIN JO ATerpISqu) (TLL) PRI sarusnpuy egay,

(erpuy ur payerodiodn]) PARWIrT ALl SSIALS [EISIH [RYIN
saned paead Jo somueN

(JIADD) [PUU0SIag JUIIERURTY A2

IMUIA JUIOf

SOUELIpISquE Mo[[o4
Auedwo) SwpjoH

Ameduro) SurpjoH 2yeurgin

diysuonefag 3o uondiiasag
isanud pajelaa Jo s[relaq

19€ 2y} Jopun paquinsaad ¥z gy pu] 03 Juensand 21nso[asip £11ed pare[ay

uonpesuwel], A1red pajeay FE 10N

uonewou] feroueul] ssoding yerads sqi 03 sa10N
ouj epeue) satysnpuj esa],



e owm/nbg 2TT/SOCY ey

€10 N..pvrﬁrz 0Z :oeq
BIE[CY © 20'[d
1031 lopang

A 952150 "oN digsequapy
n 1ojeudeag

(VI ME&D&

i

83019331 JO pIvog JO JIEY3q U0 PUE I0] SIIRID0SSY T YSAING U0 I0]

"SAlIBIIYBUAY STEWT[] I JO JIEYS( uo SI[ 371 20 ALIMdas ‘ssauerend Aue spuoid (1)

10 (saurepyausy ajewnn) A8 Surpunyg ST Jo JEYsq U0 10 4Q J9A208]eTm JOUURT AUE U paynuap! SeORUS 10 sU0s19d I9I0 Ul IS9AUL 10 PUI] ARIRIIPUL 10 AR0A1Ip (1)

‘[reys dnoig oy 1243 (9SIMITII0

10 Suniim Uf papIooal oyaym) Surpurisispun aig s (A1eg Surpuny) sagnue uSiesoy Surpnpu {(sar)iguae 1o (s)uosrad Aue mor) punj AuR paeoal Jeaf snolard pue Ik s Suunp jou sey Auweduro) syt
‘SaLIBIOeURY 2B ST} JO J[BYSQ UO 10 0} 31| 81 L0 ALmoas ‘sajuerens Lme spracid (in)

10 (seLepyauayg yewh(n) Auedaio]) SuF Jo JEYaq UC 10 Aq JAAR0S]EIM JSUTENI Ale Ul PEYIIapI SeONUs I0 sUosiad IS0 Ul 1SaAUl J0 pua] ARaaxrpur Jo Apaallp (1)

“reys ATEIpa=Iaiuy a1 Tey) (3SIMIAT0 JO TUnLLm Ul PEPIesl Iays) Supuelsrapun oy [ (Salrelpawlnu]) ssnnua ufitalo) Surpniot ‘(sennua

10 (s)uosiad 12130 LUe 03 (SPUTY JO PUD 10 §30IN0S I8Y)0 AUE 10 wniwald areys 10 SPUI PamoLIoq 93 SPUIY PejSaAtl 10 PAUEO] 10 padueape 1eaf snoward pue read sy Fuunp jou sey Awedwoy) ayg,

LE :aq0N

“1B9A [913URUY A1) SULIND ADUSLIND [BNMILA I¢ ADUALINY 01GAID) UL PAISIAUL 10 Papell 10U sey Auedwio) syL,

fouariny aydLxn ur uonorsurI] 9L 210N

‘€10z PV sdpuedulo) A I9pU Jo yonns sapueduiod Aue [HIm SIRLINIAS U] SHUDULSIANT Furpnoug saoueeq SUTPURISING /SUQYIRSURT] AUR 2ARY J0U $20p Aueduwro]) ay7,

sonueduma) Jyo ypnng s digsuoneay € 10N

69z'zILY 69zz1EY sa|qeded opei],

riarasy
681 681 sasuadxy sowarag woddng ssaursng
180°g5e 180'95% sasuadxy jo A1a4009y
2L9°TPY°6 84996 SpOOE) JO BSEYIITY

=10, LSHAL 8oL G "IdVIL ‘1AL ILL SIR[MNIB]

Zz0%T YodRY 1€ 18 ST BUIpUR]SIN0 S9OUR|e( pUE TZ0Z Yoaejy 1€ papus 1ead aij] 10] suocnoesurn Aded pajujas jo m:.mun.h—.

(Po1¥1Ss ISIMIDYJ0 SSe[UN ‘(¥ UT SPIMOUre [[¥) uogeurioju] [eroweuy asoding rewadg ayl 03 sajoN
uj peuR) saLnsnpuy eSa],



ANNEXURE C




Iega Industries Australia Pty Lic

ABN 72 100 864 944

Special Purpose Financial Report

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

Lontents

Compilation Report

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes to the Financial Statements

Directors' Declaration

Detailed Operating Statement

16

17



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

Lomplation Repart

We have compiled the accompanying special purpose financial statements of Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The specific purpose for which the special purpose financial statements have been prepared is set out in Note 1.

THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd are solely responsible for the information contained in the special purpose
financial statements, the reliability, accuracy and completeness of the information and for the determination that the basis of
accounting used is appropriate to meet their needs and for the purpose that financial statements were prepared.

OUR RESPONSIBILITY

On the basis of information provided by the Directors of Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd we have compiled the accompanying
special purpose financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting as described in Note 1 to the financial statements
and APES 315 Compilation of Financial Information.

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to compile these financial statements in accordance with the
basis of accounting described in Note 1 to the financial statements. We have complied with the relevant ethical requirements of
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

Our procedures use accounting expertise to collect, classify and summarise the financial information, which the Directors
provided, in compiling the financial statements. Our procedures do not include verification or validation procedures. No audit or
review has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed.

The special purpose financial statements were compiled exclusively for the benefit of the Directors of Tega Industries Australia
Pty Ltd.

To the extent permitted by law, we do not accept liability for any loss or damage that any person, other than Tega Industries
Australia Pty Ltd, may suffer arising from any negligence on our part.

No person should rely on the special purpose financial statements without having an audit or review conducted.

Lpnicsren Vavea

KPMG
Dated: 16-Jun-2023

©2023 KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International
Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name, logo and "cutting through complexity" are registered trademarks
or trademarks of KPMG International Limited.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Page 3 0of 18



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

stalement of Profit or LosS and Other Gomprenensive INcome

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Revenue
Cost of Sales
GROSS PROFIT

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Employment Expenses

Financing Costs

Impairment Losses

Other Operating Expenses
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income Tax

PROFIT/(LOSS)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Mar 2023

Note $

2 8,055,813
(6,760,896)
1,294,917
(31,820)
(663,046)
(244,457)
(621,649)
(266,054)
79,389
(186,665)
(186,665)

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Mar 2022

$

10,684,333
(8,601,364)
2,082,969
(565,591)
(708,848)
(213)

(549,006)
769,312

130,897
900,209

900,209

Page 4 of 18



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

stalement of Hnanclal Position

As at 31 March 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Receivables
Inventories

Other Current Assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Deferred Tax Assets

Other Non Current Assets
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Other Payables
Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share Capital

Retained Earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

Note

D o~ W

10
11

Mar 2023

$

585,243
1,391,637
521,773
11,508
2,510,061

133,203
355,605

488,808
2,998,869

1,088,947
49,899
1,138,846

60,099
60,099
1,198,945
1,799,923

85,000
1,714,923
1,799,923

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Mar 2022

$

465,808
2,867,740
795,279
14,500
4,143,326

186,376
276,216

1,767
464,358

4,607,684

2,506,051
59,636
2,565,687

55,408
55,408
2,621,095
1,986,589

85,000

1,901,589
1,986,589

Page 5 of 18



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

stalement of Chandes In Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Capital Retai.ned Total Equity
Earnings

$ $ $

BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2021 85,000 1,001,380 1,086,380
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit for the Year - 900,209 900,209

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - 900,209 900,209

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2022 85,000 1,901,589 1,986,589
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit/(Loss) for the Year - (186,665) (186,665)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - (186,665) (186,665)

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2023 85,000 1,714,923 1,799,923

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 6 of 18



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

NOLes [0 e Hnancidl statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 1 Accounting Policies
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd (‘the Company"), is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company is not publicly accountable nor a reporting entity. The special purpose financial
statements have been prepared for distribution to the Shareholders.

The Company is a for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Unless otherwise noted, the special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition,
measurement and classification aspects of all applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

The financial statements do not include the disclosure requirements of applicable AASB's, except for the following:

° AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements (excluding cash flow statements)

o AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

° AASB 1048: Interpretation of Standards

The financial statements do not comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements were approved by the Directors on the same date as the signing of the Directors' declaration.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs unless otherwise stated in
the notes.

FUNCTIONAL & PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES & JUDGEMENTS

The Directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and
best available current information.

Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both
externally and within the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no events subsequent to the end of the reporting date to the date of issue of this report.
INCOME TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relate to
items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income ("OCI").

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax liability arising from dividends.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 7 of 18



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

NOLes [0 e Hnancidl statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the Company expects,
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related benefit will be realised.

Tax Exposures

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Company takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and
whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series
of judgements about future events. New information may become available that causes the Company to change its judgement
regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a
determination is made.

Deferred tax consequences relating to a non-monetary asset carried at fair value are determined using the assumption that the
carrying amount of the asset will be recovered through sale.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation
and impairment.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment excluding freehold land, is depreciated over the asset's useful life to the Company commencing
when the asset is ready for use.

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over their estimated useful life.
LEASES

The Company initially applied AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 17 and AASB Interpretation 4.

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease
in AASB 16.

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, on or after 1 April 2019.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 8 of 18



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

NOLes [0 e Hnancidl statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

AS A LESSEE

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of
the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or
the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset
will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurements of the lease liability comprise the following:
o fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

o the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of
a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or it is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Non-lease components

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company has chosen to combine lease and
any associated non-lease components and account for them as lease components.

AS A LESSOR

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
as part of 'rental income'.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 9 of 18



Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 72 100 864 944

NOLes [0 e Hnancidl statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
)  RECOGNITION AND INITIAL MEASUREMENT

Unless otherwise noted below, all financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not measured at Fair Value through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

The exception to this is a trade receivable without a significant financing component which is initially measured at its transaction
price.

[) CLASSIFICATION AND SUBSEQUENT MOVEMENT

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at:

. Amortised cost;

° Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment;
o FVOCI - equity investment; or

o FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:
o It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

° Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

o Itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and
o Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held on the basis of
different classes of assets. The objectives of the business are considered when determining the business model type.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 10 of 18
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Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest, are recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced
by any impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt instruments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A Financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified
as held-for-trading it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period the Company determines whether there is evidence of impairment indicator for non-financial
assets.

Where this indicator exists and regardless for goodwill, indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not yet available for
use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cash-generating unit (CGU)
is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use. Value in use
is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment loss, except for
goodwill.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of
the reporting period.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 11 of 18
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PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

REVENUE & OTHER INCOME

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.

The following provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with
customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

A) SALE OF GOODS

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered and have been accepted by customers at their premises. For contracts that
permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

Therefore, the amount of revenue recognised is adjusted for expected returns.

Customers obtain control of products when the goods are delivered and have been accepted at their premises. Invoices are
generated at that point in time.

B) RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue is recognised over time if:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the Company performs;
° The customer controls the asset as the Company creates or enhances it; or

o The Company's performance does not create an asset for which they have an alternative use and there is an enforceable
right to payment for performance to date.

C) INTEREST REVENUE

Interest revenue is recognised when received.

D) OTHER INCOME

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.
GOODS AND SERVICES TAX (GST)

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement
of Financial Position.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 12 of 18
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COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 13 of 18
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Mar 2023 Mar 2022

Note $ $
Note 2 Revenue and Other Income
REVENUE
Interest received - 7
Other revenue 162,209 141,922
Foreign currency exchanges (21,147) (24,255)
Gain on sale of assets 379 -
Sales 7,914,372 10,566,660
TOTAL REVENUE 8,055,813 10,684,333
Note 3 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cheque account 585,243 465,808
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 585,243 465,808
Note 4 Trade and Other Receivables
CURRENT
Sundry Debtors 1,500 1,369
TRADE DEBTORS
Trade Debtors 1,634,494 3,007,088
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (244,457) (140,718)
TOTAL TRADE DEBTORS 1,390,037 2,866,370
TOTAL CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1,391,537 2,867,740
Note 5 Inventories
Stock on Hand 619,483 892,989
Less Provision for Obsolete Stock (97,710) (97,710)
TOTAL INVENTORIES 521,773 795,279
Note 6 Other Assets
CURRENT
Prepayments 11,508 14,500
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 11,508 14,500
NON CURRENT
Deposits paid - 1,767
TOTAL OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS - 1,767
Note 7 Property, Plant and Equipment
OFFICE FITOUT
Office fitout 500 47,792
Less accumulated depreciation (312) (15,537)
TOTAL OFFICE FITOUT 188 32,254

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Page 14 of 18
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EQUIPMENT AND FURNITURE
Equipment and furniture

Less accumulated depreciation

TOTAL EQUIPMENT AND FURNITURE
MOTOR VEHICLES

Motor vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation

TOTAL MOTOR VEHICLES

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note 8 Trade and Other Payables
CURRENT

Advanced customer deposits

Trade Creditors

Other payables

Goods and services tax

FBT payable

PAYG Withheld

TOTAL CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note 9 Provisions

CURRENT

Provision for annual leave
Provision for payroll tax

TOTAL CURRENT PROVISIONS
PROVISIONS

Provision for long service leave
TOTAL PROVISIONS

Note 10 Share Capital

Opening balance
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL

Note 11 Retained Earnings

Opening Balance
Current Year Earnings
TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS

Mar 2023
Note $

188,009
(114,144)
73,866

231,466
(172,316)
59,150
133,203

73,612
821,854
78,334
102,582
6,041
6,524
1,088,947

50,851
(952)
49,899

60,099
60,099

85,000
85,000

1,901,589
(186,665)
1,714,923

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Mar 2022
$

196,394
(117,781)
78,613

231,466
(155,957)
75,509
186,376

109,519
2,094,736
109,247
175,651
5,768
11,130
2,506,051

56,401
3,235
59,636

55,408

55,408

85,000
85,000

1,001,380
900,209
1,901,589
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Jrectors Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of Tega Industries Australia Pty Ltd (the "Company"):

a)  The Company is not publicly accountable nor a reporting entity;
The financial statements and notes, as set out in these financial statements, are prepared in accordance with the basis of

bl accounting described in Note 1, and other mandatory reporting requirements, so as to present fairly the financial position
of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and its performance, as represented by the results of its operations for the financial
year ended on that date; and

o) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due

and payable.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 the Company has:
a) Kept such accounting records as to correctly record and explain its transactions and financial position;

b)  Kept its accounting records so that a true and fair financial report of the Company can be prepared from time to time;
and

c) Kept its accounting records so that the financial report of the Company can be conveniently and properly audited or
reviewed in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Wpa -

Satyamurti Joe Viranna

Director
Date:  13.06.2023

Page 16 of 18
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REVENUE
Interest received
Other revenue

Foreign currency exchanges

Gain on sale of assets
Sales
TOTAL REVENUE

COST OF SALES
Opening Stock

Closing Stock
Purchases

TOTAL COST OF SALES
GROSS PROFIT
GROSS PROFIT %
EXPENSES

Advertising & Marketing
Bad Debts Written Off
Bank Charges
Consultancy Fees
Contract work
Depreciation

Donations

Electricity

Employees' Amenities
Freight & Cartage
Fringe Benefits Tax
Insurance

Interest Paid

Motor vehicle expenses
Payroll Tax

Printing & Stationery
Professional Fees

Rent

Repairs & Maintenance
Salaries & Wages
Other

Staff Training & Welfare
Sundry Expenses

Fixed Assets Write Off

Superannuation Contributions

Telephone
Travelling Expenses
Hire Charges
Uniforms

Mar 2023

$

162,209
(21,147)
379
7,914,372
8,055,813

892,989
(619,483)
6,487,390
6,760,896
1,294,917
16.07%

63,094
244,457
781
7,900
31,820
640
1,591
910
2,183
24,682
17,817
44,823
30,160
1,244
4,268
69,628
6,076
555,009
262,089
422

40
35,312
53,196
10,280
72,497
16,390
822

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Mar 2022

$

7

141,922
(24,255)
10,566,660
10,684,333

1,262,051
(892,989)
8,232,302
8,601,364
2,082,969
19.50%

50,664
548
211,746
545
55,591
1,730
838
232
23,072
18,059
213
36,817
59,611
2,444
26,759
20,950
14,149
575,741
58,447
10,092

50,424
10,519
80,880

1,768

Page 17 of 18
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Entertainment expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Mar 2023

$
2,842

1,560,972
(266,054)

These statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Mar 2022

$

1,820
1,313,657
769,312

Page 18 of 18
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Tega Holdings Pty Ltd
ABN 16 147 692 840

Gompiation Report

We have compiled the accompanying special purpose financial statements of Tega Holdings Pty Ltd which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

The specific purpose for which the special purpose financial statements have been prepared is set out in Note 1.

THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of Tega Holdings Pty Ltd are solely responsible for the information contained in the special purpose
financial statements, the reliability, accuracy and completeness of the information and for the determination that
the basis of accounting used is appropriate to meet their needs and for the purpose that financial statements were
prepared.

OUR RESPONSIBILITY

On the basis of information provided by the Directors of Tega Holdings Pty Ltd we have compiled the accompanying
special purpose financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting as described in Note 1 to the
financial statements and APES 315 Compilation of Financial Information.

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to compile these financial statements in
accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 1 to the financial statements. We have complied with
the relevant ethical requirements of APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

Our procedures use accounting expertise to collect, classify and summarise the financial information, which
the Directors provided, in compiling the financial statements. Our procedures do not include verification or validation
procedures. No audit or review has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed.

The special purpose financial statements were compiled exclusively for the benefit of the Directors of Tega Holdings
Pty Ltd.

To the extent permitted by law, we do not accept liability for any loss or damage that any person, other than Tega
Holdings Pty Ltd, may suffer arising from any negligence on our part.

No person should rely on the special purpose financial statements without having an audit or review conducted.

Lpnicsren Vavea

KPMG

Dated:l6—]un—2023

©2023 KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name, logo and "cutting
through complexity" are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International Limited.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Page 3 of 15



Tega Holdings Pty Ltd
ABN 16 147 692 840

statement of Profit or Loss and Other Gomprenensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Mar 2023 Mar 2022
$ $
Other Operating Expenses (11,291) (12,416)
Interest Income 2 4
Less: Interest Expense (405,115) (594,631)
Loss before Income Tax (416,405) (607,043)
Income Tax 124,921 184,662
Loss after Income Tax (291,484) (422,381)

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report. Page 4 of 15



Tega Holdings Pty Ltd
ABN 16 147 692 840

statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets

Total Current Assets
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Deferred Tax Assets

Total Non Current Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables

Total Current Liabilities
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Total Non Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

EQUITY

Share Capital
Retained Earnings

Total Equity

a b~ WN

Mar 2023
$

20,809
6,200
13,879,113
22,297

13,928,419

3,323
3,323
13,931,742

859,657
859,657

7,146,163
7,146,163
8,005,820
5,925,922

5,000
5,920,922

5,925,922

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Mar 2022
$

111,957
411,838
13,879,113
3,718

14,406,626

150,943
150,943
14,557,569

1,194,000
1,194,000

7,146,163
7,146,163
8,340,163
6,217,406

5,000
6,212,406

6,217,406

Page 5 of 15



Tega Holdings Pty Ltd
ABN 16 147 692 840

slatement of Changes In tauity

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Balance at 1 April 2021

Profit/(Loss) for the Year
Balance at 31 March 2022

Profit/(Loss) for the Year
Balance at 31 March 2023

Share Capital

$

5,000

5,000

5,000

Retained
Earnings

$

6,634,787

(422,381)
6,212,406

(291,484)
5,920,922

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Total Equity

$

6,639,787

(422,381)
6,217,406

(291,484)
5,925,922

Page 6 of 15



Tega Holdings Pty Ltd
ABN 16 147 692 840

NOtes 10 the Financlal Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 1 Accounting Policies

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Tega Holdings Pty Ltd ("the Company"), is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company is not publicly accountable nor a reporting entity. The special
purpose financial statements have been prepared for distribution to the Shareholders.

The Company is a for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Unless otherwise noted, the special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
recognition, measurement and classification aspects of all applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AASBSs)
adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

The financial statements do not include the disclosure requirements of applicable AASB's, except for the following:

e AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements (excluding cash flow statements)
e AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

e AASB 1048: Interpretation of Standards

e AASB 1057: Application of Australian Accounting Standards

The financial statements do not comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements were approved by the Directors on the same date as the signing of the Directors'
declaration.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs unless otherwise
stated in the notes.

FUNCTIONAL & PRESENTATION CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES & JUDGEMENTS

The Directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical
knowledge and best available current information.

Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data,
obtained both externally and within the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no events subsequent to the end of the reporting date to the date of issue of this report.

GOING CONCERN

The financial report of the Company has been prepared on a going concern basis.

INCOME TAX

On 3 October 2016, the company elected to form a tax consolidated group, effective 1 April 2014. Tega Holdings
Pty Ltd is the head company of the tax consolidated group.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report. Page 7 of 15
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Income tax is calculated using the tax payable method of accounting. Current tax comprises the expected tax
payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for the
year and is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year. As the
company is the head entity of the tax consolidated group, it recognises the income tax payable or receivable on
behalf of the tax consolidated group. Any amount of tax payable or receivable relating to other members of the tax
consolidated group are recognised as loans owing from or to these members, as agreed between the entities.

This is a departure from the requirements of AASB 112 Income Taxes in that no allowance has been made for the
deferred tax assets or liabilities. No assessment has been made as to the materiality of the non recognition of these
assets or liabilities or their impact on future tax liabilities of the Company.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period except where the
tax arises from a transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case the tax
is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively.

LEASES

On 1 July 2019, AASB 16 Leases was introduced to replace existing lease guidance provided under AASB 117
Leases.

AASB 16 presents a single, on-balance sheet accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value items. Lessor accounting
remains similar to the previous standard, whereby lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

The Directors has determined that AASB 16 would not have a material impact on these Special Purpose Financial
Statements in the current year, and has decided not to adopt this standard in the preparation of these financial
statements.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are
charged as expenses on a straight line basis over the life of the lease term.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
) RECOGNITION AND INITIAL MEASUREMENT

Unless otherwise noted below, all financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not measured at Fair Value
through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

The exception to this is a trade receivable without a significant financing component which is initially measured at
its transaction price.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report. Page 8 of 15
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) CLASSIFICATION AND SUBSEQUENT MOVEMENT

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at:

e Amortised cost;

e  Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment;
e FVOCI - equity investment; or

e FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of
the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
FVTPL:

e |tis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

e |ts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

e |tis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

e |ts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held on
the basis of different classes of assets. The objectives of the business are considered when determining the
business model type.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest, are recognised
in profit or loss.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report. Page 9 of 15
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Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by any impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt instruments at FVVOCI/

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCl and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A Financial liability is classified as FVTPL
if it is classified as held-for-trading it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period the Company determines whether there is evidence of impairment indicator for
non-financial assets.

Where this indicator exists and regardless for goodwill, indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cash-generating
unit (CGU) is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in
use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-
generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment loss,
except for goodwill.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents and are presented within
current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report. Page 10 of 15
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REVENUE & OTHER INCOME

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.

The following provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

A) INTEREST REVENUE

Interest revenue is recognised when received.

B) DIVIDEND REVENUE

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
C) OTHER INCOME

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.

GOODS AND SERVICES TAX (GST)

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in
the Statement of Financial Position.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report. Page 11 of 15
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Note

Note 2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 3 Trade and Other Receivables

CURRENT

Loan - Losugen Pty Ltd

Goods and Services Tax

Total Current Trade and Other Receivables

Note 4 Other Financial Assets

CURRENT

Shares in Losugen Pty Ltd

Total Current Other Financial Assets

Note 5 Income Tax

CURRENT ASSETS

Income tax

Total Current Tax Assets

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Deferred tax asset

Total Non Current Tax Assets

Note 6 Trade and Other Payables

CURRENT

Interest payable
Trade creditors

Withholding taxes payable

Total Current Trade and Other Payables

Note 7 Borrowings

NON CURRENT

Loan - Tega Holdings Pte Ltd

Total Non Current Borrowings

Mar 2023
$

20,809
20,809

5,201
999

6,200

13,879,113
13,879,113

22,297
22,297

3,323
3,323

844,206
11,081
4,371

859,657

7,146,163
7,146,163

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Mar 2022
$

111,957
111,957

411,838

411,838

13,879,113
13,879,113

3,718
3,718

150,943
150,943

1,178,883
10,067
5,050

1,194,000

7,146,163
7,146,163
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Note 8 Share Capital

Fully paid ordinary shares

Total Share Capital

Note 9 Retained Earnings

Opening Balance
Current Year Earnings

Total Retained Earnings

Mar 2023
Note $

5,000
5,000

6,212,406
(291,484)

5,920,922

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Mar 2022
$

5,000
5,000

6,634,787
(422,381)

6,212,406
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Jre

cLors Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of Tega Holdings Pty Ltd (the "Company"):

a)

b)

c)

The Company is not publicly accountable nor a reporting entity;

The financial statements and notes, as set out in these financial statements, are prepared in accordance with
the basis of accounting described in Note 1, and other mandatory reporting requirements, so as to present
fairly the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and its performance, as represented by the
results of its operations for the financial year ended on that date; and

There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 the Company has:

Kept such accounting records as to correctly record and explain its transactions and financial position;

Kept its accounting records so that a true and fair financial report of the Company can be prepared from time
to time; and

Kept its accounting records so that the financial report of the Company can be conveniently and properly
audited or reviewed in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

W -

Satyamurti Joe Viranna
Director

Date:

13.06.203

Page 14 of 15
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Jetalled Operating statement

For the year ended 31 March 2023

EXPENSES
Professional fee
Filing fee

Total Expenses

EBIT

Interest Income

Less: Interest Expense

Loss before Income Tax

Mar 2023
$

11,291

11,291
(11,291)
2
405,115
(416,405)

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Mar 2022
$

12,140
276

12,416
(12,416)
4

594,631
(607,043)
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General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile

Nature of business and principal activities

Directors

Registered office

Holding company

Ultimate holding company

Bankers

Auditor
Secretary
Company registration number

Level of assurance

Preparer

Issued

South Africa

Designing, manufacturing and marketing of rubber equipment for
mining and allied industries

M. Mohanka
M.M. Mohanka
S.Y. Imam

2 Uranium Road
Vulcania
Brakpan

1541

Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
incorporated in South Africa

Tega Industries Limited
incorporated in India

ABSA Bank Limited
Nedbank Limited
Mercantile Bank

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.

The company had no secretary for the year under review
1984/010576/07

These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance
with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act of South

Africa.

The annual financial statements were independently compiled by:
Melissa McGill CA(SA)

24 May 2023
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa to maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as
at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities. The external auditor is engaged to express an
independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and
Medium-sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet
these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a
cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
company's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the company's cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2024 and, in light of this review and the
current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or had access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The directors of the company are responsible for the controls over, and the security of the website and, where applicable, for
establishing and controlling the pracess for electronically distributing annual reports and other financial information to
shareholders and to the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission.

The annual financial statements have been audited by the independent auditing firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc., who have
been given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of the shareholder,
the board of directors and committees of the board of directors. The board of directors believes that all representations made
to the independent auditor during the audit were valid and appropriate. The external auditor's unqualified audit report is
presented on pages 6 to 8.

The directors report on pages 4 to 5 and the annual financial statements set out on pages 9 to 30, which have been prepared
on the going concern basis, were approved by the board of directors on __24 May 2023 and were
signfd on theirpehalf by:

M. Mohanka \ N S.Y: Tmam
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Directors' Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Tega Industries Africa Proprietary
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023.

1. Nature of business

Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited was incorporated in South Africa with interests in the manufacturing and marketing of
rubber equipment for mining and allied industries. The company operates principally in South Africa.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the company's business from the prior year.

2. Review of financial results and activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small
and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. The accounting policies have been

applied consistently compared to the prior year.

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company are set out in these annual financial
statements.

3. Stated capital

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.

4. Dividends

The company's dividend policy is to consider an interim and a final dividend in respect of each financial year. At its discretion,
the board of directors may consider a special dividend, where appropriate. Depending on the perceived need to retain funds for
expansion or operating purposes, the board of directors may pass on the payment of dividends.

Given the current state of the global economic environment, the board of directors believes that it would be more appropriate
for the company to conserve cash and maintain adequate debt headroom to ensure that the company is best placed to
withstand any prolonged adverse economic conditions. Therefore the board of directors has resolved to declare no dividend
for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: RNil).

5. Directorate

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Directors Nationality
M. Mohanka Indian
M.M. Mohanka Indian
S.Y. Imam indian

6. Directors' interests in contracts

During the financial year, no contracts were entered into which directors or officers of the company had an interest and which
significantly affected the business of the company.

7. Holding company

The company's holding company is Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited which holds 100% (2022: 100%) of the
company's equity. Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited is incorporated in South Africa.

8. Ultimate holding company
The company's ultimate holding company is Tega Industries Limited which is incorporated in India.
9. Special resolutions

No special resolutions, the nature of which might be significant to the shareholder in their appreciation of the state of affairs of
the company were made by the company during the period covered by this report.
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Directors' Report

10. Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this
report.

11. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and
accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have satisfied
themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its
foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the
company. The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any
pending changes to legislation which may affect the company.

12. Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. will continue in office in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act of South Africa.

13. Secretary

The company had no secretary for the year under review.

14. Solvency and liquidity

The directors has performed the required liquidity and solvency tests as required by the Companies Act of South Africa.

15. Investment property

Management did obtain valuations with regard to Farm 110, portion 224, Klippoortjie, Gauteng during the financial year ended

31 March 2023 and did take it into consideration and found that there was no material impact on the Financial Position of the
company.
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To the Shareholders of Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited (the Company) as at 31 March 2023, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act
of South Africa.

What we have audited

Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited’s financial statements set out on pages 9 to 30 comprise:

o the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023;

o the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
o the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

¢ the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

¢ the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for
Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with
the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards).

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc., 4 Lisbon Lane, Waterfall City, Jukskei View, 2090
Private Bag X36, Sunninghill, 2157, South Africa
T: +27 (0) 11 797 4000, F: +27 (0) 11 209 5800, www.pwc.co.za

Chief Executive Officer: LS Machaba
The Company's principal place of business is at 4 Lisbon Lane, Waterfall City, Jukskei View, where a list of directors' names is available for inspection.
Reg. no. 1998/012055/21, VAT reg.no. 4950174682.
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the document titled “Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited Annual
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023”, which includes the Directors’ Report as
required by the Companies Act of South Africa. The other information does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities
and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
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risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

PricewaterhowseCoopers Inc
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.
Director: Saaleha Akoojee
Registered Auditor
Johannesburg, South Africa
24 May 2023
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2023

2023 2022
Notes R R
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 48,843,127 44 680,215
Investment property 3 7,800,000 7,800,000
56,643,127 52,480,215
Current Assets
Inventories 5 59,456,868 48,596,057
Trade and other receivables 6 115,740,377 76,422,997
Current tax receivable 4,010,462 -
Cash and cash equivalents 7 15,459,214 7,285,083
194,666,921 132,304,137
Total Assets 251,310,048 184,784,352
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital 8 100 100
Retained income 178,579,652 134,862,610
178,579,752 134,862,710
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred tax 4 1,413,693 6,802,474
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 71,316,603 37,749,531
Current tax payable - 1,198,466
Bank overdraft 7 - 4,171,171
71,316,603 43,119,168
Total Liabilities 72,730,296 49,921,642
Total Equity and Liabilities 251,310,048 184,784,352

The notes on pages 13 to 30 form an integral part of the annual financial statements.
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Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited
Formerly Tega Industries South Africa Proprietary Limited

(Registration number 1984/010576/07)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2023 2022
Notes R R
Revenue 10 354,412,529 286,942,346
Cost of sales 12 (247,000,471) (196,803,821)
Gross profit 107,412,058 90,138,525
Other operating income 11 13,555,215 2,786,969
Other operating expenses 12 (68,446,062) (52,766,752)
Operating profit 52,521,211 40,158,742
Investment income 13 474,296 381,393
Finance costs 14 (52,007) (481,486)
Profit before taxation 52,943,500 40,058,649
Taxation 15 (9,226,457) (11,636,634)
Profit for the year 43,717,043 28,422,015
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehenslve Income for the year 43,717,043 28,422,015

The notes on pages 13 to 30 form an integral part of the annual financial statements.
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Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited
Formerly Tega Industries South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 1984/010576/07)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity

Share capital Retained Total equity
income
R R R

Balance at 01 April 2021 100 106,440,595 106,440,695
Profit for the year - 28,422,015 28,422,015
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 28,422,015 28,422,015
Balance at 01 April 2022 100 134,862,609 134,862,709
Profit for the year - 43,717,043 43,717,043
Other comprehensive income = - E
Total comprehensive income for the year - 43,717,043 43,717,043
Balance at 31 March 2023 100 178,579,652 178,579,752
Note 8

The notes on pages 13 to 30 form an integral part of the annual financial statements.
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Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited
Formerly Tega Industries South Africa Proprietary Limited

(Registration number 1984/010576/07)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Cash Flows

2023 2022
Note(s) R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 16 42229209 17,090,685
Interest received 13 474,296 381,393
Interest paid 14 (52,007) (481,486)
Dividends paid - -
Tax paid 17 (19,824,166)  (17,972,240)
Net cash from operating activities 22,827,332 (981,648)
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2 (10,734,204) (1,939,026)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2 252,174 54,871
Net cash from investing activities (10,482,030) (1,884,155)
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of loans from group companies - (30,918,469)
Dividends paid - (150,000)
Net cash from financing activities - (31,068,469)
Total cash movement for the year 12,345,302  (33,934,272)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,113,912 37,048,184
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 15,459,214 3,113,912

The notes on pages 13 to 30 form an integral part of the annual financial statements.
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Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited
Formerly Tega Industries South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 1984/010576/07)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

1. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below.
1.1 Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and in compliance with,
International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities and International Financial Reporting
Standards Interpretations Committee ("IFRS IC") interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these annual
financial statements and the Companies Act of South Africa as amended.

These annual financial statements comply with the requirements of the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the
Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting
policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Rands, which is the
company's functional currency.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of annual financial statements requires management, from time to time, to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These
estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Management did not make critical judgements in the application of accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations,
which would significantly affect the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. For
details of the key assumptions and inputs used, refer to the individual notes addressing financial assets.

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventory

Management assesses whether inventory is impaired by comparing its cost to its estimated selling price less costs to complete
and sell. Where an impairment is necessary, inventory items are written down to selling price less costs to compete and sell.
The write down is included in operating expenses.

Residual values and expected useful lives

Residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are assessed when there is an indication of a material
change. Estimates and judgements in this regard are based on historical experience and expectations of the manner in which
assets are to be used, together with the expected proceeds likely to be realised when assets are disposed off at the end of
their useful lives. Such expectations could change over time and therefore impact both depreciation charges and carrying
values of property, plant and equipment in future. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market
conditions, the remaining life of the assets and projected disposal values.
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Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited
Formerly Tega Industries South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 1984/010576/07)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Expected manner of realisation of deferred tax

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available in the future
against which these can be utilised. Future taxable profits are estimated based on business plans which include estimates and
assumptions regarding economic growth, interest, inflation, taxation rates and competitive forces.. Refer to

note 4 - Deferred tax.

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertin during the ordinary course of business. The
company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues base on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

The company recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the forseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax
assets requires the company to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of
future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each
jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the
company to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.

1.3 Investment property

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and only when, it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
associated with the investment property will flow to the enterprise, and the cost of the investment property can be measured
reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement. Subsequently,
investment property is recognised at fair value. Land is not depreciated.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If
a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the company holds for its own use or for rental to others and which
are expected to be used for more than one year.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable to
the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying assets, where
appropriate.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant and equipment
are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the
cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged
to write off the asset's carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best
reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the company. Depreciation is not charged to an
asset if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of
the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life
Furniture and fixtures Straight line 10 to 20 Years

IT equipment Straight line 510 10 Years

Land Straight line Indefinite

Motor vehicles Straight line 510 10 Years
Office equipment Straight line 20 Years

Plant and machinery Straight line 10 to 20 Years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge far each year is recognised in profit aor loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another
asset,

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment,
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in
profit or loss when the item is derecognised.
1.5 Financial instruments
Classification
The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:

. Loans and receivables

. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial
recognition.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

The company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the instrument.
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Financial instruments (continued)
Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated
impairment losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Impairment of financial assets

The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determines the recoverable amount by
performing value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. When it
is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses the recoverable amount for
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

At each reporting date the company assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the company, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered an indicator of impairment. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity as a reclassification adjustment to other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at
the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for equity investments classified as available-for-sale.
Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-for-sale equity investments which are held at cost because
fair value was not determinable.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Financial instruments (continued)
Loans to (from) group companies

These include loans to and from holding companies and fellow subsidiaries are recognised initially at fair value plus direct
transaction costs.

Loans to group companies are classified as loans and receivables, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Loans from group companies are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue)
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
operating expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially
and subsequently recorded at amortised cost.

Bank overdraft

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the company's accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

1.6 Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect
of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered
from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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1.6 Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the
extent that the tax arises from:

. a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income, or

. a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are
credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged,
in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

1.7 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Operating leases — lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recoghised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
This liability is not discounted.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.8 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell, on the weighted
average cost basis.

Inventories includes a "right to returned goods asset" which represents the company right to recover products from customers
where customers exercise their right of return under the company returns policy. The company uses its accumulated historical
experience to estimate the number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value method. A corresponding
adjustment is recognised against cost of sales.

1.9 Impairment of assets

The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
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1.9 Impairment of assets (continued)

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs is determined.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in
profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

1.10 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
1.11 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the
service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans
where the company’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan.

1.12 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
. the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.
1.13 Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
. the company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
e the company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;
o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company; and
e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
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1.13 Revenue (continued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value added
tax.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
Dividends are recognised, in profit or loss, when the company’s right to receive payment has been established.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed.

1.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.15 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:
. foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
o non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
. non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

In circumstances where the company receives or pays an amount in foreign currency in advance of a transaction, the
transaction date for purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, income or
expense is the date on which the company initially recognised the non-monetary item arising on payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, company determines a date of transaction for each payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous annual financial statements are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.
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2023 2022
R R
2. Property, plant and equipment
2023 2022
Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation depreciation
Land 8,966,709 E 8,966,709 8,966,709 - 8,966,709
Buildings 27,636,057 (10,630,721) 17,005,336 27,415,655 (9,286,147) 18,129,508
Plant and machinery 73,055,063  (51,705,693) 21,349,370 63,032,920 (46,901,490) 16,131,430
Furniture and fixtures 956,510 (466,493) 490,017 956,992 (420,821) 536,171
Motor vehicles 1,080,829 (1,080,829) - 1,080,829 (1,080,829) -
Office equipment 318,172 (191,958) 126,214 318,172 (178,604) 139,568
IT equipment 3,861,577 (2,956,096) 905,481 3,619,874 (2,843,045) 776,829
Total 115,874,917 (67,031,790) 48,843,127 105,391,151 (60,710,936) 44,680,215
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2023
Opening Additions Disposals  Depreciation Closing
balance balance
Land 8,966,709 - - - 8,966,709
Buildings 18,129,508 220,402 - (1,344,574) 17,005,336
Plant and machinery 16,131,430 10,272,099 (17,718) (5,036,441) 21,349,370
Furniture and fixtures 536,171 - - (46,154) 490,017
Office equipment 139,568 - - (13,354) 126,214
IT equipment 776,829 241,703 - (113,051) 905,481
44,680,215 10,734,204 (17,718) (6,653,574) 48,843,127
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2022
Opening Additions Disposals  Depreciation Closing
balance balance
Land 8,966,709 - - 8,966,709
Buildings 19,466,735 - - (1,337 227) 18,129,508
Plant and machinery 19,053,919 1,650,867 - (4,573,356) 16,131,430
Furniture and fixtures 582,326 - - (46,155) 536,171
Office equipment 152,922 - B (13,354) 139,568
IT equipment 601,022 288,159 (33,650) (78,702) 776,829
48,823,633 1,939,026 (33,650) (6,048,794) 44,680,215
Details of properties
Erf 98, 99, 101 Vulcania Extension 2, Brakpan, Ekhuruleni Metropolitan
Municipality, Gauteng, held under title deed T27531/2013
- Purchase price: 1 March 2013 35,454,264 35,454,264
- Additions since purchase or valuation 1,908,876 1,688,474
- Accumulated depreciation (10,630,721) (9,286,147)
- Disposals (760,374) (760,374)
25,972,045 27,096,217
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2023 2022
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3. Investment property
2023 2022
Cost/ Carrying value Cost/ Carrying value
Valuation Valuation
Investment property 7,800,000 7,800,000 7,800,000 7,800,000
Reconciliation of investment property - 2023
Opening Total
balance
Investment property 7,800,000 7,800,000
Reconciliation of investment property - 2022
Opening Total
balance
Investment property 7,800,000 7,800,000

Valued by: SAIV on 11 April 2023, Independent valuer and appraiser for the Master of the Supreme Court (Pretoria) and
has the appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the fair value measurement of properties in the relevant
locations.

Directors have decided that the difference between fair value and stated value is not significant.

Details of property

Farm number 110, portion 224, Klippoortjie, Gauteng, held under title
deedn umber T38235/2009

- Purchase price: 1 December 2017 6,142,125 6,142,125
- Capitalised expenditure 576,934 576,934
- Fair value adjustments in previous years 1,080,941 1,080,941

7,800,000 7,800,000

4. Deferred tax

Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets

Accelerated capital allowances on property, plant and equipment (4,138,267) (9,400,452)
Investment property (233,483) (242,131)
Provision for leave pay 216,493 174,654
Bonus provision 94,245 85,161
Provision for doubtful debt 81,134 529,837
Provision for obsolete inventory 2,459,226 1,701,541
Income received in advance 123,972 355,073
Prepayments (17,013) (16,157)
Total deferred tax liability (1,413,693)  (6,802,474)

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net
settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred tax liability (1,413,693) (6,802,474)
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4. Deferred tax (continued)
Reconciliation of deferred tax liability
At beginning of year (6,802,474) (9,779,720)
Property, plant and equipment (excl land) 31,087 1,229,321
Investment property 8,648 -
Income received in advance (231,101) 355,073
Provision for leave pay 41,839 (1,594)
Bonus provision (916) (22,689)
Prepayments (856) (16,157)
Provision for doubtful debt (448,703) 201,116
Provision for obsolete inventory 757,685 1,232,176
Prior period under provision 5,231,098 -

(1,413,693) (6,802,474)
5. Inventories
Raw materials, components 36,332,340 33,547,268
Work in progress 1,449,872 1,492,917
Finished goods 13,417,989 7,589,641
Goods in transit 8,256,667 5,966,231

59,456,868 48,596,057

The company has taken provision of R9 108 244 (2022: R6 076 931) against slow moving, non-moving and obsolete

inventory.

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 March 2022 amount to R210 080 635 (2022: R161 900

089), these were included as cost of sales in profit or loss.

6. Trade and other receivables

Financial instruments:

Trade receivables

Trade receivables - related parties
Loss allowance

Trade receivables at amortised cost
Deposits
Other receivable

Non-financial instruments:

Value added taxation
Prepayments

Total trade and other receivables

Split between non-current and current portions

Current assets

105,269,459 71,837,605
30,550 25,887
(500,828)  (3,153,794)
104,799,181 68,709,698
833,427 833,427
2,811,519 1,826,599
7,233,240 4,995 570
63,010 57,703
115,740,377 76,422,997
115,740,377 76,422,997
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6. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Categorisation of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are categorised as follows in accordance with IFRS applicable to small and medium sized

entities:

At amortised cost
Non-financial instruments

Trade and other receivables pledged as security

No Trade and other receivables were pledged as security.
7. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand

Bank balances
Bank overdraft

Current assets
Current liabilities

The following ratings were obtained from Moody's

ABSA Bank

Nedbank

Mercantile Bank

The following facilities are in place with ABSA

Amount ceded

The following facilities are in place with Nedbank Limited
General banking facility

Revolving credit line facility
Securities

108,444,127 71,369,724
7,296,250 5,053,273
115,740,377 76,422,997
25,159 24,250
15,434,055 7,260,833
- (4,171,171)
15,459,214 3,113,912
15,459,214 7,285,083
- (4,171,171)
15,459,214 3,113,912
Ba1 Ba1

Ba1 Ba1

BB- Ba1

38,290 38,290
17,000,000 17,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000
29,038,290 29,038,290
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8. Share capital

Authorised
4 000 Ordinary shares

Unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors in terms of a resolution of members passed at the last annual

general meeting. This authority remains in force until the next annual general meeting.

Issued
100 Ordinary shares fully paid

9. Trade and other payables

Financial instruments:

Trade payables

Trade payables - related parties
Employee costs payable

PAYE payable

Other accrued expenses
Withholding taxes

10. Revenue

Sale of goods

11. Other operating income

Bad debt provision reversal

Discount received

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other Income

Profit on exchange differences

100 100
9,438,343 10,594,142
53,682,014 12,512,061
1,691,114 1,612,942
667,319 548,146
5,424,256 12,169,583
412,657 412,657
71,316,603 37,749,531
354,412,529 286,942,346
2,652,966 -
1,506,091 1,684,859
234,456 21,221
314,609 1,080,889
8,847,093 -
13,565,215 2,786,969
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12. Expenses by nature
Cost of sales
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress (5,785,303) (4,030,509)
Raw materials and consumables used 210,080,635 161,900,089
Repairs and maintenance 3,102,662 2,905,627
Utilities 2,812,514 3,650,312
Depreciation 5,036,441 4,573,357
Transport 14,936,179 12,538,684
Employee cost 13,938,832 13,401,678
Other 2,878,511 1,864,583

247,000,471 196,803,821
Operating expenses
Audit fees 1,321,505 887,668
Advertising 125,630 246,652
Bank charges 326,206 224,045
Bad debt provision raised 11,805,343 1,197,118
Car hire charges 632,395 762,691
Commission paid 5,468,941 4,489,381
Donations 103,111 1,810,761
Employee costs 19,652,891 18,269,309
Entertainment 648,478 286,975
Consulting and professional fees 7,107,542 4,751,850
Depreciation 1,517,133 1,475,437
Fixed Assets discarded or written off > 13,304
Insurance 1,738,562 1,474,896
IT expenses 344,551 300,629
Loss on exchange differences 2,506,943 4,548,950
Motor vehicle expenses 3,680,233 1,808,012
Packaging 2,575,630 1,320,278
Security 526,201 1,089,221
Staff welfare 707,635 575,648
Telephone and fax 608,513 675,894
Training 293,175 1,638,000
Travel expenses 2,608,682 1,450,149
Other expenses 4,146,762 3,469,884

68,446,062 52,766,752

315,446,633 249,570,573
13. Investment income
Interest income
Investments in financial assets:
Bank and other cash 474,296 381,393
14. Finance costs
Bank overdraft 51,499 41,527
Interest on loans i 439,027
Other interest paid 508 932
Total finance costs 52,007 481,486

26



Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited
Formerly Tega Industries South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 1984/010576/07)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2023 2022
R R
15. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense
Current
Local income tax - current period 14,615,238 14,613,880
Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences (157,684) (2,977,246)
Arising from prior period adjustments (5,231,097) -
(5,388,781) (2,977,246)
9,226,457 11,636,634
Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting profit 52,943,500 40,058,649
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 27% (2022: 28%) 14,294,745 11,216,422
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Non-deductible expenses 390,874 420,212
Learnership agreements (320,850) -
Rate change 92,785 -
Prior year under provision - deferred tax (5,231,097) -
9,226,457 11,636,634
16. Cash generated from operations
Profit before taxation 52,943,500 40,058,649
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation, amortisation, impairments and reversals of impairments 6,553,574 6,048,794
Gains on sale of assets and liabilities (234,456) (21,221)
Adjust for items which are presented separately:
Interest income (474,296) (381,393)
Finance costs 52,007 481,486

Changes in working capital:

Movement in inventories

Movement in trade and other receivables
Movement in trade and other payables

17. Tax paid

Balance at beginning of the year
Current tax recognised in profit or loss
Balance at end of the year

(10,860,811)
(39,317,380)

(17,493,654)
(22,414,972)

33,567,071 10,812,996
42,228,209 17,090,685
(1,198,466)  (4,556,826)
(14,615,238)  (14,613,880)
(4,010,462) 1,198,466

(19,824,166)

(17,972,240)
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18. Related parties

Relationships

Ultimate holding company
Holding company

Holding company Directors

Group companies

Related party balances

Amounts included in

Trade receivables(Trade

payables) regarding

related parties - 2023

Tega Industries Limited

Tega Investments Africa Proprietary Limited

Amounts included in

Trade receivables(Trade

payables) regarding

related parties - 2022

Tega Industries Limited

Tega Holdings Pte Limited (Singapore)
Tega Investments Africa Proprietary Limited

Tega Industries Limited

Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
S.Y Imam

M.M. Mohanka

M. Mohanka

Tega Investments Limited (Bahamas)
Tega Industries Chile SpA

Tega Industries Incorporated (USA)

Tega do Brasil Servicos Technicas Limited
Tega Industries Canada Incorporated
Tega Holdings PTE Limited

Losugen Proprietary Limited

SGD usD ZAR  Total in ZAR
- (2,987,396) - (53,682,914)
- g 30,550 30,550
- (2,987,396) 30,550 (53,652,364)
SGD usD ZAR  Total in ZAR
- (850,969) - (12,326,120)
(17,379) - - (185,941)
- = 25,887 25,887

(17,379) (850,969) 25,887 (12,486,174)

Trade receivables from related parties are due within 30 to 90 days. Trade payables to related parties are payable within 30

to 90 days.

28



Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited
Formerly Tega Industries South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 1984/010576/07)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2023 2022
R R
18. Related parties (continued)
Related party transactions
Principal and Interest paid to related parties - 2022 uUsD ZAR Total in ZAR
Tega Holdings Pte Ltd (Singapore) - Principal (1,624,400) - (25,128,864)
Tega Holdings Pte Ltd (Singapore) (478,856) - (6,228,538)
(2,103,256) - (31,357,402)

Purchases from (sales to) related parties - 2023 SGD usb ZAR Total in ZAR
Tega Industries Limited - 8,366,796 - 146,598,104
Tega Industries Limited - 36,836 - 656,716
Tega Industries Limited - 339,343 - 5,846,001
Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited - - (57,434) (57,434)

- 8,742,975 (57,434) 153,043,387
Purchases from (sales to) related parties - 2022 SGD uUsD ZAR Total in ZAR
Tega Industries Limited . - 7,539,093 - 112,438,470
Tega Industries Limited - (81,583) - (1,218,084)
Tega Holdings PTE Limited 75,081 29,397 - 1,272,458
Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited - - (25,887) (25,887)
Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited - - 150,000 150,000

75,081 7,486,907 124,113 112,616,957

19. Financial instruments and risk management
Categories of financial instruments

Categories of financial assets

2023
Note(s) Amortised Total Fair value
cost
Trade and other receivables 6 108,444,127 108,444,127 108,444,127
Cash and cash equivalents 7 15,459,214 15,459,214 15,459,214
123,903,341 123,903,341 123,903,341
2022
Note(s) Amortised Total Fair value
cost
Trade and other receivables 6 71,369,724 71,369,724 71,369,724
Cash and cash equivalents 7 7,285,083 7,285,083 7,285,083

78,654,807 78,654,807 78,654,807
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19. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
Categories of financial liabilities
2023
Note(s) Amortised Total Fair value
cost
Trade and other payables 9 68,958,170 68,958,170 68,958,170
2022
Note(s) Amortised Total Fair value
cost

37,201,389 37,201,389 37,201,389
4,171,171 4,171,171 4171171

41,372,560 41,372,560 41,372,560

Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft

~ ©

20. Directors' emoluments

The registered directors' in office for the current year have not received remuneration from the company.

21. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and
accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors is satisfied is that the
company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash
requirements. The directors is not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The directors
also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to
legislation which may affect the company.

22, Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
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General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities The main business activity of the company Is that of investment

holdings and all business related thereto

Directors

Registered office

Business address

Postal address

Holding company

Ultimate holding company

Bankers

Auditor

Company registration number

Tax reference number

Mehul Mohanka
Madan Mohan Mohanka
Syed Yaver Imam

2 Uranium Road
Vulcania
Brakpan
Johannesburg
1554

2 Uranium Road
Vulcania
Brakpan
Johannesburg
1554

PO Box 268
Florida Hills
1716

Tega Holdings Pte Ltd
incorporated in Singapore

Tega Industries Limited
incorporated in India

ABSA Bank Limited

Johan Bam & Partners
Chartered Accountant (SA)

2006/011811/07

9977/654/14/5

Level of assurance These financial statements have been audited in compliance with the
applicable requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa

Preparer The financial statements were independently compiled by:.
Melissa McGill CA(SA)

Issued 29 May 2023
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required by the Companies Act of South Africa, to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible
for the content and integrity of the financial staterments and related financial information included in this report. It is their
responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the
financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the [nternational
Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities. The external auditor is engaged to express an independent
opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Smail and
Medium-sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of Internal financlal control established by the
company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors o meet
these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a
coslt effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
company's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
conslraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial
slatements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss

The directors have reviewed the company's cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2024 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, They are satisfied that the company has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditor were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of meetings.
The directors believe that all representations made to the independent auditors during their audit are valid and appropriate.

The external auditor is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the company's financial statements. The
financial statements have been examined by the company's external auditor and their report is presented on pages 6 to 7,

The financial statements set out on pages 4 to 17, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by

the board aldirectors on 29 May 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:
LA
M. Moha
=if
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Directors' Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023.

1. Nature of business

Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited was incorporated in South Africa and is an investment holding company,
The company operates in South Africa.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the company's business from the prior year.

2.  Review of financial results and activities

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and
Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. The accounling policies have been applied

consistently compared to the prior year.

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company are set out in these financial
statements.

3.  Share capital

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review,

4,  Dividends

Given the current state of the global economic environment, the board of directors believes that it would be more appropriate
for the company to conserve cash and maintain adequate debt headroom to ensure that the company 1s best placed to
wilhstand any prolonged adverse economic conditions. Therefore the board of directors has resolved not to declare a dividend
for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: R0).

5. Directors

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Directors

Mehul Mohanka

Madan Mohan Mohanka

Syed Yaver Imam

There have been no changes to the directorate for the penod under review.

6. Holding company

The company's holding company is Tega Holdings Pte Lld which holds 100% (2022: 100%) of the company's equity. Tega
Holdings Pte Lid is incorporated in Singapore.

7. Ultimate holding company

The company's ultimate holding company is Tega Industries Limited which is incorporated in India.

8. Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporling date and up to the date of this report.

9. Going concern

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a.going concern basis. The directors _have satisfied
themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its
foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the

company. The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any
pending changes to legislation which may affect the company.
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Directors’' Report

10.  Auditors

Johan Bam & Partners continued as auditors for the company for 2023 in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act of
South Africa.

11. Secretary

The company had no secretary for the year under review.

12. Solvency and liquidity

The directors has performed the required liquidity and solvency tests as required by the Companies Act of South Africa.

13. Consolidated financial statements

The company has decided not to prepare consolidated financial statements as the ultimate holding company, Tega Industries

Limited {incorporated in India) prepares consclidated financial statements. This exemption is allowed under Section 9 of the
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholder of Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited set out on pages 8 to 17, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tega Investments
South Africa Proprietary Limited as at 31 March 2023, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of
the Companies Act of South Africa

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of my report. | am
independent of the company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional
Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Ccde) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of
financial statements in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B)

| believe that Lhe audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The olher information comprises the Directors' Report as required by
the Companies Act of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this reporl. Other information does not include lhe
financial statements and my auditor's report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express an audit opinicn or any
form of assurance conclusion therecn.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge cbtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act
of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and-using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0




Independent Auditor's Report

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from malenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repert that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial slatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on he effectiveness of the
company's internal centrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the
audil evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainly
exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to
cease fo continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

| communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit

| fa b § bt

han Bam & Pariners
Jahan Bam

Partner

Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditors

29 May 2023




Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2023

2023 2022
Notes R R
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Investment in subsidiary 2 9 317 231 9317 231
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 81670 139 777
Total Assets 9 398 901 9 457 008
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Stated capital 4 2 125 800 2 125 800
Retained income 7207 757 7 269 535
9 333 657 9 395 335
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 65 344 61673
Total Liahilities 65 344 61673
Total Equity and Liabilities 9 398 901 9 457 008




Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Comprehensive Income

2023 e
Note(s) R R
Other income - 2974
Operating expenses (61778) (53 140)
Operating loss 6 (61778) {50 166)
Investment revenue . 150 000
(Loss) profit before taxation {61 778) 99 834
Taxation 7 = =
(Loss) profit for the year (61 778) 99 834
Other comprehensive income = =
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year (61778) 99 834




Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity

Stated capital Retained Total equity
income
R R R
Balance at 01 April 2021 2125 800 7169 701 9 295 501
Profit for the year - 99 834 99 834
Other comprehensive income - B =
Total comprehensive income for the year - 99 834 99 834
Balance at 01 April 2022 2125800 7 269 535 9 395 335
Loss for the year - (61778) (61 778)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (61778) (61778)
Balance at 31 March 2023 2125800 7207 757 9 333 557

Notes 4
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Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Cash Flows

2023 2022
Notes R R
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations 8 (58 107) (9 784)
Dividends received - 150 000
Net cash from operating activities (58 107) 140 216
Total cash movement for the year (58 107) 140 216
Cash at the beginning of the year 139 777 (439)
Total cash at end of the year 3 81670 139 777

11



Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities, and the Companies Act of South Africa. The financial statements
have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where otherwise stated, and incorporate the principal accounting
policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Management did not make critical judgements in the application of accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations,
which would significantly affect the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment testing

The company reviews and tests the carrying value of ils assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determine the recoverable amount by
performing value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. When it
is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses the recoverable amount for
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on eslimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

The company recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax
assets requires the company to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxabie income. Estimales of future
taxable income are based on forecaslt cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction.
To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the company lo realise
the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.

1.2 Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

1.3 Financial instruments

[nitial measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial
measurement of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement

constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.




Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

1.3 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments at amortised cost

These include trade payahles. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the standard, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current
assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the
arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction

Al each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. [f there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimaled recoverable
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments at cost

Equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably without undue cost
or effort are measured at cost less impairment.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand depaosits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially
and subsequently recorded at fair value.

1.4 Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect
of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an assel.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered
from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and for the carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at an amount that includes the effect of the possible outcomes of a review by
the tax authorities using tax rates that, on the basis of enacted or substantively enacted tax law at the end of the reporting
period, are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled

Deferred tax asset balances are reviewed at every reperting date. When necessary, a valuation allowance is recognised
against the deferred tax assets so that the net amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than not to be realised on
the basis of current or future taxable profit.

Tax expenses

Tax expense is recognised in the same component of total comprehensive income or equity as the transaction or other event
that resulted in lhe tax expense

13



Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financia! Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

1.5 Impairment of assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.

If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and
compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recceverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

1.6 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting ali of its
liabilities.

1.7 Foreign exchange

Foreign currency transactions

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

All transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in Rand, using the spot rate at the date of Ihe transaction. Foreign
currency monetary items at the reporting date are translated using the closing rate. All exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation are recognised in profit or loss.

1.8 Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows is prepared on the direct method, whereby the major classes of gross receipts and gross cash
payments are disclosed.

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and deposits held on call
with banks net of bank overdrafts, all of which are available for use by the company unless otherwise stated.

Investing and financing operations that do not require the use of cash and cash equivalents are excluded from the cash flow
statement.

14



Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

2023 2022
R R
2. Investment in subsidiary
Name of subsidiary % holding% holding  Carrying Carrying
2023 2022 amount 2023 amount 2022

Tega Industries Africa Proprietary 100,00 % 100,00 % 9317 231 G317 231
Limited
The carrying amounts of subsidiaries are shown gross of impairment losses.
3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of
Bank balances 81670 139 777
Credit rating
ABSA Bank Limited Ba2 Ba2
4.  Stated capital
Autherised
1 000 Ordinary shares . :
Issued
400 Ordinary shares 2125 800 2 125 800
5.  Trade and other payables
Trade payables 34794 35788
Amounts due to related parties 30 550 25 887

65 344 61673
6. Operating loss
Operating loss for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Income from subsidiary
Dividends - 150 000
Other expenses
Audit fees 39 849 21290
Bank charges 2033 2391
Consulting fees 16 594 29 335

58 476 53 140
Loss / (Profit) on exchange differences 3302 (2 974)

15



Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

2023 2022
R R
7. Taxation
Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting {loss) profit (61 778) 99 834
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 27% (2022 28%) (16 680) 27 954
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Exempt income
Dividend received . (42 000)
- (42 000)

Other
Deferred tax asset not raised 16 680 14 046

16 680 14 0486

No provision has been made for 2023 tax as the company has no taxable income. The estimaled tax loss available for set off

against future taxable income is R 1 160 767 (2022 R 1 098 989).
8. Cash used in operations

(Loss) profit before taxation (61778)
Adjustments for:

Dividends received -
Changes in working capital:

Trade and other payables 3671

99 834
(150 00D)

40 382

(58 107)

(9 784)

9. Related parties

Relationships
Ultimate holding company Tega Industries Limited
Holding company Tega Holdings Pte Ltd
Subsidiary Refer to note 2
Directors SY Imam

M Mohanka

MM Mohanka

Related party balances

Amounts included in trade and other payables regarding related parties
Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited 30 550

Related party transactions

Dividends received from related parties
Tega Industries Africa Proprietary Limited -

10. Directors' remuneration

No emoluments were paid to the directors or any individuals holding a prescribed office during the year (2022: R-)

16

25 887

150 000



Tega Investments South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2006/011811/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

11. Going concern

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and
accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have satisfied themselves
that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable
cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The
directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending
changes to legislation which may affect the company.

12. Events after the reparting period

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of issue of this
report.

13. Consolidated financial statements

The company has decided not to prepare consolidated financial statements as the ultimate holding company, Tega Industries
Limited (incorporated in India) prepares consolidated financial statements. This exemption is allowed under Section 9 of the
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities.

14. Categories of financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments - 2023 Loans and Financial
receivables liabilities at
amortised
cost
Trade and other payables = 65 344
Cash and cash equivalents 81670 .
81670 65 344
Categories of financial instruments - 2022 Loans and Financial
receivables liabilities at
amortised
cost
Trade and other payables . 61673
Cash and cash equivalents 139777 .
139777 61673
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A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Tega Industries, Inc.
Tucson, Arizona

To the Shareholders of Tega Industries, Inc.
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tega Industries, Inc. (a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega
Industries Limited) (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheets as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the
related statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“IND AS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IND AS, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with ISAs, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the special purpose financial
information and notes of the Company as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

EEA CPA

a Professwnal (orporation
Tucson, Arizona
May 22,2023



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

BALANCE SHEETS AS OF MARCH 31,2023 AND 2022

ASSETS 2023 2022
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 118,320 $ 536,103
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accountsof $26,638
and $14,936, respectively 1,617,586 1,146,200
Inventories, net of reserve for obsolescence of $16,508 and $16,508, respectively 640,372 1,125,969
Prepaid expenses 19,267 34,366
Due from related parties 601,437 74,730
Prepaid income taxes 11,966 136,727
Employee advances 5,661 13,730
Deposits 1,300 1,300
Total current assets 3,015,909 3,069,125

LONG-TERM ASSETS:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of

$106,090 and $114,486, respectively 30,063 86,130

Deferred tax asset 10,579 16,622

Total long-term assets 40,642 102,752
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,056,551 $ 3,171,877

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ 45,533 $ 12,324

Income taxes payable 297 -

Accrued expenses 89,072 129,613

Due to related parties 318,656 613,296

Total current liabilities 453,558 755,233

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock — 5,000 shares of $100 par value authorized; 2,000 shares issued

and outstanding 200,000 200,000

Retained earnings 2,402,993 2,216,644

Total shareholders’ equity 2,602,993 2,416,644

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 3,056,551 $ 3,171,877

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 3



March 31, 2023 and 2022

Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

NET INCOME
REVENUES:

Sales, net of returns, discounts and allowances

Freight income
Total revenues

COST OF SALES:
Product
Freight

Total cost of sales

Gross profit

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Wages
Professional services

Commissions and selling costs

Employee benefits
Travel expenses
Payroll taxes
Vehicle expenses
Insurance

Rent

Advertising
Depreciation

2023 2022

$ 6,389,248 $ 5,115,551

Telephone and utilities
Office supplies and other
Dues and subscriptions
Postage and miscellaneous
Reimbursed expenses

Total operating expenses
Income from operations

Other income (expense):

Currency translation

Interest income

Bad debt expense

Gain (loss) on sale of property and equipment
Interest expense

Total other income (expense)

NET INCOME BEFORE TAXES

Provision for income taxes

NET INCOME

90,506 77,738
6,479,754 5,193,289
5,021,960 3,904,165
194,967 234,131
5,216,927 4,138,296
1,262,827 1,054,993
450,818 445,429
216,239 325,949
89,872 43,625
52,800 133,433
37,955 44,275
34,262 32,566
28,352 22,674
24,748 27,385
24,586 26,035
20,686 201,070
15,240 21,125
12,236 12,244
8,956 10,349
4,352 4,527
3,781 2,131
(12,835) (369,566)
1,012,048 983,251
250,779 71,742
(3,091) 1,325

- 27
(11,702) (8,597)
(1,127) -
(33) -
(15,953) (7,245)
234,826 64,497
48,477 21,240
186,349  $ 43,257

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 4



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED

MARCH 31,2023 AND 2022

Total
Common Retained shareholders'

Shares stock earnings equity

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2021 2,000 $ 200,000 $ 2,173,387 $ 2,373,387
Net income - - 43,257 43,257
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 2,000 200,000 2,216,644 2,416,644
Net income - - 186,349 186,349
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2023 2,000 $ 200,000 $ 2,402,993 $ 2,602,993

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 5



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 AND 2022

CasH FLows FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET INCOME $ 186349 $ 43,257

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Depreciation 15,240 21,125
Allowance for doubtful accounts 11,702 8,597
(Gain) loss on sale of property and equipment 1,127 -
CHANGES IN OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
Accounts receivable (483,088) 585,038
Inventories 485,597 56,678
Prepaid expenses 15,099 10,837
Due from related parties (526,707) (74,730)
Income tax prepaid 124,761 (116,544)
Employee advances 8,069 (1,430)
Deferred tax asset 6,043 (720)
Accounts payable 33,209 (82,519)
Accrued expenses (40,541) 37,298
Due to related party (294,640) 60,547
Income taxes payable 297 (189,997)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by operating activities (457,483) 357,437
CAsH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on sale of property and equipment 39,700 -
Purchase of property and equipment - (14,019)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities 39,700 (14,019)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (417,783) 343,418
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 536,103 192,685
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 118,320 $ 536,103
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid for interest $ 33 $ -
Cash paid for taxes $ - $ 16,953

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 6



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied by Tega Industries, Inc. (a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tega Industries Limited) (the “Company”) in the preparation of its financial statements follows.

ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS ACTIVITY

The Company was incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 27, 2001, for the purpose of distributing specialized
wear resistant rubber products in North America, primarily to the mining and material handling industries. The majority of the
Company’s products are manufactured by its parent company, Tega Industries Limited, located in India.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when the obligation is incurred in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all short-term investments with a purchased maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are composed entirely of finished goods and are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of goods
sold is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. In-bound shipping costs are included in cost of goods sold as incurred.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable represents uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms generally requiring payment
within 30 days from the invoice date. Statements for unpaid balances are not generated, and delinquency fees are not assessed.
Payments of accounts receivable are applied to the specific invoices identified on the customer’s remittance advice.

Trade accounts are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for
probable uncollectible amounts by regularly evaluating individual receivables and considering a customer’s financial condition,
credit history, and current economic conditions.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 7



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the assets to
operations over their estimated service lives. The straight-line method is used for all assets over the following lives:

Years
Office equipment and furniture 5-7
Warehouse equipment 5-7
Vehicles 5

Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of,
the cost and related accumulated depreciation is removed from the respective accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is
recognized. Depreciation expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled $15,240 and $21,125, respectively.

ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 were
$- and $5,010, respectively.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes revenue upon transfer of title to the customer or when the customer has full control over the products
and there are no unfulfilled obligations on the part of the Company that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products
in accordance with the terms of the sales contract and no uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be
derived from the sale. Accordingly, depending on the contractual terms, revenue is recognized either when the products are
shipped to, or received by, the customer. Cost of shipping is generally reimbursed by the customer and any reimbursements
reduce cost of goods sold. All out-bound shipping costs are recorded as a component of cost of goods sold reduced by customer
reimbursements. Customers are invoiced upon shipment and payment terms are generally net 30 days and, therefore, no element
of financing is deemed present in the sales contracts and no adjustments are made to the transaction price for time value of
money.

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such as sale of product and certain related services. However, the services are
simple, do not include an integration service, and could be performed by another party. It is therefore accounted for as a separate
performance obligation. Where the contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to
each performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling prices. Where these are not directly observable, they are estimated
based on the expected cost, plus margin. If contracts include the installation of the product, revenue for the product is recognized
at a point in time when the product is delivered, the legal title has passed and the customer has accepted the product.

In some contracts the Company’s performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Company and the Company
has concluded that it has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. In the said cases, the Company
transfers control of a good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes revenue over
time. The Company uses the input method to recognize revenue.

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, all sales were recognized at a point-in-time. Consequently, no revenue was
deferred as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

CONCENTRATIONS

The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with various financial institutions. At times, such balances may be in excess
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits of $250,000; however, management does not believe it is exposed
to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 8



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

INCOME TAXES

The Company recognizes deferred income taxes for temporary differences between financial statements and income tax
reporting. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the differences between financial statement and tax basis
of assets and liabilities using the enacted tax rates in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. The
measurement of deferred tax assets is reduced, if necessary, by the amount of any tax benefits that, based on available evidence,
are not expected to be realized. The principal temporary differences that will result in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
property and equipment, intangible assets, and net operating loss carryforwards.

The Company follows the requirements of IND AS No. 12 and applicable appendices for the recognition, measurement,
classification, and disclosure in the financial statements of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the Company’s
tax returns. Management believes that the Company does not have any uncertain tax positions and associated unrecognized
benefits that materially impact the financial statements or related disclosures.

Since tax matters are subject to some degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the Company’s tax returns will not
be challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Company or its shareholders will not be subject to additional tax, penalties,
and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally, the Company’s tax returns remain open for federal income tax examination
for three years from the date of filing and four years for the State of Arizona.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments that subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents
and accounts receivable. The total loss that would occur if the accounts became uncollectible is the stated balance of the financial
instruments reported in the accompanying balance sheets.

NoOTE B. INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following as of March 31:

2023 2022
Inventory-on-hand $ 338,224 % 358,491
Inventory-in-transit 318,656 783,986
Less reserve for obsolete inventory (16,508) (16,508)
Total inventories, net $ 640,372 $ 1,125,969

NoOTE C. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of March 31:

2023 2022
Office equipment and furniture $ 10,088 $ 10,088
Warehouse equipment 3,071 3,071
Vehicles 122,994 187,457
Property and equipment 136,153 200,616
Less accumulated depreciation (106,090) (114,486)
Property and equipment, net $ 30,063 $ 86,130

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 9



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

NoTE D. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The majority of the Company’s products are manufactured by its parent company, Tega Industries Limited, located in India.
Significant transactions with the shareholders and with entities under common control during 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

The Company had the following trade receivables from the parent company and other related entities as of March 31:

2023 2022
Tega Industries Limited $ 601,437 $ 74,730
Total trade receivables $ 601,437 $ 74,730

The Company had the following trade payables to the parent company and other related entities as of March 31:

2023 2022
Officer (Tega Industries, Inc) $ - $ 1,122
Tega Industries Limited 318,656 612,174
Total trade payables $ 318,656 $ 613,296

The Company purchased goods and services from the parent company and other related entities throughout the fiscal year which
totaled the following as of March 31:

2023 2022
Tega Industries Canada Inc $ 1,100 $ -
Tega Industries Limited 1,679,979 3,325,725
Tega Industries Chile S.PA. 70,720 1,856
Total purchased goods & services $ 1,751,799 $ 3,327,581

The Company recorded reimbursements as a result from cost sharing from the parent company and other related entities
throughout the fiscal year which totaled the following as of March 31:

2023 2022
Tega Industries Limited $ 12,835 $ 369,566
Total received reimbursements $ 12,835 $ 369,566

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 10



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.

(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

Not1e E. INCOME TAXES

The income tax expense for the Company as of March 31, consisted of the following:

2023 2022
Current tax expense:
Federal $ 40,297 $ 13,306
State 2,137 8,654
Total current tax expense 42,434 21,960
Deferred tax expense (benefit):
Federal 5,671 (676)
State 372 (44)
Total deferred tax expense (benefit) 6,043 (720)
Total income tax expense, net $ 48,477 $ 21,240
The components of the Company’s net deferred taxes are as follows:
2023 2022
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 5,879 $ 3,296
Reserve for inventory obsolescence 3,643 3,643
Bonus accrual 5,848 18,797
Difference in depreciation method (4,791) (9,114)
Total net deferred tax asset $ 10,579 $ 16,622

The reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the statutory rates to the Company’s effective rate as of March 31, 2023

and 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022
Taxes, at statutory rates $ 54,670 $ 15,016
Foreign sales exempt from state taxes (6,193) -
Meals and entertainment - 194
Prior period book to return reconciliation - 6,857
Other - (827)
Total income tax expense $ 48,477 $ 21,240

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

NoTE F. LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company leases office and warehouse space under an operating lease. The Company renewed the office and warehouse
space lease for an additional year on March 1, 2023, which expires on February 28, 2024 and provides for a monthly rent of
$2,022. Total lease expense was $23,556 and $22,929 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Total
minimum payments due for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2024 are $22,242.

NOTE G. RETIREMENT PLAN

On January 1, 2015, the Company began offering a 401(k) profit sharing plan. Employees may contribute on either a pre-tax
salary deferral basis or to a Roth plan in amounts up to limits established under Federal law. The Company makes safe harbor
matching contributions equal to 100% of the first 3% of eligible earnings deferral and an additional 50% of the next 2% of
eligible earnings deferral. Additionally, the Company may make nonelective contributions to the Plan, although it is not required
to do so. Employees are always 100% vested in any elective deferrals they make and become vested in the Company’s safe
harbor matching contributions and nonelective contributions according to the length of time they have worked for the Company
over a 6-year period.

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, total employer contributions under the plan were $12,054 and $15,856,
respectively.

NoTE H. MARKET CONCENTRATIONS

The Company’s sales are to customers all over the United States, as well as in North and Central America. Substantially all of
these customers are extended credit with regard to these sales.

The Company had two customers which made up 33% of total revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023. At March 31,
2023, three customers comprised 79% of trade accounts receivables.

The Company had three customers which made up 36% of total revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022. At March
31, 2022, five customers comprised 84% of trade accounts receivables.

NoTEI. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company discloses the date through which subsequent events were evaluated when determining whether adjustment to or
disclosure in the financial statements is required. A subsequent event is an event or transaction that occurs after the balance sheet
date but before the financial statements are issued. The Company evaluated subsequent events through May 22, 2023, which
represents the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 12



March 31, 2023 and 2022 Tega Industries, Inc.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited)

OTHER INFORMATION — SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 13



Tega Industries Inc
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Prardculars - 31 March 2023 31 Murch zoz2
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 30,063 86,130
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 4 1,300 1,300
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 10,579 16,622
‘Total non-current assets 41,042 104,052
Current assets
[nventories 6 640,372 1,125,969
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets 7 1,622,859 1,220,930
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 18,320 536,103
Currenl tax assets (net} 9 11,966 136,727
Other current assets 10 302,436 48,096
‘Total current assets 2,605,953 3,067,825
Total assets 2,737,895 3,171,877
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 1 200,000 200,000
Other equity 12 2,402,996 2,216,644
Total eguitv 2,602,096 2,416,644
Current liabilitles
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 13 - -
(b) Total outstanding dues of ereditors cther than micro and small enterprises 13 84,142 650,080
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 39,900 100,113
Current tax liabilities (net) 15 297 -
Other current liabilities 16 10,560 5,040
Total current liabilities 134,809 755,233
Tatal liabilities _ 134,899 755,233
FTutal equity and liabilities 2,737,895 3,171,877
|
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date The accompanying notes are the integral part of this Special Purpose
Financial Information
For R&A CPAs For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Professional Corporation

gLyt ikl

Place ; TUCSON, Arizona Director ni E.clnr

Date : May 22, 2023



Tega Industries Inc
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March zo23

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchase of Traded Goods

Changes in inventories of finished goods
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depraciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

[ncome tax expense
- Current tax
- Deferred tax

Total tax expense/ (credit)
Total Profit for the year (A)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B)

Total prehensive i for the year (A+B)

Earnings Per equity share:
Basic
Diluted

17
18

19
20
21
22
23
24

25
25

29
29

(All amounts in V&1, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended

31March zo023

Year ended
31 March 2022

6,389,248 5,115,551
(4,218) 1,349
6,_5_185.030 5,116,900
4,536,363 3,847,488
485,597 56,678
537,880 611,420
33 -

15,240 21,125
575,088 515,683
6,150,201 5,052,403
234,829 04,497
42,434 21,960

6,043 {720)
48.477 21,240
186,352 43,257
186,352 43,257

93 22

93 22

This is the Statemnent of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For R&A CPAs
Professicnal Corporation

rsong

Place : ‘Tucson, Arizona
Date: May 22, 2023

The accompanying notes are the integral part of this Special Purpose

Financial Information

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Director




Tega Industries Ine

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March zo23

A, Equity share capital

Description

As at1 April 2021 '

Amount

11 200,000
Changes during the year -
As at 31 March 2022 11 200,000
Changes during the year =
As at 31 March 2023 11 200,000

(All arnounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

B. Other equity

: Reserve and su

De -

s g Retained earning

Balance as at 1 April 2022 2,216,644 2,216,644 2,216,644
Profit for the year 186,352 186,352 186,352
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,402,997 2,402,997 2,402,097

Description

Reserve and surplus

Notes
Retained carning

al other equity

Balance as at 1 April 2021 2,173,387 2,173,387 2,173,387
Profit for the year 43,257 43,257 43,257
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,216,644 2,216,644 2,216,644

This is the Statement of Changes in Equily referred to in cur report of even date.

For R&A CPAs
Professional Corporation

gty et

Place : Tucson, Arizona
Date: May 22, 2023

The accompanying notes are the integral part of this Special
Purpose Financial Information

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

WL omhaunlis

Director « Director



Tega Industries Ine
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounta in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Ye

Particulars o
Rarticulaps 31 March 2o 31 March 2ozz

A, Cash flow from Operating Activities
Nel Profit before tax 234,829 64,497
Adjustments for;

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 15,240 21,125
Finance costs 33 -
Interest income 4 (27)
Allowance for expected credit loss (including bad debts and advances written off) 11,702 8,597
Nel Logs on sale of property, plant and equipment 1127 -
Operating profit before working capital changes 202,031 04,192
Changes in Working Capital:
{Increase)/ decrease in Non Current/ Current financial and other assets {667,971) 519,715
(Increase) in inventories 485,597 56,678
Increase/ (dectease) in Non Current/ Current financial and other liabilities/ provisions (620,631) 15,326
Cash Generated from Operations (540,074) 685,011
Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds) 82.624 {328,501)
Net cash generated from operating activities {457,450) 357,410
B. Cash flow from Investing Aetivities:
Purchase of capital assets - {14,019)
Sale of capilal assets 39,700 -
Interest received - 27
Net cash (used in) investing activities 29,700 (13,002)

C, Cash flow from Financing Actlvities

Finance cost paid (33) =
Net cash (used in) financing activities (33) =
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (417,783) 343,418
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 536,103 192,685
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 118,320 536,103
41 March 2023 31 March zo22
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise ;
Balances with banks on current account 18,320 536,103
118,320 536,103
Notes:
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".
The aceompanying notes are the integral part of this
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date, Special Purpose Financial Information
For R&A CPAs For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Professional Corporation
Place : Tucson, Arizona Director

Date: May 22, 2023



Tega Industries Inc
Notes to Special Purpose Financial Information

1. Company Information

Tega Industries Inc is a company limited by shares and is incorporated in United States. The ultimate parent company is Tega Industries Ltd, a
company incorporated in India. The principle business of the Company is amongst others, engaging in the business of distribution and sale of wear
resistant products to the mining and mineral processing and material handling industries.

The Special Purpose Financial Information as at 31 March 2023 present the financial position of the Company.
2. .Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

(i) Compliance with Tega Industries Limited Group's Accounting Policies i
These Special Purpose Financial Information (which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equily, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Speeial
Purpose Financial Information, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information) of Tega Industries Inc.
have been prepared in accordance with the group accounting policies of Tega Industries Limited, which in turn are aligned with Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) ag notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursnant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Acccunting Standards) Rules, 2015 {(as amended). These Special Purpose Finaneial Information have
been prepared to facilitate consolidation of the financial information of the subsidiary into the consclidated financial information of Tega Industries
Limited. These Special Purpose Financial Information have been presented in accordance with Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as
amended).

(ii) Historical Cost Convention
The Special Purpose Financial Information been prepared as going concern on acerual basis and under the historical cost convention except for the
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount (if any).

(iii} Current versus Non Current Classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle. Based on the nature of products and the
lime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities,

2.2 Usc of Estimates

The preparation of the financial staternents require the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reperted amounts of the
assets and liabilities including Contingent Liabilities as on the date of the finaneial statements and the reported income and expenses for the
reporting period. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable, Future
resulls could differ frow these eslhnales. Auy adjusbinents based un acluals are effecled in Lhe sulsequent petiods.

2,3 Property plant and equipment and Intangible assets
2.%.1 Property plant and equipment

All items of property plant and equipment are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and accurnulated impairment, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, enly when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the reporting period in which they are ineurred.

An asgsel’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amouxnt.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with earrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit or loss.

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its property plani and equipment measured at the previous
GAAP and use that carrylog value as the deemed cost of property plant and equipment.

2.3.2 Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. Recognition of cosls as an
asset is ceased when the assel is complete and available for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with definite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s earrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Class of assets Estimated uscful life (in years)

Software 3 Years

2.4 Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation is provided on a prorata basis on a straight line method al the rate determined based on estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment. The estimated useful lives of the preperty, plant and equiprnent have been presented below:

Class of nsgets Estimated useful life
Vehicles §years




2.5 Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipinent and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable threugh continuing use. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of impaivment, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that
are independent from other assers, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current markei assessmenis of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds ils recoverable amount.

Where an impainmnent loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset {or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount so that the inereased carrying value does not exeeed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statemnent of profit and
loss immediately.

2.6 Financial Instroments

Financial Assets

The financial assets are elassified in the following categories;

1. financial assets measured at amortised cost,

2. financial assets measured at fair value through profil and loss, and
3. finaneial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incorme.

The classification of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for managing finaneial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flow.

At initial recognition, the financial assets ave measured at its fair value plus transaction cosls that are directly attributable to the aequisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit o loss are expensed in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. After initial measurement, such financial assets ave subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of prefit or loss.

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial instruments included within fair value through profit and loss category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair
value plus transaetion costs as applicable. Fair value movements are recorded in statement of profit and loss.

[nvestments in urits of mutnal funds are accounted for at fair value and the chauges in fair value are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terns of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

De-recognition of financial asset
The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights te the cash flows from the financial assets expire or it transfers the financial
assets and such transfer qualifies for de-recognition

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with ils assets carried at amortised cest. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant inerease in credit risk.

For trade receivables the simplified approach of lifetime expected eredit losses has been recognised from initial recognition of the receivables
Impairment loss allowance recognised /reversed during the year are charged/written back to statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured al amortised cosl using the effective interest rate methed.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities nnless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a Jong-term loan arrangement on or hefore the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as
current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial staternents for issue, not to demand payment as a
consequence of the breach.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amount approximates fair value to shori-term
maturity of thege instruments,

A financial liability {or a part of financial liability) is de-recognised {rom Compapy's balance sheet when cbligation specified in the contract is
discharged or eancelled or expired.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the Statement of Cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments, if any, with original maturities cf three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet.



2,7 Tnventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on Weighted Average Basis. The cost of finished goods and work iu
progress comprises design cosls, taw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production vverheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated cosis necessary to make the sale.

2.8 Revenne Recognition
Revenue shall be recognised to depict the transler of promised goods or services to custoiers in an amount that veflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the products has been transferred to the buyer, being when the products are dispatched/ delivered to the
customer depending on the contract terms, as that is the point when the buyer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the buyer's acceptance of the products per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods, No element of finaneing is deemed present as the sales are
generally made with a credit term upto 180 days which is consistent with market praetice,

Revenue is recognised based on the price specified in the contract

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such as sale of product and certain related services. However, the services are simple, does not include
an integration service and could be performed by another party. It is therefore accounted for as a separate performance cbligation. Where the
contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on the stand-alone
selling prices. Where these are not directly observable, they are estimated based on the expected cost plus margin. If contracts include the
installation of product, revenue for the product is recognised at a point in time when the produet is delivered, the legal title has passed and the
customer has accepted the produet,

In some contracts the Company's performance does not create an assel with alternative use to the Company and the Company has concluded that it
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed 1o date. In the said cases, the Company transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, The Company uses the input method to recognize revenue,

The Company has determined that the input method is the best method for measuring progress for these contracts becanse there is a direct
relationship between the costs incurred by the Company and the transfer of goods and services to the customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are despatched or delivered, depending on the contract terms, as this is the point in time that the
cotsideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is reguired bafore the payment is due.

A coniract asset is recognised in respect of those performance obligations where the control of the goods has been transferred to the buyer, and only
delivery of the goods is pending, In these cases the consideration is due after the shipping obligation is complete, accordingly these are classified as
contract assets as the consideration is conditional on something other than the passage of time.

The Company does not have any contracts where the period between the fransfer of the promised goods or services o the cuslomer and payment by
Lthe cuslomer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Sale of Serviees

Sale of services are recognised on rendering of the related services.

2.9 Other Income

Interest: Interest income is generally recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable.

Dividend: Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established and it is probable that economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

2.10 Government Grants

(i) Grants from the govermment are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with all attached conditions.

(i) Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended 1o compensate and presented within other operating income.

2.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and exchange differences arising from foreign curremcy
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs directly atiributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of gualifying assets, which are assets thal necessarily lake a substantial period of time 1o get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Premium
in the form of fees paid on refinancing of loans are accounted for as an expense over the life of the loan using effective interest rate method. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the peried in which they are incurred.

2.12 Foreign Currency Transactions
These {Inancial statements of the Company are presented in United States Dollar (USD), which is the functional currency of the Company and the
preseniation currency for the financial statements.

Initial Reeognition: On initial recognition, all foreign eurrency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting curreney and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subseguen! Recognition; Foreign currency denominated monelary assets and liabilities are translated inlo the relevant functional eurrency al
exehange rales in effect at the balance sheet date. The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the statement of
profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit for the period in which
the transaction is settled,




7.13 Fmployee Renefits

a) Short-term Employee Benefits:
Short-term Employee Benefits (i.e. benefits payable within one year) are recognised in the period in which employee services are rendered.

b) Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due Payments made to state managed retirement benefit schemes are
dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company's obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

¢) Other Long-term Employee Benefits:

Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months from the year end are treated as short term
employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional
amount expected 1o be paid as a result of the unused entitlements as at the year end.

Aceumulated compensated absences which are expected 10 be availed or encashed beyond twelve months from the year end are treated as other long
term employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year, Actuarial
loss/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise,

2.14 Current and Deferred Tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulaticen is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisiens where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is alse not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss}. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled,
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authiority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, ot to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

2.15 Provision and Contingent Liabilities

The Company recognises a provision where there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, tequire an outflow of resources or there is a present obligation, reliable estimate of the amount of
which cannot be made, Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense,

2,16 Earnings per Share

Basie earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit or loss for the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

2,17 Leases: .

Short term leases - A lease that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less. A lease that contains a purchase option is not a
short-term lease.

The Company has certain lease of office warehouse with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the "short-term lease' recognition
exemptions for this lease,

2.18 Critical estimates and judgemenis

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results,
Managemenl also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of itetns which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out 1o be different than those originally assessed.

2,20 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptey of the company or the counterparty.



Tega Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in USD, unless othzrwise stated}

Note: 3 Property, plant and equipment

Gruss Rlock Depre Net Block
. - 3 Disp
Parliculars G v P s at 4 arel s 2k &
Asal1April zous Ad(hlt]::r::.:::n n& Adjustments As at 31 Maich 2023 | Asal 1 April zozz Yor e year Adjustments a5 l.“ ail e M.i; A
v during the vear during the year & ==
‘Tangible assets
(a) Vehicles 115,500 = 64,464 51,036 20,370 15,240 23,637 20,973 30,063
Tatal 115.500 - 64.464 51,036 29,370 15,240 23,637 20,973 30,063

Gross Block Depreciation Net Eleek
2 i 3 Disposals/ Disposals/
Parliculars ¢ u : at 91 Marc!
e Ax at 1 April zoz el e Adjustments Asal 31 Marelh zoze | Asati Aprilznzi For the year Adjustments g g
the year = : a022
¥ during the year2 during the sear®

Tangible assets
(a) Vehicles 101,481 14,019 - 115,500 8,245 21,125 - 29,370 86,130

Total 101,481 14,019 - 115,500 8.24_5 21,125 - 29,370 36,130




Tega Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Finanelal Information
(All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 4 (i) Other financial assets - non current

Particulars 21 March 2023 31 March 2oz

1 ed, idered good (unl otherwise stated)
Serurity Deposits 1,400 1,300

|Total 1,300 1,300 l

Note: 5 Deferred tax asscts (net)

Particulars 41 March 2023 31 March 2o22

The halance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 5879 3,296
Reserve for Inventory obsoleseence 3,643 3,643
Amounts allowable for tax purpose on payment basis 5,848 18,707
Other temporary difference {4,791) (9,114)
Tatal Deferred Tax Assets 10.579 16,622

Refer note 25 for tax expenses



Tega Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpase Financial Information

Nate:  Inventaries

(Al acnuwints i USD, unless ullien wise slated)

grMarchi 2023 31 March 2022
Finished goeds {Including Goods in Transit USD 318,656 (31 March 2021 : USD 783,986) 640,372 1,125,569
Total 640,372 1,125,060 |
Notes

(i) The company has expensed inventory of USD NIL (31 March 2022 : USD NIL) for writing down the value of inventeries towards slew moving, non-moving and obsclete inventery,

(ii} The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in Note 2.7

Note: 7 Trade receivables and contract assets

Farticulars

31 Muarch 2023

41 Murch 2a22

Current

Trarle Receivables

(a} Unsecured, considered good 1,622,859 1,220,030
(b} Credit impaired 26,648 14,936
1,649,497 1,235,865
| Allowance for eredit losses {26.638) (14.036)
Net Receivables 1,622,859 1,220,930
Net Contract Assets = -
Totul 1,622,859 1,220,930
Trade receivables ageing schedule: (i) As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from duce date of paywent
Particulirs T ; - lore thy
articulars Mot Due Lessthan & |6 Monthis-1 [ i Mmtt. thans L.
Months year YCATA

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

Third Party 617,880 999,706 = 1,617,586

Related Party 5273 5,273
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

‘I'hird Party 20,299 6,339 26,638

Related Party =
(iii} Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -
Less: Credit impaired good -

Third Party

Related Party
Total 623,155 1,020,005 E 06,339 = - 1,649,497
Trade receivables ageing schedule: () As at 31 March 2022

. Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment
Particulars i Lessthan 6 6 Months -1 T 5 More than 3 -
Not Duc Months Uieip 1-2 years 2.3 years ket T'otal

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good -

‘Third Party 754175 390,945 1,081.00 1,146,201

Related Party 74,730 74,730
(ii) Undisputed Trade Raceivables - credit impaired -

Third Party 8,597 6,339 14,936

Related Party
(iti} Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -
Less: Credit impaired good . - - - - - -

Thied Party

Related Party
Total §28.005 209542 1.081 6,230 - - 1,235,306

(i) There are no outstanding receivable due from directors or other officers of the company.
(i) There are contract assets and unbilled dues at each reporting dates.
(iii) Refer nate 26{A} for credit risk



Tega Industries Ine
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 8 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars ' 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks

In current accounts 118,320 536,103
Total 118,320 536,103

Note: 9 Current tax assets (net)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision for Income Tax) 11,966 136,727
Total 11,9606 136,727

Note: 10 Other current assets

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Advance to Related Parties{Suppliers}) 277,508

Prepaid expenses 19,267 34,366
Employee advances 5,661 13,730

302,436 48,096




Tega Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information

Note: 11 Equity share capital

{a} Authorised share capital

Particulars

As ul 1 April zoz1
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2022
Changes during the year

{All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Number of
shares
5,000 500,000

Amount

5,000 500,000

As at 31 March 2023

5,000 500,000

(b) Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid -up Shares

Parliculars

As at 1 April 2021
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2022
Changes during the year

IAs at 31 March 2023

Nuinher of
Amount
shares :
2,000 200,000
2,000 200,000
2,000 2O, D0

{c) Equity shares held by the parent compatry of the company

Parliculars

Equity shares
Tega Industries Limited

As al 31 March aoz2z
[ % holding No. % laglding

AS at 31 March 2023

2,000 100.00% 2,000 100.00%

{d) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% of equily shares of the company

Name c:»fthe shareholder

As al 310 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
% holding No. % holding

Equity shares
‘Tega [ndustries Limited

2,000 100.00% 2,000 100.00%

{e) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has one class of comman shares having par value of USD 100 per share. All shares are fully paid. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vale at meeting of the Company. In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders shall rank after creditors and are fully entifled to any proceeds an liquidation.

{g) Shares held by the promoters ; (i) As at 315t March 2023

Promeler name

No. ol shares %of Lolal shares

% change during.

the yoar

Equity shares
Tega Lndusbiies Limited

2,000 L00% NIL

Shares held by the promoters : (i} As at 315t March 2022

I'ronoter name

No. of shares *;0f total shares

% chiange during
the year

Equity shares
Tega Industries Limited

2,000 100% NIL




Tepa Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(A ameunts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 12 Other equity

Particulars Refer helow 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Retained earnings (i) 2,402,996 2,210,044
Total 2,402,900 2,210,044

Particulars 023 31 March 2022

(i) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,216,644 2,173,387
Profit for the year 186,352 43,257
Balance at the end of the year 2,402,990 2,210,644

Nature and purpose of other reservees
Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profit that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to genera! reserve, dividends or cther distributions paid to shareholders.



Tega Midustries Thie
Notes to the Special Purposa Finanelal Tuformatian

Note: 13 Trade payables

Partienlars

(1) Tetal outstanding duex of micrs enterpriscs and small enterprises

(15} Tetul sutstanding ducs of ered itors other than niers enterprises und small enterprisey

(1) Aceplunces

(Al amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

31 ¥Mucel 2023

84,142

a1 Miaich 2002

650,080

H50,080

Partieulars

14} Undisputed total outstanding dues of micro und smali enterprizes
(h) Undisputed totul outstanding dues of creditors other thin mier and small enterprises

Thind Party
Related Party
() Dispuled dues of micro and sl enterprises

() Disputed total outstunding dues ol wreditors other than micro and small enleiprises

Outstanding for following periods (rom due date of pavinent
Tabilled 3 Tass Hian 1 Morethan g
Not Due

12 ¥eurs
Duc year 5 5 yoars

34,970

84,142

[

Teade puyables sgeing schedubes (ihAs sl Maceh a0z

Outslanding for fallowing periads (vom due date of payment

Uybilled s Less than 1 . Morc thun 3
Not Duc . 1-2 ¥Cars “-3 YTALE
Due wear .. years

la) Undisputed total outstanding dues of micro and small enter prises
(b) Undisp 1 total ding ducs of eredi other than micero and sinall enterprises -
Third Party 205600 8,407 37.907
Related Party - 612,173 612,173
() Disputed dues of miero and stall enterprises - - 5
() Disputed tolel outstanding dues of ercditors other than micro and smull enterprises _ ~ - ] . N
[Latal 29,500 bz2o0,580 = = - 650,080 |

Notet 14 Otleer financisl liabilities- current

31 March zoa3

3t Marvh soza

Partlonlars
Empluyee related liahilities 39.900 1e0113
I'[‘olal go,900 100,415 ’

Notes 15 Corrent tax liabilities {net)

Particulors

31 Maveh zoxy

1 Marel 2021

Advitiens peceivial from custinmer's

%1 March 208,

500

81 Marol

ETAE ]

Tutal

10,560

5,040




Tega Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounls in USD, unless ultherwise staled)}

Note: 17 Revenue from operations

Particulars . - 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 6,389,248 5,115,551

6,389,248 5,115,551 |

The company has recognised the following amounts relating to revenue in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars - 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Sale of products 6,389,248 5,115,551
(ii) Sale of services -

Total 6,389,248 5,115,551

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

The company derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services in the following geographical regions:
Particulars e : : e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

North America [including USD 7,063 (31 March 2022 : USD N1L) from Related Parties 6,380,248 5,115,551
Total 6,389,248 5,115,551

(ii} The company has recognised the following revenue-related contract assets and liabilities:

Particulars L 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract asgets 7 - -
Total contract assets - -
Contract liabilities - Deferment of Revenue 16

Contract liabilities - Advance from customers 16 10,560 5,040
ﬁotal contract liabilities 10,560 5,040

(iii} Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

Particulars L 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract labilities balance at the beginning
of the year: 5,040 27,720

Sale contracts




(iv) Unsatisfied long-term sale contracts:

The following table shows nnsatisfied performance obligations resulting from long-term sale contracts.
Particulars L R -
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to long-term sale contracts that are
partially or fully unsatisfied: = =

. 31 March 2023 31 March zoz2

All other sale contracts ave for periods of one year or less or are hilled based on time incurred. As permitted under Ind-AS 115, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

(v) The following table shows reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price.
Particulars i 31March 2023 a1 March zo22

Contract Price

Adjustments for:

Refund Liabilities - Claims/ Liquidating damages - =
Contract Liabilities - Unfulfilled obligations*® - -
| Total # *

* These unfulfilled obligations are expeeted to be settled within the next 12 months.

Note: 18 Other income

31 March 2023 31 March zozz2

(a) Interest income
on finaneial instruments at amortised cost - 27

{b) Other non-operating income

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment {Net) (1,127} -

Government grant# - (3)

Net gain on foreign cmrrency transaction and translations (3,001) 1,325
Total (4,218) 1,349

#Government grant is received on acconnt of COVID.



Tega Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 19 Purchase of Traded Goods

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Add: Purchases

4,536,363 3,847,488

Purchase of Traded Goods 4,536,363 3,847,488

Note: zo Changes in inventories of finished goods

Particulars - 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Inventories at the end ot the year:

Finished Goods 640,372 1,125,969
640,372 1,125,909
Less : Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished Goods 1,125,969 1,182,647
1,125,000 1,182,647
{Increase)}/Decrease in finished goods 485,597 56,678

(Increase}/Decrease in finished goods 485,597 56,678




Tega Industrics Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information

(All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 21 Employee benefits expense

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Salaries and wages 481,031 545,101
Contribution to provident and other funds 12,054 15,856
Stalf welfare expenses 44,795 50,472
Total 537,880 611,429

Note: 22 Finance costs

Particulars " ': 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense on

Bank Borrowings and Others 33 _
Total 33 =

Note; 23 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Particulars : 91 March zo23 31 March 2022
Depreciation of mpcrty, plant and equipment [refer note 3] 15,240

Total 15,240 21,125
Note: 24 Other expenses

Particulars ' 31 March 2023 31 March zo22
Rent 24,586 26,035
Repaits to others 2,794 363
Insurance expenses 24,748 27,385
Bank charges 688 59
Rates and taxes 1,406 70
Travelling and conveyance 66,474 65,564
Commission to selling agents 89,669 41,749
Packing and forwarding (net) 104,461 81,663
Postage, telephone and fax 12,479 12,845
Sales promotion expenses 8,054 11,753
Professional fees 216,238 222,305
Allowance for expected credit loss (including bad debts and advances written off) 11,702 8,597
Miscellaneous expenses 11,789 17,206
Total 575,088 515,683




Tega Industries Inc
Notes ta the Special Purpose Financial Information

{All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)
Note: 25 Income tax expense
(a) Movement in deferred tax liability/ (assets)

Amounts

e - . allpwable for ta

Particulars Provisions bl Others Total
S purpose on

payment hasis

At 1 April 2021 (5.042) (17.425) 6,565 (15,902)
Charged/ (credited):

- to profit or loss # (1,897) (1,372) 2,549 (720)

- to other comprehensive income - - - -
At 31 March zozz (6,939) (18,797) 9,114 (16,622)
Charged/ (credited):

- to profit or loss # (2,583) 12,949 (4,323) 6,043

- to other comprehensive income - = =
At 31 March 2023 (9,522) (5,848) 4,791 (10,579)
(b) Income Tax Expense

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 42,834 21,960
Adjustments for current tax of prior years

Total current tax expense 42,434 21,960
Deferrved tax

Origination & reversal of temporary differences 6,043 (7z0)
Total deferred tax expense/ (benefit) 6,043 (7z0)
Total tax expense/ (credit) 48,477 21,240

(¢) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

Particulars - . : 31 March 2023 31 March zozz
Profit before tax 234,829 64,497
Tax on above @23.28% ( 31 March 2022 : 23.28%) 54,671 15,016
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in caleulating taxable income:

Tax on Permanent Differences (6,293) =
Non deductible expenses = (GRRY)
Taxes for ezrlier vears N 6,857
Total tax expense/ (credit) 48,478 21,240
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Notet 26 Fair value measurements

Finaneial instruments hy category

31 March zo23 : 81 March 2022
Particulars ! 7
arfieuls FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost

Financial assels
Investments

- Mutual funds - - - -
Trade receivables - 1,622,859 - 1,220,930
Cash and eash equivalents - 118,320 - 536,103
Other financial assets - 1.300 - 1,300
Total financial asscts - 1.742.479 = 1,758,333
Financial iebilities
Trade payables - 84,142 = 650,080
Other finaneial liabilities - - - -
Total financial liabilities = 84.142 = 650,080
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(All amounts in USD, unless otheywise stated)
Note: 26 Financial risk management {conlinued)
{C) Market risk

(i) Foreign curreney risk
The company deals with foreign currency bank accounts, trade receivables and contract assels, borrewings, trade payables and is therefere exposed to foreign exchange 11sk asscelated with exchange rate movement,

The company operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and ronsequently the company is exposed to forelgn excharge risk through its sales in overseas and purchases
from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. Foreign currency exchange rate exposuie is partly balanced by purchasing of goods, commedities and services in the respective currencies. The company
primarily uses derivatives to hedge its risk against fareign curiency balances of borrowings, trade payables, trade receivables and contract assets. Such exposures are managed within appreved policy paramelers
utilising foreign exchange forward contracts and options. Further, the company also has variable interest rate loan in foreign currency. To manage its risk against interest rate movernents the company has taken &n
interest rate swap. The company also enter into derivative contracts to hedge forecast sales and purchase ransactions using forward contracts.

Foreign currency risk exposure
The company 's exposure Lo foreign currency risk for majar currencies at the end of the reperting perfod expressed in AUD (foreign currency amount multiplied by closing rate), are as follows:-

21 March zo23
1S

Particulars

Financinl assets

Trate receivables and contract assets
Third Party
Related Party

| ank balanees

Nel exposure to foreign eurrency risk (assets} - - - - - - -

Finaneinl Liabilities
‘Trade and other payables

Third Party
Related Parly

Net expasure to foreign currency risk (linh

Net exposine - - - - - - il |

Particulirs 31 March 2022

usp GHS

Financial assets

‘Trade receivables and contract assets
Third Party
Related Party

Bank belances

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) - = : - - = -

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Third Party
Related Party
Net exposure ta foreign currency visk (liabilities)

Net exposie - - - - . = -

Sensitivity
The sensilivity of profil or loss to changes in the exthange rates arises mainly from foreign eurrency denominated financial instruments.

Trpacel on profit hefore tax

USD
31 March 2023
UBD nppreriates by 5% = - - = . .
LISD depreciates by 5%* - - - - - _
A1 March 2o2
LISE appreclates by 5%* - = = 5 = ~ >
USD depreciales by 5%° - - < = - »
T Halding oll ather varmbles constant




Tega Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information

Note: 26 Financial risk management (continued)
(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset.

Prudent liquidiiy risk management mmplies maintaming sufficient cash and marketable securities and the avallability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintzining availability under
committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the company 's financial liabilities into relevant maturity company ings based on their contractual maturities:
The amowunts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Carying Contractnal T e T T 3 o5 yoars Move than 5
31 March 2023 Value Cash Flows by : L Y A years
Non-derivatives

Trade payables - Third Party 84,142 84,142 84,1942

Trade payables - Related Party _ - - -

Total non-derivative financial liabilities 84,142 84,142 84,142 - - -

** Based on closing rates

Contractual maturitics of finanvial liabilitics Carrying Contractual g ) s 3 -l More than 5
31 March 2022 Value Cash Flows Less than 1 year 1-3years J-5years years
Non-derivatives

Trade payables - Third Party 37,907 37,907 37907

Trade payables - Related Party 612,173 612,173 612,173

Total non-derivative financial liabilities 650,080 650,080 650,080 - - -

** Based on closing rates



Tepu Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Finaneial Information
(All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 26 Financial risk management
The company ’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e. foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk:

Exposure arising from Management

Credit risk Cash and  cash  equivalents, trade]Diversification of  bank  deposits  and
receivables and contract assets and otherfinvestments. Entering into transactions with
financial assets measured at amortised|customers of repute / customers having sound
cost, finaneial position.

Liguidity risk Financial liabilities that are settled by|Projecting cash flows and considering the level of]
delivering cash or another financial asset, [liquid assets necessary tomeet the linbilities.

(4) Credit risk

Credit visk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and contract assets) including deposits with banks,
investments and other financial instruments. The eompany periodically monitors the recoverability and credit risks of its other financial assets
including security deposits and other receivables,

i) Trade receivables and contract assets
Customer credit risk is managed by the management subject to the company ‘s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management, Trade receivables and contract assets are non-interest bearing. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored,

At each reporting date the company measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on historical trend industry practice and the
business environment in which the company operates.

ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and investments is managed by the company in accordance with the company ’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The compamy ’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2023 is the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets, investments, balances with bank and other financial assets.

Provision for expected creditloss

In determination of the allowance for credit losses on receivables, the company has used a practical experience by computing the expected credit
losses based on provision matrix, which has taken into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information, The
company also analyses all its receivables periodically for recoverability assessment and wherever they have analysed that the receivable may be
credit impaired on account of non recoverability, loss allowance on such receivables have been provided in full.

Details of allowances for expected credit loss are provided hereunder :-

For the year ended || For the vear ended

Particulars . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

At the beginning of the year 14,936 6,339
Provisions created/ (written back) during the year (net) (a) 11,702 8,507

Closing at the end of the year 26,638 14,936




Tega Industries Inc
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information
(All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 27 Capital management
(a) Risk management

The company s objectives when managing capital are to:

» safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

» maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The eapital structure of the company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The company manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity, long term borrowings
and short term borrowings.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The company ’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth
of its business. The company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

Net debt recenciliation
This section sets out an analvsis of debt and the movements in net debt for the current vear

Particulars L 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cash eguivalents 118,320 536,103
536,103

Other asscls Liabilities from financing activities

_Particulzu's Cash and cash Non-eurrent

5 F Current borrowings
cquivalents horrowings

Net debt as at 1 April zo022" 536,103 536,103
Cash flows (417,783) - - (417,783)
Net debt as at 31 March 2023~ 118.323 - - 118,323
*balances include interest accrued on borrowings

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities

Particulars Cash and cash Non-current . Total
: " Current horrowings
equivalenis barrowings

Net debt as at 1 April 2021 102,685 192,685
Cash flows 343,418 - = 343,418
Net debt as at 31 March 2022* 536,103 = = 536,103

*halances include interest accrued on borrowings

Note: 28 Segment information
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of distributing specialised wear resistant rubber products in North America, primarily to the mining and material handling industries. In accordance with Ind
AS-108 "Operating Segments", the Company has presented the segment information on the basis of its Consclidated Financial Statements



Tega Industries Ine
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Information

(All amounts in USD, unless otherwise stated)
Note: 29 Earnings per share

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Computation of Earnings for Equity Shares

A Net Profit attributable 1o the shareholders of the company 186,352 43,257
B Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year other than which are dilutive
2,000 2,000
c Effect of equity shares which are dilutive >
D = (B+C) Weighted average nuruber of equity shares outstanding during the year (dilutive) 2,000 2,000

Earrnings per equity share

A/B Earnings pet share - Basic 93 22
A/D Earnings per share - Diluted 93 22




Tegn Induslries Tue
Noles 1o 1he Special Purpose Financinl Infermation

Call amnnnts in IS0, unless othenvise stated)
Nole: 30 Related party Transaction

Related party disclosure pursnant to Ind AS 24 prescribed under the act

Tetnil reluted parties:

Ultimate Holding Compa| Wihal Fiscal Ser hoorporated in {ndia)

Holding Company 'Tega Industries Limited {Subsidiary of Nihal Fiscal Services Private Limlted)

Fellow Subsidiaries Tega Industries Chile SpA (TICS)

[ Tega Indusiries Conada Ine, Canada (T1C)

Tewa Indusiries Australia Pty Ltd, Ausiralia (TI1APL)

'Tega Do Brasil Servicos Technicos Limitda, Brasil (TDBSTL}

Tega [nvesiment Limited, Bahamas (TIL) {Ceased to be Subsidiary w.e f November 14, z022)
Losugen Pty Lid, Australia (LPL)

Tegd Holdings Pty Ltd, Australia (THFTY)

Tega Holdings Ple L\d, Singapore (THPTE)

Tega Investment Seuth Africa Pty Lid, Scutt Alvica (TISAPL)

Tega Industies Africa Pty Lid, South Africa (TIAPL)

Tega Equipinent ( Subsidairy w.e.f Decewnber 02, 2022 uptec March 29, 2023)

MeNally Sayaji Engineering Limiled (Subsidiary w.e.f February 24, 2023)

MBE Coal & Mineral Technology India Pvt. Ltd. (Became Subsidiary on February 24, 2023 and Ceased o be
subsidiary w.e.f March 29, 2023)

Joinl Veninre Hoseh Bquipment ([ndia) Limited
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Madan Mohan Mohanka (Unpaid Pasition)

Wehul Mohan ka (Unpaid Posilion)
Sandeep Bisw as (uplo 7th September 2022)

Hote: Related parties have been identified by the Mansgement,

Details of relaled purty transactions for the year ended 31 Marel 2023 nnd balanees outstonding sis at 31 Marel 202

Particalars

Purchase of Goods & Services 4,258,858 70,720 = 4,326,578
Sale of Goods & Services - - 7,063 7,063
Re-imbursement of Expenses 4,000 4,000

1 v oot tvg el of D geoar

[Trade Recehables - - 5273 5273
Advanee Lo Suppliers 277,508 - - 277,508

Detnils of related porty transactions for the T March 2022 and balances oulstanding ns nt 31 March 2022:

Purchise of Goods & Senices 2,663,952

Business Supporl Serviee Expense L) 100
Recaviry of Expenses 369,566 369,566
Re-imbursemont of Expenses -
Bafaness outsbanding ot the g of the year

Trinde Receivables 74,730 74,730
‘Tindn Paynbles 612,173 - 612,73
Hemuneration 1o KMP

During lhe year, the Company recognised an amount of USD 13¢,442 (31 March 2022 : 260,308 USD ) as remuneration to key managerial personnel. The details of such
remuneration isas below:

Particulars: at-Mar-z3 ai-Mar-22

Remuneration to KMP

Note: 31 Relationship with Struck off Campanies

/ Jino hal

The Company does not have any t

with any ies regi d undel the C: ies Act, 2013 except for Tega industiies Linited

Note: 32 Transaction in Cryplo Cucrency
The Company has not traded or v ested in Crypto Currency ar virlual currency during the financial year.

For REA CPAs For ond on behalf of Board of Directors
Professienal Corporation

At

place: TUCSON, Arizona Director
bate: May 22, 2023

Director
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INFORME DEL AUDITOR INDEPENDIENTE
Santiago, 24 de mayo de 2023

Sefores Accionistas y Directores
Tega Industries SpA.

Hemos efectuado una auditoria a los estados financieros consolidados adjuntos de Tega Industries SpA
y subsidiaria, que comprenden los estados consolidados de situacién financiera al 31 de marzo de 2023
y 2022 y los correspondientes estados consolidados de resultados, de resultados integrales, de cambios
en el patrimonio y de flujos de efectivo por los afios terminados en esas fechas y las correspondientes
notas a los estados financieros consolidados.

Responsabilidad de la Administracién por los estados financieros consolidados

La Administraciéon es responsable por la preparacion y presentacién razonable de estos estados
financieros consolidados de acuerdo con Normas Internacionales de Informacién Financiera. Esta
responsabilidad incluye el disefio, implementacién y mantencién de un control interno pertinente para
la preparacion y presentacion razonable de estados financieros consolidados que estén exentos de
representaciones incorrectas significativas, ya sea debido a fraude o error.

Responsabilidad del auditor

Nuestra responsabilidad consiste en expresar una opinién sobre estos estados financieros consolidados
a base de nuestras auditorias. Efectuamos nuestras auditorias de acuerdo con Normas de Auditoria
Generalmente Aceptadas en Chile. Tales normas requieren que planifiquemos y realicemos nuestro
trabajo con el objeto de lograr un razonable grado de seguridad de que los estados financieros
consolidados estan exentos de representaciones incorrectas significativas.

Una auditoria comprende efectuar procedimientos para obtener evidencia de auditoria sobre los montos
y revelaciones en los estados financieros consolidados. Los procedimientos seleccionados dependen del
juicio del auditor, incluyendo la evaluacion de los riesgos de representaciones incorrectas significativas
de los estados financieros consolidados, ya sea debido a fraude o error. Al efectuar estas evaluaciones de
los riesgos, el auditor considera el control interno pertinente para la preparacién y presentacion
razonable de los estados financieros consolidados de la entidad con el objeto de disefiar procedimientos
de auditoria que sean apropiados en las circunstancias, pero sin el propdsito de expresar una opinién
sobre la efectividad del control interno de la entidad. En consecuencia, no expresamos tal tipo de
opinién. Una auditoria incluye, también, evaluar lo apropiadas que son las politicas de contabilidad
utilizadas y la razonabilidad de las estimaciones contables significativas efectuadas por la
Administracion, asi como una evaluacion de la presentaciéon general de los estados financieros
consolidados.

Consideramos que la evidencia de auditoria que hemos obtenido es suficiente y apropiada para
proporcionarnos una base para nuestra opinion.

PwC Chile, Av. Andrés Bello 2711 - piso 5, Las Condes — Santiago, Chile
RUT: 81.513.400-1 | Teléfono: (56 2) 2940 0000 | www.pwe.cl
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Santiago, 24 de mayo de 2023
Tega Industries SpA
2

Opinion

En nuestra opinion, los mencionados estados financieros consolidados presentan razonablemente, en
todos sus aspectos significativos, la situaciéon financiera de Tega Industries SpA y subsidiaria al 31 de
marzo de 2023 y 2022, los resultados de sus operaciones y los flujos de efectivo por los afios terminados
en esas fechas de acuerdo con Normas Internacionales de Informacién Financiera.

DocuSigned by:
[ %% . ?mumws&,w

S5F5C425C230047A...

Bruno Forgione M.
RUT: 25.177.640-7



Tega Industries Chile S.P.A. y subsidiaria

Estados consolidados de Situacion Financiera
al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022

Activos

Activos corrientes
Efectivo y equivalentes al efectivo
Otros activos no financieros
Deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar
Cuentas por cobrar a entidades relacionadas
Inventarios
Activos por impuestos corrientes

Total activos corrientes

Activos no corrientes
Activos intangibles distintos de la plusvalia
Propiedades, planta y equipos
Activos por derecho de uso
Activos por impuestos diferidos

Total activos no corrientes

Total activos

Nota

9a
10a
1la

12

13

14
1l1c

2023 2022

M$ M$
361.467 871.394
1.930.958 923.440
8.614.474 6.065.533
60.122 68.176
6.080.179 5.666.414
60.579 34.465
17.107.779 13.629.422
96.975 114.414
7.610.313 4.318.549
4.334.789 2.372.574
555.121 1.116.585
12.597.198 7.922.122
29.704.977 21.551.544

Las notas adjuntas forman parte integral de estos estados financieros consolidados.

3



Tega Industries Chile S.P.A. y subsidiaria

Estados consolidados de Situacion Financiera
al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022

Pasivos y patrimonio

Pasivos corrientes

Otros pasivos financieros

Cuentas por pagar comerciales y otras cuentas por pagar
Cuentas por pagar a entidades relacionadas

Pasivos por Impuestos corrientes

Provisiones por beneficios a los empleados

Otros pasivos no financieros

Total pasivos corrientes

Pasivos no corrientes
Cuentas por pagar a entidades relacionadas
Otros pasivos financieros

Pasivos por impuestos diferidos
Total pasivos no corrientes
Total pasivos

Patrimonio

Capital social
Resultados acumulados
Otras reservas

Patrimonio atribuible a los propietarios de la controladora
Participaciones no controladoras

Patrimonio total

Total pasivos y patrimonio

Nota

15a
16
9b

11b
17
18

9c
15a

11d

20a

19

2023 2022
M$ M$

5.198.381 4.080.096
3.186.817 2.888.533
1.824.497 3.479.433
754.238 5.234
197.002 168.017
- 11.668
11.160.935 10.632.981
2.371.230 3.589.249
4.184.966 3.143.024
6.556.196 6.732.273
17.717.131 17.365.254
28.758.994 24.062.466
(16.458.790) (19.563.870)
(312.492) (312.418)
11.987.712 4.186.178
134 112
11.987.846 4.186.290
29.704.977 21.551.544

Las notas adjuntas forman parte integral de estos estados financieros consolidados.
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Tega Industries Chile S.P.A. y subsidiaria

Estados consolidados de resultados
Por los afios terminados al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022

Ingresos de actividades ordinarias
Costo de ventas

Margen bruto

Gastos de administracion
Otros ingresos
Depreciacion y amortizacion
Ingresos financieros

Costos financieros
Diferencias de cambio, neto

Resultado antes de impuesto a las ganancias
(Gasto)/beneficio por impuesto a las ganancias

Ganancia del ejercicio

Nota  31-03-2023 31-03-2022
M$ M$
21a 31.756.686 23.090.869
21b  (17.657.468) (13.221.265)
14.099.218 9.869.604
21d (7.721.995) (5.643.362)
21c 106.401 168.787
21e (1.705.415) (1.299.771)
21h - -
21g (954.324) (582.203)
21f (12.083) (498.302)
3.811.802 2.014.753
21i (706.700) (388.755)
3.105.102 1.625.998

Las notas adjuntas forman parte integral de estos estados financieros consolidados.
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Tega Industries Chile S.P.A. y subsidiaria

Estados consolidados de Resultados integrales
por los afios terminados al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022

31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Ganancia del ejercicio 3.105.102 1.625.998
Otros resultados integrales
Ganancias (pérdidas) por diferencias de cambio de
conversion de subsidiaria en el exterior (74) 12.481
Resultado integral total 3.105.028 1.638.479
Resultado integral atribuible a:
Propietarios de la controladora 3.105.006 1.638.647
Participaciones no controladoras 19 22 (168)
3.105.028 1.638.479

Las notas adjuntas forman parte integral de estos estados financieros consolidados.
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Tega Industries Chile S.P.A. y subsidiaria

Estados consolidados de Cambios en el Patrimonio
por los afios terminados al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022

Patrimonio
Conversion Total Ganancias atribuible alos

Capital de moneda Otras Otras (pérdidas) propietarios de Participaciones Patrimonio

Social extranjera Reservas Reservas Acumuladas la controladora no controladoras total

M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$
Saldo inicial al 1 de abril de 2022 24.062.466 281 (312.699) (312.418) (19.563.870) 4.186.178 112 4.186.290
Aumento (Disminucién) de capital 4.696.528 - - - - 4.696.528 - 4.696.528

Resultado integral:
Ganancia del ejercicio - - - - 3.105.080 3.105.080 22 3.105.102
Otro resultado integral - - (74) (74) - (74) - (74)
Total cambios en el patrimonio  4-696.528 0 (74) (74)  3.105.080 7.801.534 22 7.801.556
Saldo al 31 de marzo de 2023 28.758.994 281 (312.773)  (312.492) (16.458.790) 11.987.712 134 11.987.846
Patrimonio
Conversion Total Ganancias atribuible alos

Capital de moneda Otras Otras (pérdidas) propietarios de Participaciones Patrimonio

Social extranjera Reservas Reservas Acumuladas la controladora no controladoras Total

M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$
Saldo inicial al 1 de abril de 2021 24.062.466 (12.200) (312.699)  (324.899) (21.190.036) 2.547.531 280 2.547.811
Aumento (Disminucion) de capital - - - - - - - -

Resultado integral:

Ganancia del ejercicio - - - - 1.626.166 1.626.166 (168) 1.625.998
Otro resultado integral - 12.481 - 12.481 - 12.481 - 12.481
Total cambios en el patrimonio - 12.481 - 12.481  1.626.166 1.638.647 (168) 1.638.479
Saldo al 31 de marzo de 2022 24.062.466 281 (312.699)  (312.418) (19.563.870) 4.186.178 112 4.186.290

Las notas adjuntas forman parte integral de estos estados financieros consolidados.
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Tega Industries Chile S.P.A. y subsidiaria

Estados consolidados de Flujos de Efectivo
por los afios terminados al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022

Flujo originado por actividad de la operacién
Cobro procedentes de ventas de bienes y prestacion
servicios
Pago a proveedores por el suministro de bienes y
servicios

Total flujos de efectivo netos usados en
actividades de la operacion
Flujo originado por actividades de inversion

Deposito Plazo
Venta de propiedades, planta y equipos
Compra de propiedades, planta y equipos

Total flujos de efectivo netos usados en
actividades de inversion

Flujo originado por actividades de financiamiento
Operaciones con factoring
Préstamos de empresas relacionadas

Préstamos bancarios

Total flujos de efectivo netos provenientes de
actividades de financiamiento

Variacion neta de efectivo y efectivo equivalente
Saldo inicial de efectivo y efectivo equivalente

Saldo final de efectivo y efectivo equivalente

2023
M$

67.490.567

(83.279.035)

2022
M$

31.688.404

(34.386.520)

(15.788.468) (2.698.116)
11.300 28.000
(4.257.730) (1.508.983)
(4.246.430) (1.480.983)
17.733.189 4.489.735
2.378.211 -
(586.429) (545.178)
19.524.971 3.944.557
(509.927) (234.542)
871.394 1.105.936
361.467 871.394

Las notas adjuntas forman parte integral de estos estados financieros consolidados.
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Notas a los estados financieros consolidados
Al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022

1 Informacion general

Tega Industries Chile SPA, en adelante “la Sociedad” o “Matriz”, se constituy6 en Chile como sociedad anénima
cerrada estando sujeta a la Ley de Sociedades Anénimas N° 18.046 del 22 de octubre de 1981 y modificaciones
posteriores.

La Sociedad fue constituida por escritura publica de fecha 05 de febrero de 1990 ante el Notario Publico don Aliro
Veloso Mufioz. Su legalizacién se publicé en el Diario Oficial de fecha 07 de febrero de 1990, y se inscribi6 en el
Registro de Comercio del Conservador de Bienes Raices de Santiago a fojas 17121 N® 8739 en el afio 1992.

Para efectos de tributacién en Chile, el rol unico tributario (RUT) es el N°© 96.574.420-7.

La Sociedad tiene por objeto la compra, venta, transformacién y/o comercializacién de toda clase de bienes
corporales muebles, pudiendo también realizar importaciones, exportaciones y, en general, cualquier operacion de
comercio exterior, la representacién de empresas y bienes relacionados con lo anterior, la intermediacién de los
mismos bienes, el asesoramiento en aspectos técnicos y comerciales y, por ultimo, todas las operaciones o negocios
que acuerden los accionistas y que tengan relacién con su objeto. La duracién de la Sociedad serd indefinida.

Propiedad
a) La propiedad de la Sociedad al 31 de marzo de 2023 es la siguiente:
Accionistas N° acciones N° acciones N° acciones clase
clase A clase B C
Tega Holding Pte. Ltd. 38.727 - 271.173
Total 38.727 - 271.173

b) La propiedad de la Sociedad al 31 de marzo de 2022 es la siguiente:

Accionistas N° acciones N° acciones N° acciones clase
clase A clase B C

Tega Holding Pte. Ltd. 38.727 - 217.218

Total 38.727 - 217.218

Por lo tanto, el controlador de la Sociedad es Tega Holding Pte. Ltd.

El domicilio social y las oficinas principales de la Sociedad se encuentran en la comuna de Quilicura, Chile, en calle
Av. Galvarino N° 7701, teléfono N° (56-2) 24848301.

La Sociedad mantiene dos subsidiarias las que se mencionan en Nota 2.

El personal que integra Tega Industries Chile SPA al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022 se distribuye de la siguiente
forma:

Areas Gerencial Técnicos Trabajadores Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Comercial 2 3 6 6 4 4 12 13
Administracion 11 8 41 43 - - 52 51
Produccion 2 2 16 16 56 52 74 70

Totales 15 13 63 65 60 56 138 134
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2 Resumen de principales politicas contables

A continuacién, se describen las principales politicas contables adoptadas por el Grupo en la preparacién y
presentacion de los presentes estados financieros consolidados.

Tal como lo requieren las NIIF, estas politicas contables han sido disefiadas en funcién a las NIIF vigentes al 31
de marzo de 2023.

Bases de preparacion

Los presentes estados financieros consolidados de la Sociedad por los doce meses terminados el 31 de marzo de
2023 han sido preparados de acuerdo con Normas Internacionales de Informacién Financiera (NIIF) emitidas por
el International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

En la preparacion de estos estados financieros consolidados la Administracién de la Sociedad ha aplicado su mejor
entendimiento de las NIIF, sus interpretaciones y de los hechos y circunstancias que estan vigentes a la fecha de su
preparacién., lo que representa de manera integral explicita y sin restricciones de las normas internacionales.

La preparacién de los presentes estados financieros consolidados, conforme a las NIIF, exige el uso de ciertas
estimaciones y criterios contables. También exige a la Administraciéon de la Sociedad que ejerza su juicio en el
proceso de aplicar las politicas contables. En Nota sobre Responsabilidad de la informacién y estimaciones y
criterios contables se revelan las areas que implican un mayor grado de juicio o complejidad o las areas donde las
estimaciones son significativas para las cuentas reveladas.

El criterio general usado por la Sociedad para la valorizacién contable de sus activos y pasivos es el costo, excepto
ciertos activos financieros que se registran a valor razonable.
Periodos contables

Los presentes estados financieros consolidado comprenden los perfiodos que a continuacién se mencionan:

® Hstados consolidados de situacion financiera al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022.

e Estados consolidados de resultados por los periodos comprendidos entre el 1 de abril de 2022 y 2020 y el
31 de matzo de 2023 y 2022.

® Hstados consolidados de resultados integrales por los petfodos comprendidos entre el 1 de abril de 2022 y
2020 y el 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022.

e Estados consolidados de cambios en el patrimonio por los periodos comprendidos entre el 1 de abril de
2022y 2020 y el 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022.

e Estados consolidados de flujos de efectivo por los periodos comprendidos entre el 1 de abril de 2022 y
2020 y el 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022.
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Bases de presentacion

Los estados financieros consolidados se presentan en miles de pesos chilenos, sin decimales, por ser ésta la moneda
de presentacién del Grupo.

En los estados consolidados de situacién financiera adjuntos, los activos y pasivos se clasifican en funcién de sus
vencimientos entre cortientes, aquellos con vencimiento igual o inferior a doce meses, y no cortientes, aquellos
cuyo vencimiento es supetior a doce meses, de acuerdo con la NIC N°1.

A su vez, en los estados consolidados de resultados se presentan los gastos clasificados por funcién, identificando
las depreciaciones y gastos del personal en base a su naturaleza y el estado consolidado de flujos de efectivo se
presenta por el método directo.

El estado consolidado de situacién financiera al 31 de marzo de 2023 se presenta comparado con los
correspondientes al 31 de marzo 2022.

Los estados consolidados de resultados, de resultados integrales, de flujos de efectivo y de cambios en el patrimonio
muestran los movimientos de los petriodos comprendidos entre el 1 de abril de 2022 y 2020 y el 31 de marzo de
2023 y 2022.

Bases de consolidacion
a)  Grupo Tega Industries Chile
Al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022 Tega Industries Chile SpA controla directamente una subsidiaria.

En sus estados financieros consolidados Tega Industries Chile SpA ha consolidado todas aquellas sociedades en
las cuales posee el control de la operacién en sus negocios.

A continuacion, se muestra el Grupo Tega Industries Chile SpA a las fechas que se indican, precisando su principal

linea de negocios, tipo de Sociedad, pals y moneda funcional:
Tipo Pais Moneda 31.03.2023  31.03.2022
Sociedades funcional % %
Tega Industries Chile SpA Matriz Chile Pesos -
Edoctum S.A. Matriz / Subsidiaria Chile Pesos 99,89% 99,89%
Edoctum Perd S.A.C. Subsidiaria indirecta Peru Pesos - -

b) Subsidiaria

Subsidiaria es toda entidad dependiente sobre las que Tega Industries Chile SpA tiene poder para dirigir las politicas
financieras y de explotaciéon que viene acompafiado generalmente de una participacion superior a la mitad de los
derechos de voto.

A la hora de evaluar si Tega Industries Chile SpA controla otra entidad se considera la existencia y el efecto de los
derechos potenciales de voto que sean ejercibles o convertibles a la fecha de cierre de los estados financieros.

Las subsidiarias se consolidan a partir de la fecha en que se transfiere el control a Tega Industries Chile SpA y se
excluyen de la consolidaciéon en la fecha en que cesa el mismo.

Para contabilizar la compra de subsidiarias, Tega Industries Chile SpA utiliza el método de adquisicion.

Este método de adquisicién establece que el costo de adquisicién corresponde al valor razonable de los activos
entregados y de los pasivos incurridos o asumidos en la fecha de intercambio.
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b)  Subsidiaria (Continuacién)
Los activos identificables adquiridos y los pasivos y contingencias identificables asumidos en una combinacién de
negocios se valoran inicialmente por su valor razonable a la fecha de adquisicion, con independencia del alcance de
las participaciones no controladoras. El exceso del costo de adquisicion sobre el valor razonable de la participacion
de la Sociedad en los activos netos identificables adquiridos se reconoce como un activo denominado Plusvalia. Si
el costo de adquisicién es menor que el valor razonable de los activos netos de la subsidiaria adquirida, la diferencia

se reconoce directamente en resultados.

Como parte del proceso de consolidacién se eliminan las transacciones, los saldos pot cobrar y/o pagar y los
resultados no realizados por operaciones entre la Sociedad matriz con sus subsidiarias y entre sus subsidiarias.

Las politicas contables de las subsidiarias son uniformes con las de Tega Industries Chile SpA.

Las participaciones no controladoras se presentan en el rubro patrimonio neto del estado consolidado de situacién
financiera clasificado.

La ganancia o pérdida atribuible a la participacién no controladora se presenta en el estado consolidado de
resultados por funcién conformando la ganancia (pérdida) del ejercicio.

Los resultados de las transacciones entre los accionistas no controladores y los accionistas de las empresas donde
se comparte la propiedad se registran dentro del patrimonio y, por lo tanto, se muestran en el estado consolidado
de cambios del patrimonio neto.

b.1) Subsidiatia en Chile

Edoctum S.A.: la principal actividad de la Sociedad es la participacion y realizacién de eventos técnicos, cursos,
seminarios y congresos.

b.2) Subsidiaria indirecta en Perd
Edoctum Pera S.A.C.: la principal actividad de la Sociedad es brindar servicios de asesoramiento empresarial.
Transacciones en moneda extranjera

a)  Moneda funcional, de presentacion y extranjera

Los importes incluidos en los estados financieros consolidados de la Sociedad se valoran utilizando la moneda del
entorno econémico principal en que la entidad opera (moneda funcional).

La moneda de presentacion de los estados financieros consolidados de la Sociedades pesos chilenos, siendo esta
moneda no hiperinflacionaria durante los ejercicios reportados.

Todas las operaciones que realiza la Sociedad en una moneda diferente a la moneda funcional son tratadas como
moneda extranjera y se registran a tipo de cambio vigente a la fecha de la transaccion.

Los saldos de activos y pasivos monetarios denominados en moneda extranjera se presentan valorizados a tipo de
cambio de cierre de cada ejercicio.



Tega Industries Chile SpA 14

Transacciones en moneda extranjera (Continuacion)
b) Tipo de cambio de moneda extranjera y variaciéon de la unidad de fomento

Los tipos de cambio de las principales divisas y las variaciones de unidades de fomento utilizadas en los procesos
contables la Sociedad, respecto al peso chileno, al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022 son los siguientes:

Moneda
Unidad reajuste 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Délar americano 790,41 787,98
Unidad de fomento 35.575,48 31.727,74

Efectivo y equivalentes al efectivo

Se considera efectivo y equivalentes al efectivo los saldos de dinero mantenido en caja y en cuentas corrientes
bancarias, los depdsitos a plazo y otras inversiones financieras seguras (valores negociables de facil liquidacién) con
vencimiento a menos de 90 dias desde la fecha de inversion.

Las lineas de sobregiros bancarias utilizadas se incluyen en los préstamos que devengan intereses en el item otros
pasivos financieros corrientes.

Criterios de valorizacién de activos y pasivos financieros

De acuerdo con NIIF 9, inicialmente todos los activos y pasivos financieros deben ser valorizados segun su valor
razonable mas o menos, en el caso de activos o pasivos financieros que se contabilice como a valor razonable con
cambios en resultados, los costos de transaccién que son directamente identificables a la adquisicién o emision del
activo financiero o del pasivo financiero.

Las valorizaciones posteriores de los activos y pasivos financieros dependerdn de la categoria en la que se hayan
clasificado, la Sociedad mantiene las siguientes categorias:

- Activos y pasivos (instrumentos) financieros medidos a costo amortizado,
- Activos y pasivos (instrumentos) financieros a valor razonable con cambios en resultados y otros resultados
integrales.

Los instrumentos financieros se dan de baja cuando los derechos a recibir o pagar flujos de efectivo de estos
instrumentos han vencido o se han transferido y la Sociedad ha traspasado sustancialmente todos los riesgos y
ventajas derivados de su titularidad.

a)  Activos y pasivos (instrumentos) financieros medidos a costo amortizado
Los instrumentos financieros no derivados con pagos fijos o determinables que no cotizan en un mercado activo.
Se incluyen en esta categoria los deudores comerciales, otras cuentas por cobrar, pasivos financieros, otras cuentas
por pagar del activo y pasivo corriente, excepto aquellos deudores o acreedores cuyos vencimientos son superiores

a 12 meses desde la fecha del estado financiero consolidado que se clasifican como activo o pasivo no corriente.

Su reconocimiento se realiza a través del costo amortizado, registrandose directamente en resultados el
devengamiento de las condiciones pactadas.

La Sociedad evalia en la fecha de cada estado financiero consolidado si existe evidencia objetiva de que un
instrumento/activo financiero o un grupo de instrumentos/activos financieros puedan haber sufrido pérdidas por
deterioro.
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a) Activos y pasivos (instrumentos) financieros medidos a costo amortizado (Continuacion)

En el caso Deudores y otras cuentas por cobrar se incluyen en la definicion de activos financieros y la medicion de
estos activos se ha realizado en el modelo de Costo Amortizado. De acuerdo con el modelo de costo amortizado,
un activo financiero se clasifica como medido posteriormente al costo amortizado segun la NIIF 9 si cumple con
los dos criterios siguientes:

® DPrueba de espera para recopilar el modelo de negocio: el activo se mantiene dentro de un modelo de negocio
cuyo objetivo es mantener el activo financiero para recopilar los flujos de efectivo contractuales.

® | existencia de dificultades financieras significativas por parte del deudor, la probabilidad de que el deudor
entre en quiebra o reorganizacion financiera y la falta o mora excesiva en los pagos se consideran indicadores
de que la cuenta a cobrar se podtia haber detetiorado.

En la aplicacién del interés efectivo se aplica materialidad (considerando montos y plazos).

Importes por cobrar hasta un aflo se registran a sus valores nominales. Cuando excede dicho plazo, se procede a
su descuento, a fin de reconocer la porcién de ingresos financieros.

b) Activosy pasivos (instrumentos) financieros a valor razonable con cambios en resultados y otros resultados
integrales

Los activos y pasivos financieros a valor razonable con cambios en resultados son instrumentos financieros
mantenidos para negociar.

Un instrumento financiero se clasifica en esta categoria si se adquiere principalmente con el propésito de venderse
en el corto plazo.

Los derivados también se clasifican como adquiridos para su negociacién a menos que sean designados como
coberturas.

Los instrumentos de esta categoria se clasifican como activos y pasivos cortientes.

Su valorizacién postetior se realiza mediante la determinaciéon de su valor razonable, registrandose en resultados,
en otras ganancias (pérdidas) los cambios de valor.

Deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar (neto de provision para deterioros de valor)

Las cuentas comerciales se reconocen como activo cuando la Sociedad genera su derecho de cobro, en base a los
criterios de reconocimiento de ingresos que se exponen mas adelante.

Las cuentas comerciales por cobrar se reconocen inicialmente por su valor razonable y posteriormente pot su costo
amortizado de acuerdo con el método del tipo de interés efectivo, menos la provision por pérdidas por deterioro
del valor.

Para cuantificar el monto del deterioro comprometido, la administracion evalda periddicamente los casos
b
particulares y sujetos a ser considerados como incobrables, realizando analisis cuantitativos y cualitativos.
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Provision para pérdidas crediticias esperadas

En la determinacion de la provision para pérdidas crediticias en deudores comerciales, la compafiia ha utilizado una
experiencia practica al calcular las pérdidas crediticias esperadas en funcién de construir una matriz/tabla de
recuperacion de créditos de los dltimos tres perfodos contables de 12 meses, que ha tenido en cuenta la experiencia
histérica de pérdidas crediticias y se ha ajustado para la informacién prospectiva, determinando un valor estimado
de créditos no recuperados a la fecha de cierre de los estados financieros, adicionalmente, se analiza el
comportamiento de cada cliente evaluando individualmente cada saldo de cuenta por cobrar para identificar riesgos
de incobrabilidad para ser provisionada 100%.

Inventarios
La Sociedad valoriza sus inventarios al menor valor entre el costo y el valor neto realizable. Se entiende por valor
neto realizable el precio de venta estimado en el transcurso normal de los negocios, menos los costos estimados

para realizar la venta.

En aquellos casos que el valor neto realizable es menor al costo, se realiza una provisién por el diferencial del valor
con cargo a resultados del ejercicio.

Los inventarios corresponden a materias primas PU, cafierfas, adaptadores e insumos.
Obsolescencia de inventario
La politica de provisiones por obsolescencia de la Sociedad contempla los siguientes criterios:

a. Todo el producto terminado que se encuentra en el inventario durante mas de 3 aflos, se requiere una
provision del 100% por obsolescencia

b. Todo el material que se clasifica como Suministros y se encuentra en el inventario por mas de 2 afos, se
requiere una provisioén del 100% por obsolescencia

C. Toda la materia prima esta agrupada en 5 categorias:

i.  Ceramica: Toda la ceramica que tenga mas de 2 afios en el inventario requerira la provision; siguiendo la
siguiente tabla:

Afo / Detalle 3-4 afios 4-5 afos 5-6 afios 6-7 afios >7 afios
% de provision 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

i.  Poliuretano: todo el poliuretano que se encuentra en el inventario por més de 3 aflos requerira la provision
a una tasa del 100%

ili.  Refuerzo: Todos los refuerzos que tengan mas de 2 afios en el inventario requeriran la provision;
siguiendo la siguiente tabla:

Afo / Detalle 2-3 afios 3-4 afios >4 afios
% de provision 30% 60% 100%

iv.  Caucho: Todos los refuerzos que tienen mas de 2 afios en el inventario requeriran la provisién a una tasa

del 100%
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Obsolescencia de inventario (Continuacion)

v.  Tuberfa: Todos los refuerzos que se encuentran mas de 3 afios en el inventario requeriran la provision,
pero hasta un méaximo del 50%; segin la siguiente tabla:

Ao / Detalle 3-4 afios 4-5 afios 5-6 afios 6-7 afios >7 afios
% de provision 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

Activos intangibles distintos a la plusvalia
Los activos intangibles corresponden principalmente a derechos de marca, gastos de adquisicién y desarrollo de
software computacionales y adquisicién de licencias de uso de software.

a) Derechos de marca
Los derechos de marca adquiridos por la Sociedad corresponden al registro comercial de las principales marcas
utilizadas tanto en el mercado nacional como en el extranjero.

b) Costos de adquisicién y desarrollo de software computacional
Los costos de adquisicién y desarrollo de software computacional relevante y especifico para la Sociedad son
activados y amortizados en el ejercicio en que se espera generar ingresos por su uso.

9) Licencias de uso de software

La Sociedad mantiene activado licencias de uso de software, las que amortiza en sus respectivos periodos de
cobertura.

Propiedades, planta y equipos

Se clasifican en propiedades, planta y equipos aquellos elementos de activos fijos utilizados en las actividades
operacionales de la Sociedad.

a) Valorizacién inicial

Los elementos de activo fijo incluidos en propiedades, planta y equipos, salvo terrenos y obras en curso, se
reconocen por su costo inicial menos depreciacién y pérdidas por deterioro acumuladas, si las hubiera.

Los terrenos y obras en curso se presentan a sus costos iniciales netos de pérdidas por deterioro acumuladas, si las
hubiera.

El costo inicial de propiedades, planta y equipos incluye todas aquellas erogaciones directamente atribuibles a la
adquisicién y/o construccion del activo fijo y hasta la fecha en que quede en condiciones de cumplir con el objetivo
pata el cual fue adquitido y/o construido.

En el financiamiento de un activo a través de créditos directos e indirectos, respecto de los intereses, la politica es
capitalizar dichos costos durante el periodo de construccién o adquisicion.

Las adquisiciones pactadas en una moneda diferente a la moneda funcional o en una unidad reajustable se
convierten a dicha moneda funcional al tipo de cambio o unidad reajustable vigente al dia de la adquisicion.
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b) Valorizacién postetior

La Sociedad opta por valorizar los elementos de propiedades, planta y equipos al costo neto de depreciaciones y
pérdidas por deterioro acumuladas, si correspondiere.

Los costos derivados de mantenimientos diarios y reparaciones comunes son reconocidos en el resultado del
¢jercicio.

Las reposiciones de partes o piezas importantes y de repuestos estratégicos se capitalizan y deprecian a lo largo del
resto de la vida 1til de los activos, sobre la base del enfoque por componentes.

Los costos posteriores se incluyen en el valor del activo inicial o se reconocen como un activo separado, sélo
cuando es probable que los beneficios econémicos futuros asociados con los elementos del activo fijo vayan a fluir
ala Sociedad y el costo del elemento pueda determinarse de forma fiable.

Reparaciones y mantenciones a los activos fijos se cargan en el resultado del ejercicio en el que se incurren.
Cuando el valor de un activo fijo es superior a su importe recuperable estimado, su valor se reduce de forma
inmediata hasta su importe recuperable, con cargo a los resultados del ejercicio (a menos que pueda ser compensada
con una revaluacion positiva anterior, con cargo a patrimonio).

Las pérdidas o ganancias por la venta de propiedades, planta y equipos se calculan comparando los ingresos
obtenidos por la venta, con el valor en libros del activo (neto de depreciacién y deterioro acumulado) y se incluyen
en el estado consolidado de resultados.

a) Depreciacién y amortizacion

La depreciacién se calcula utilizando el método lineal distribuyéndose en forma sistematica a lo largo de su vida
util.

La vida util de los activos se ha determinado principalmente en base al deterioro natural esperado y su obsolescencia
técnica o comercial.

A continuacién, las vidas utiles y valores residuales:

Vidas utiles
(en afios)
Clase de activos en propiedad, planta y equipos Desde Hasta
Planta y equipos 3 16
Equipamiento de tecnologias de la informacion 3 6
Instalaciones fijas y accesorias 4 10
Vehiculos de motor 4 10
Otras propiedades, planta y equipos 3 10

Ademias, en el caso de activos en bienes arrendados su vida util puede amortizarse hasta la duraciéon del contrato
de arrendamiento.

El valor residual y la vida ttil de los activos se revisan, y ajustan si es necesario, en cada cierre de los estados
financieros consolidados anuales.
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Arrendamientos

La adopcién de la IFRS 16 ha dado lugar a que la Compafifa reconozca un activo por derecho de uso y un pasivo
por arrendamiento relacionado con todos los arrendamientos operativos anteriores, excepto aquellos identificados
como de bajo valor o que tienen un plazo de arrendamiento restante de menos de 12 meses desde la fecha de la
aplicacion inicial.

La Norma ha sido aplicada usando el enfoque retrospectivo modificado, con el activo por derecho de uso
reconocido a un monto igual al valor presente del pasivo por arrendamiento, ajustado por el monto de cualquier
pago de arrendamiento pagado anticipado o acumulado relacionado con esos arrendamientos. Los petrfodos
anteriores no se han actualizado.

Para los arrendamientos con un plazo de arrendamiento restante de menos de 12 meses y para los arrendamientos
de activos de bajo valor, la Compafifa ha aplicado las exenciones opcionales para no reconocer los activos por
derecho de uso pero para contabilizar el gastos de arrendamiento sobre una base lineal durante el plazo restante del
arrendamiento.

La Compafiia contabiliza cada componente de arrendamiento dentro del contrato como un arrendamiento por
separado de los componentes del contrato que no son de arrendamiento y asigna la contraprestacion en el contrato
a cada componente de arrendamiento sobre la base del precio independiente relativo del componente de
arrendamiento y el agregado. precio independiente de los componentes no arrendados. La Compaiiia reconoce el
activo por derecho de uso que representa su derecho a usar el activo subyacente durante el plazo del arrendamiento
en la fecha de inicio del arrendamiento. El costo del activo por derecho de uso medido al inicio comprende el
monto de la medicién inicial del pasivo por arrendamiento ajustado por cualquier pago de arrendamiento realizado
en o antes de la fecha de comienzo.

Ciertos acuerdos de arrendamiento incluyen opciones para extender o terminar el arrendamiento antes de que
finalice el plazo del arrendamiento. Los activos por derecho de uso y los pasivos por arrendamiento incluyen estas
opciones cuando hay una certeza razonable de que dichas opciones se ejercerian.

Los activos por derecho de uso se miden posteriormente al costo menos cualquier depreciacién acumulada,
pérdidas por deterioro acumuladas, si las hubiera, y se ajustan por cualquier nueva medicién del pasivo por
arrendamiento. Los activos por derecho de uso se deprecian utilizando el método de linea recta desde la fecha de
inicio sobre el plazo més corto del arrendamiento o la vida 1til del activo por derecho de uso.

Los activos por derecho de uso se someten a pruebas de deterioro siempre que exista algin indicio de que su valor
en libros puede no ser recuperable. La pérdida por deterioro, si la hubiera, se reconoce en el estado de pérdidas y
ganancias.

El pasivo por arrendamiento se mide al valor presente de los pagos por arrendamiento que no se pagan en la fecha
de inicio del arrendamiento. Los pagos del arrendamiento se descuentan utilizando la tasa de interés implicita en el
arrendamiento, si esa tasa se puede determinar ficilmente. Si esa tasa no se puede determinar facilmente, la
Compania utiliza la tasa de interés incremental. El pasivo por arrendamiento se vuelve a medir posteriormente
aumentando el valor en libros para reflejar los intereses sobre el pasivo por arrendamiento, reduciendo el valor en
libros para reflejar los pagos de arrendamiento realizados y volviendo a medir el valor en libros para reflejar
cualquier reevaluacién o modificacién del arrendamiento. La Compafiia reconoce el monto de la nueva medicion
del pasivo por arrendamiento como un ajuste al activo por derecho de uso. Cuando el valor en libros del activo por
derecho de uso se reduce a cero y hay una reduccién adicional en la medicién del pasivo por arrendamiento, la
Compania reconoce cualquier monto restante de la nueva medicion en el estado de pérdidas y ganancias.

Los pagos variables por arrendamiento no incluidos en la medicién de los pasivos por arrendamiento se cargan al
estado de resultados en el perfodo en el que ocurren los eventos o condiciones que desencadenan esos pagos.
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Pérdidas por deterioro de valor de los activos no financieros

Los activos fijos sujetos a amortizaciéon (Propiedades, planta y equipos) se someten a pruebas de pérdidas por
detetrioro siempre que algin suceso o cambio en las circunstancias del negocio indique que el valor libros de los
activos puede no ser recuperable.

Se reconoce una pérdida por deterioro cuando el valor libros es mayor que su valor recuperable. El valor recuperable
de un activo es el mayor entre el valor razonable de un activo menos los costos de venta y su valor en uso.

A efectos de evaluar el deterioro, los activos se agrupan al nivel mas bajo para el que existen flujos de efectivo
identificables por separado.

Los activos no financieros distintos de la Plusvalia comprada que hubieran sufrido una pérdida por deterioro en
periodos anteriores se someten a prueba en cada fecha de cierre del estado financiero consolidado para verificar si
se hubiesen producido reversiones de las pérdidas.

Las pérdidas por deterioro de valor pueden ser reversadas contablemente sélo hasta el monto de estas pérdidas
reconocidas en ejercicios/petiodos antetiores, de tal forma que el valor libros de estos activos no supere el valor
que hubiesen tenido de no efectuarse dichos ajustes. Este reverso se registra en la cuenta otras ganancias (pérdidas).

Capital emitido
Las acciones ordinarias se clasifican como patrimonio neto.
Cuentas por pagar comerciales y otras cuentas por pagar

Los proveedores se reconocen inicialmente a su valor razonable y posteriormente se valoran por su costo
amortizado utilizando el método de tasa de interés efectivo, para aquellas transacciones significativas de plazos
superiores a un afio.

Préstamos que devengan intereses

Los Préstamos que devengan intereses, clasificados dentro del rubro otros pasivos financieros, se reconocen
inicialmente a su valor razonable, el que corresponde al valor en la colocacién descontado de todos los gastos de
transaccion directamente asociados a ella, para luego ser controlados utilizando el método del costo amortizado en
base a la tasa efectiva.
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Impuesto a las ganancias e impuestos diferidos
a) Impuesto a las ganancias

El gasto por impuesto a las ganancias se calcula en funcién del resultado contable antes de impuestos, aumentado
o disminuido, segun corresponda, por las diferencias derivadas de los ajustes para dar cumplimiento a las
disposiciones tributarias vigentes.

b) Impuestos diferidos

Los impuestos diferidos se calculan, de acuerdo con el método de balance, sobre las diferencias temporarias que
surgen entre las bases fiscales de los activos y pasivos y sus importes en libros en las cuentas anuales.

El impuesto diferido se determina usando las tasas de impuesto (y leyes) aprobadas o a punto de aprobarse en la
fecha del balance y que se espera aplicar cuando el correspondiente activo por impuesto diferido se realice o el
pasivo por impuesto diferido se liquide.

Los activos por impuestos diferidos se reconocen en la medida en que es probable que vaya a disponerse de
beneficios fiscales futuros con los cuales se puede compensar las diferencias temporarias, o existan diferencias
temporarias imponibles suficientes para absorbetlos.

Beneficios a los empleados

La Sociedad reconoce el gasto por vacaciones del personal mediante el método del devengo. Este beneficio
corresponde a todo el personal y equivale a un importte fijo segin los contratos particulares de cada trabajador. Este
beneficio es registrado a su valor nominal.

La Sociedad no mantiene el beneficio del pago de indemnizaciones por afios de servicio a todo evento, por lo que
no se provisiona importe alguno.

Provisiones

Las provisiones son reconocidas cuando se tiene una obligacién juridica actual o constructiva como consecuencia
de acontecimientos pasados, cuando se estima que es probable que algin pago sea necesario para liquidar la
obligacién y cuando se puede estimar adecuadamente el importe de esa obligacién.

Reconocimiento de ingresos

De acuerdo con lo establecido en NIIF 15 “Ingresos de contratos a clientes”, los ingresos ordinarios se reconocen
por un monto que refleja las contraprestaciones recibidas o a recibir que la Sociedad tiene derecho a cambio de
transferir bienes o servicios a un cliente. La sociedad ha analizado y tomado en consideracién todos los hechos y
circunstancias relevantes al aplicar cada paso del modelo establecido por NIIF 15 a los contratos con sus clientes:

(a) Identificacion del contrato;

(b) Identificar obligaciones de desempefio;
(c) Determinar el precio de la transaccion;
(d) Asignar el precio; y

(e) Reconocer el ingreso.
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Reconocimiento de ingresos (continuacién)

La Sociedad también ha evaluado la existencia de costos incrementales de la obtenciéon de un contrato y los costos
directamente relacionados con el cumplimiento de un contrato, por lo cual, la Sociedad, reconoce los ingresos
cuando se han cumplido satisfactoriamente los pasos establecidos en la norma y, es probable que los beneficios
econémicos futuros vayan a fluir a ellas y se cumplen las condiciones especificas para cada una de las actividades
de la Sociedad, tal y como se describe a continuacion:

a) Tega Industries Chile SpA

- Venta de productos y soluciones para abrasién, desgaste, corrosion y sistemas de transporte de liquidos en la
industria minera.
- La prestacién de servicios de administracién al resto del Holding, sobre base devengada.

b) Edoctum S.A. y Edoctum Pera S.A.C.

Los ingresos de estas Sociedades corresponden a la organizacion de cursos y congresos centrados en el rubro de la
minerfa. Estos cursos y congresos se dictan en hoteles dentro y fuera de Santiago y Lima; y las materias a tratar son
relacionadas con el rubro minero.

9) Los otros ingresos por funcién se reconocen cuando se establece el derecho a recibir el pago.
Medio ambiente
En el caso de existir pasivos ambientales se registran sobre la base de la interpretacién actual de leyes y reglamentos
ambientales, cuando sea probable que una obligacién actual se produzca y el importe de dicha responsabilidad se

pueda calcular de forma fiable.

Las inversiones en obras de infraestructura destinadas a cumplir requerimientos medioambientales son activadas
siguiendo los criterios contables generales para Propiedades, planta y equipos.

Investigacion y desarrollo

Estos gastos son presentados en la cuenta gastos de administracién del estado consolidado de resultados integrales.
Estos gastos son registrados en el ejercicio/petiodo en que se incurren.

Gastos en publicidad
Los gastos de publicidad se reconocen en resultados cuando son devengados.
Gastos por seguros de bienes y servicios

Los pagos de las diversas pdlizas de seguro que contrata la Sociedad son reconocidos en gastos en proporcion al
periodo de tiempo que cubren, independiente de los plazos de pago. Los valores pagados y no consumidos se
reconocen como otros activos no financieros en el activo corriente y no corrientes, segin corresponda.

Los costos de los siniestros se reconocen en resultados inmediatamente después de conocidos. Los montos por
recuperar se registran en el rubro deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar como un activo a recibir de las
compafifas de seguros, calculados de acuerdo con lo establecido en las pélizas de seguro, una vez que se cumple
con todas las condiciones que garantizan su recuperacion.
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3 Gestion de riesgos financieros

La Gerencia de la Sociedad, ha determinado que la administracién del riesgo financiero serd gestionada
directamente, la cual serd responsable de proveer de financiamiento y administrar los tiesgos de tasa de
interés, liquidez, riesgo de inflacion y riesgo de crédito, de acuerdo con los procedimientos y objetivos
determinados. Esta funcién opera de acuerdo con un marco de politicas y procedimientos que es revisado
regularmente para cumplir con el objetivo de administrar el riesgo proveniente de las necesidades del negocio
y las variables del mercado.

3.1 Riesgo de liquidez

La Sociedad define el riesgo de liquidez a la dificultad que se presenta al no poder cumplir con las obligaciones
asociadas con sus pasivos financieros. En consecuencia, la empresa se ha enfocado en asegurar en forma
constante y suficiente la liquidez con el objeto de cumplir con sus obligaciones, ya sea para condiciones de
crisis 0 normales.

El riesgo de liquidez de la empresa es mitigado periédicamente a través de la determinacion anticipada de las
necesidades de financiamiento, necesarias para el desarrollo de sus planes de inversién, financiamiento del
capital de trabajo y cumplimiento de obligaciones financieras. Estas fuentes de financiamiento se componen
de la generacién de flujos propios obtenidos de la operacién y fuentes de financiamiento interno y externo,
para los cuales, la administracién mantiene indicadores de solvencia que permitan contar con lineas de
financiamiento disponibles y abiertas que permitan abordar eventuales necesidades de financiamiento en
6ptimas condiciones crediticias.

La Sociedad actualiza sus proyecciones de flujos de caja y recurrentemente efectia un analisis de la situacién
financiera, del entorno econémico y analisis del mercado de deuda con el objeto de, en caso de requeritlo,
contratar nuevos financiamientos o reestructurar créditos existentes a plazos que sean coherentes con la
capacidad de generacién de flujos del negocio en que participa la Sociedad.

La deuda de la Sociedad se encuentra concentrada en el corto plazo, que a su vez corresponde a deudas con
entidades financieras, proveedores y empresas relacionadas, sin embargo, la liquidez de la compaififa no se ve
afectada, dado que esta se encuentra garantizada en su totalidad por la casa matriz Tega Industries Limited
en India.
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3.2 Riesgo de crédito

La Sociedad define riesgo de crédito a la pérdida posible de originarse debido a la cesacién de pago de un cliente,
cuyo origen estd en los Deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar. No obstante, dada la calidad de los
clientes (empresas mineras de primer nivel), el riego es muy bajo.

La Sociedad atiende principalmente a una multiplicidad de clientes del 4rea minera, en la zona norte y centro en
Chile, ademas en Peru.

Al cierre del ejercicio, los deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar, netos de deterioro, que han sido
clasificadas dentro de esta categoria y su exposicion es la siguiente:

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Tipo de deudores % Sobre % Sobre
M$ activos M$ activos
totales totales
Total activo 29.704.977 100% 21.551.544 100%
Deudores por ventas 8.574.415| 28,87% 6.037.651 | 28,02%
Clientes en cartera 7.011.620| 23,61% 4.260.429 | 19,77%
Clientes en factoring 1.673.559 5,63% 1.885.973 8,75%
Estimacién de deterioro por incobrables (110.764) | (0,37%) (108.751) | (0,50%)
Otras cuentas por cobrar 40.059 0,13% 27.882 0,11%
Cuentas corrientes con el personal 40.059| 0,13% 27.882 0,11%
Otras cuentas por cobrar - - - -
Total deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar 8.614.474 | 29,00% 6.065.533 | 28,13%

3.3 Riesgo de tasa de interés

La Sociedad busca tener la mayor parte de su deuda en tasa de interés fija y en moneda nacional, de tal forma de
evitar la exposicién a fluctuaciones de otras monedas que puedan ocurrir en la tasa de interés variable y que puedan
aumentar los gastos financieros de manera descontrolada. En este sentido, la Sociedad posee una muy baja
exposicion al riesgo asociado a las fluctuaciones de las tasas de interés en el mercado.

Actualmente, la Sociedad mantiene una posicién conservadora en cuanto a su politica de inversién en instrumentos
financieros afectos a tasa de interés, los que en este momento no mantiene instrumentos de renta fija o variable. A
la fecha de cierre de estos Estados financieros consolidados, la sociedad no mantiene deudas financieras afecta a
tasas de interés variable, por lo tanto, no existe riesgo por esta naturaleza.

Actualmente, la Sociedad ha realizado y/o mantiene obligaciones financieras en sociedades bancarias cuya
clasificacion de riesgo es la siguiente:

Bancos S_olvenc?a al 31 de marzo de 2023
Feller Rate | Fitch Chile | Humphreys ICR S&P
Banco de Chile AAA AAA - - A
Factoring ACF Capital - AAA AAA - -
Comercial de Valores Factoring SpA - COVAL BBB - BBB - -

Los Pasivos financieros que mantiene la Sociedad estan remunerados a tasas de interés fija, eliminando el riesgo de
las variaciones en las tasas de interés de mercado.
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3.4 Riesgo por fluctuaciones del tipo de cambio

La Administracion ha determinado como politica mantener un equilibrio entre los flujos operacionales y los
flujos de sus pasivos financieros, con el objetivo de minimizar la exposicion al riesgo de variaciones en el tipo
de cambio. La Sociedad opera principalmente con deudas en pesos chilenos, sin embargo, mantiene deudas
con empresas telacionadas significativas que podrias verse afectadas en caso de fluctuaciones del tipo de
cambio.

Al cierre del ejercicio, la Sociedad posee saldos significativos en monedas distintas de la funcional, que tienen
exposicion significativa al riesgo de tipo de cambio. A continuacién, se muestra el siguiente detalle:

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Tipo de deuda Moneda Pais % Sobre % Sobre
M$ total M$
pasivo pasivo

Total pasivo 17.717.131 100% 17.365.254 100%
Tega Industries Ltd. Délar americano India 1.676.930 9,47% 2.592.968 | 14,94%
Tega Industries Agencia en Chile Délar americano Chile 30.208 0,17% 30.208 0,17%
Edoctum Pert S.A.C. Délar americano Peru - - - -
Tega Holding Pte. Ddlar americano Singapur 117.359 0,66% 856.257 4,93%
Cue_ntas por pagar a entidades relacionadas, 1.824.497 10,30% 3.479.433| 20,04%
corrientes
4 Responsabilidad de la informacion y estimaciones y criterios contables

La informacién contenida en estos estados financieros consolidados es responsabilidad del Directorio de la
Sociedad, que manifiesta expresamente que se han aplicado en su totalidad los principios y criterios contables
incluidos en las NIIF.

En la preparacion de los estados financieros consolidados se han utilizado estimaciones y juicios realizados
por la Gerencia de la Sociedad, para cuantificar algunos de los activos, pasivos, ingresos, gastos y
compromisos que figuran registrados en ellos.

Las estimaciones y juicios se evaluan continuamente y se basan en la experiencia histérica y otros factores,
incluidas las expectativas de sucesos futuros que se creen razonables bajo las circunstancias.

Por ello los resultados reales que se observen en fechas posteriores pueden diferir de estas estimaciones.
Las principales estimaciones y juicios se refieren basicamente a:

- Vidas utiles de propiedades, planta y equipo, intangibles, entre otros.
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5 Nuevos pronunciamientos contables

a) Normas, interpretaciones y enmiendas obligatorias por primera vez para los ejercicios
financieros iniciados el 1 de enero de 2023.

NIIF 17 “Contratos de Seguros”. Publicada en mayo de 2017, reemplaza a la actual NIIF 4. La NIIF 17 cambiara
principalmente la contabilidad para todas las entidades que emitan contratos de seguros y contratos de
inversi6on con caracteristicas de participacion discrecional. La norma se aplica a los periodos anuales que
comiencen a partir del 1 de enero de 2023.

Enmiendas a la NIC 1 "Presentaciéon de estados financieros" y NIC 8 “Politicas Contables, Cambios en las
Estimaciones Contables y Errores”, publicada en febrero de 2021. Las modificaciones tienen como objetivo
mejorar las revelaciones de politicas contables y ayudar a los usuarios de los estados financieros a distinguir
entre cambios en las estimaciones contables y cambios en las politicas contables. Esta enmienda debe ser
aplicada a los periodos anuales que comiencen a partir del 1 de enero de 2023.

Modificaciéon de la NIC 12 - Impuestos diferidos relacionados con activos y pasivos que surgen de una sola
transaccion. Estas modificaciones requieren que las empresas reconozcan impuestos diferidos sobre
transacciones que, en el reconocimiento inicial, dan lugar a montos iguales de diferencias temporarias
imponibles y deducibles. Esta enmienda debe ser aplicada a los periodos anuales que comiencen a partir del 1
de enero de 2023.

La adopci6én de las normas, enmiendas e interpretaciones antes descritas, no tienen un impacto significativo
en los estados financieros consolidado de la Sociedad.
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5 Nuevos pronunciamientos contables (continuacion)

b) Normas, interpretaciones y enmiendas emitidas, cuya aplicacién atn no es obligatoria, para
las cuales no se ha efectuado adopcion anticipada.

Obligatoria para
Normas, interpretaciones y enmiendas ejercicios iniciados
a partir de

Enmienda a la NIC 1 “Pasivos no corrientes con covenants”, la modificacion tiene

como objetivo mejorar la informacién que una entidad entrega cuando los plazos de 01/01/2024
pago de sus pasivos pueden ser diferidos dependiendo del cumplimiento de

covenants dentro de los doce meses posteriores a la fecha de emision de los estados

financieros.

Enmiendas a la IFRS 16 “Arrendamientos” sobre ventas con arrendamiento

posterior, la que explica como una entidad debe reconocer los derechos por uso del 01/01/2024
activo y como las ganancias o pérdidas producto de la venta y arrendamiento

posterior deben ser reconocidas en los estados financieros.

La administracion de la Sociedad estima que la adopcién de las normas, interpretaciones y enmiendas antes
descritas, no tendra un impacto significativo en los estados financieros consolidado de la Sociedad en el periodo
de su primera aplicacion.
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6 Efectivo y equivalentes al efectivo

El Efectivo y equivalentes al efectivo, corresponde a los saldos en dinero y en cuentas cortientes bancarias que
mantiene la Sociedad, ademas de depésitos a plazo con vencimiento a menos de 90 dias.

La composicion del efectivo y equivalentes al efectivo al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022 es la siguiente:

31.03.2023  31.03.2022

Efectivo y equivalentes al efectivo M$ M$

Caja y banco 104.198 603.651
Depésito a plazo 257.269 232.034
Boletas de Garantia - 35.709
Totales 361.467 871.394

a) Disponible

Corresponde a saldos en efectivo y en cuentas corrientes bancarias.

b) Depésito a plazo

Corresponde a saldos en deposito a plazo al 31-03-2023 con vencimientos menores a 90 dias.
c) Boleta de Garantia

Corresponde a boletas de garantia entregadas en efectivo a los clientes.

7 Otros activos no financieros

Su desglose a las fechas que se indican es el siguientes:
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Otros activos no financieros M$ M$

Anticipos a proveedores 1.612.876 823.087
Garantia de arriendos 213.743 43.015
Otros gastos anticipados 104.339 57.338

Totales 1.930.958 923.440
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8 Deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar
a) La composiciéon de deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar, neto es la siguiente a las fechas que
se indican:
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
M$ % M$ %

Deudores por ventas 8.574.415 99,53% 6.037.651 99,54%
Clientes en cartera 7.011.620 81,39% 4.260.429 70,24%
Clientes en factoring 1.673.559 19,43% 1.885.973 31,09%
Estimacién de deterioro por incobrables (110.764) (1,29%) (108.751) (1,79%)
Otras cuentas por cobrar 40.059 0,47% 27.882 0,46%
Cuentas corrientes con el personal 40.059 0,47% 27.882 0,46%

Otras cuentas por cobrar - - - -
Total deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar,

neto 8.614.474 100% 6.065.533 100%
b) La antigiiedad de los deudores comerciales y otras cuentas por cobrar corrientes, neto es la siguiente:
Antigtedad de saldos 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

M$ M$

Menos de 30 dias de vencidos - 870.372
31 a 60 dias de vencidos - -
61 a 90 dias de vencidos 59.887 1.908
91 a 180 dias de vencidos - 26.712
Mas de 180 dias vencidos 63.945 53.129
Deudores no vencidos 8.601.406 5.222.163
Total, sin incluir estimacién de deterioro 8.725.238 6.174.284
Menos estimacion de deterioro por incobrables (110.764) (108.751)
Total 8.614.474 6.065.533

9 El desglose por moneda de los deudores comerciales y otras cuentas a cobrar corrientes, neto es el

siguiente:
Saldos por monedas 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
M$ M$
Pesos chilenos 7.434.142 5.896.628
Doélares americanos 1.180.332 168.905
Total 8.614.474 6.065.533
d) El movimiento pata los periodos reportados de la estimacién de deterioros por incobrables se muestra a
continuacion:
Movimiento estimacion de deterioros por incobrables Periodo Periodo
2023-2022 2022-2020
M$ M$

Saldo inicial (108.751) (379.629)
Usos de estimaciones (2.013) 270.878

Saldo final (110.764) (108.751)
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9 Transacciones entre entidades relacionadas
a) Cuentas por cobrar a entidades relacionadas, corrientes
Saldos al Tipo Plazo
RUT Pais 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 moneda dela
relacionada Nombre parte relacionada Naturaleza de la relacién  origen M$ M$ 0 reajuste transaccion
- Tega Holding Pte. Lts. Sucursal de Peri  Matriz en comudn Peru 47.457 - Pesos -12 meses
- Tega Industries Limited Matriz en comun India - 55.549 Pesos -12 meses
- Tega Industries Inc Socio en comun EUA - - Pesos -12 meses
76.008.208-2  Edoctum S.A. Subsidiaria Chile - - Pesos -12 meses
- Tega Do Brasil Servicio Ltda. Matriz en comun Brasil 12.665 12.627 Pesos -12 meses
Total activo corriente 60.122 68.176
b) Cuentas por pagar a entidades relacionadas, corrientes
Saldos al Tipo Plazo
RUT Pais 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 moneda de la
relacionada Nombre parte relacionada Naturaleza de la relacion origen M$ M$ 0 reajuste transaccién
Tega Industries Ltd. Matriz en comun India 1.676.930 Dolar Indefinido
2.592.968
59.163.230-2 Tega Industries Agencia en Chile Matriz en comun Chile 30.208 30.208 Dolar -12 meses
- Edoctum Pert S.A.C. Subsidiaria indirecta Pera - - Dolar -12 meses
- Tega Holding Pte. (intereses) Accionista Singapur 117.359 908.113 Dolar -12 meses
Tega Holding Pte. Lts. Sucursal de Per(  Matriz en comun Pera (51.856) Dolar -12 meses
Total pasivo corriente 1.824.497 3.479.433
¢) Cuentas por pagar a entidades relacionadas, no corrientes
Saldos al Tipo Plazo
RUT Pais 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 moneda de la
relacionada Nombre parte relacionada Naturaleza de la relacién  origen M$ M$ 0 reajuste transaccion
- Tega Holding Pte. (Capital) Accionista Singapur 2.371.230 3.589.249 Dolar 18 meses
Total pasivo no corriente 2.371.230 3.589.249
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9 Transacciones entre entidades relacionadas (Continuacion)

d) El directorio de la sociedad matriz y sus subsidiarias esta conformado por:

Nombre y apellido Cargo Duracién Remuneracién

Mehul Mohanka Director Indefinido Cargo no remunerado
Madan Mohanka Director Indefinido Cargo no remunerado
Syed Yaver Iman Director Indefinido Cargo no remunerado
Ashwani Maheshwari Director Independiente Indefinido Cargo no remunerado

d.1) El personal clave dentro de la organizacion de la sociedad matriz es:

Nombre y apellido

Cargo

Vinculo con la organizacion

Juan Bustamante

Gerente General

Representante Legal

Manish Manwani

Gerente de Finanzas

Representante Legal
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10 Inventarios

La composicion de los inventarios a las fechas que se indican es el siguiente:

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Inventarios M$ M$
Productos terminados 888.967 324.993
Productos en proceso 131.453 614.785
Materias primas y materiales 5.243.573 4.916.379
Estimacién de deterioro por obsolescencia (183.814) (189.743)
Totales 6.080.179 5.666.414

El movimiento para los periodos reportados de la estimacién de deterioro por obsolescencia se muestra a

continuacion:
Movimiento estimaciéon de deterioro por obsolescencia Periodo Periodo
2023/2022 2022/2021
M$ M$

Saldo inicial (189.743) (122.419)
Estimacion del periodo - (67.324)
Usos de estimaciones (*) 5.929 -
Saldo final (183.814) (189.743)

(*) la Sociedad realizé el uso de estimacioén en obsolescencia de inventarios por M§$ 5.929 bajo el concepto de venta
de material obsoleto como chatarra en el periodo terminado al 31 de marzo de 2023.

El costo de los inventarios reconocido como Costo de ventas en el ejercicio terminado el 31 de marzo de 2023
asciende a M$ 17.657.468 (M$ 13.221.265 en el periodo terminado al 31 de marzo de 2022).

Durante los perfodos reportados no se han entregado inventarios en prenda como garantfa.

El valor en libros de los inventarios no supera los precios actuales de realizacién, descontados los gastos de venta
(valor neto de realizacion).

11 Activos y pasivos por impuestos corrientes y diferidos no corrientes
a) Activos por impuestos cortientes

Los Activos por impuestos corrientes se detallan a continuacion:

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
M$ M$

Pagos provisionales mensuales - -
Otros impuestos por recuperar 60.579 34.465
Totales 60.578 34.465
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11 Activos y pasivos por impuestos corrientes y diferidos
b) Pasivos por impuestos corrientes

Los pasivos por impuestos corrientes se detallan a continuacion:
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no corrientes (Continuacion)

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
M$ M$
Impuesto a las ganancias por pagar 146.083 5.234
Impuesto Adicional a Interese 147.199 -
I.V.A. Por Pagar 460.956 -
Totales 754..238 5.234
9 Activos por impuestos diferidos no cortiente

Los impuestos diferidos corresponden al monto de impuesto sobre las ganancias que el Grupo tendra que pagar
(pasivos) o recuperar (activos) en periodos futuros, relacionados con diferencias temporarias entre la base fiscal o

tributaria y el importe contable en libros de ciertos activos y pasivos.

Los Activos por impuestos diferidos se detallan a continuacion:

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
M$ M$
No Corrientes
Provisién de vacaciones 53.191 45.365
Provisién deudores incobrables 29.906 29.363
Provisién obsolescencia 49.630 51.231
Provisién de intereses 31.687 219.524
Variacion neta entre existencia 73.669 58.108
Variacion entre activo fijo tributario y financiero (neto) 232.579 87.595
Impacto arrendamientos operativos NIIF 16 84.459 70.902
Perdida tributaria - 554.497
Totales activos por impuestos diferidos, no corrientes 555.121 1.116.585
d) Pasivos por impuestos diferidos no cortientes
Los Pasivos por impuestos diferidos se detallan a continuacién:
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
M$ M$

No Corrientes
Variacion entre activo fijo tributario y financiero (neto)
Impacto arrendamientos operativos NIIF 16

Totales pasivos por impuestos diferidos, no corrientes
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12 Activos intangibles distintos de plusvalia

a) Los importes de intangibles para los periodos reportados se muestran a continuacion:

Derechos Total
Intangibles actuales Software de marca
M$ M$ M$

Saldo inicial al 01 de abril de 2022
Valor bruto 234.283 35.518 269.801
Amortizacion acumulada (119.869) (35.518) (155.387)
Variaciones
Aumentos 43.658 - 43.658
Amortizacién del periodo (61.097) - (61.097)
Saldo final al 31 de marzo de 2023 96.975 - 96.975
Intangibles anteriores
Saldo inicial al 01 de abril de 2021
Valor bruto 106.708 35.518 142.226
Amortizacién acumulada (70.054) (35.518 (105.572)
Variaciones
Aumentos 127.576 127.576
Amortizacién del periodo (49.816) - (49.816)
Saldo final al 31 de marzo de 2022 114.414 - 114.414

b) Efecto en resultados por amortizacion de intangibles

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
M$ M$

Gastos de depreciacion y amortizacion 61.097 49.816
Totales 61.097 49.816
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13 Propiedades, planta y equipos, neto
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Propiedades, planta y equipos se registra contablemente conforme a las politicas contables informadas en la Nota 2.

a) Saldos al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Valor Depreciacion Valor Valor Depreciacion Valor
bruto acumulada neto bruto acumulada neto
Clases de propiedades, plantay equipos M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$
Terreno 2.717.713 - 2.717.713 - - -
Planta y equipos 10.046.566 (6.226.732) 3.819.834 8.606.114 (5.561.987) 3.044.127
Equipamiento de tecnologias de la informacién 323.430 (260.832) 62.598 305.104 (217.029) 88.075
Instalaciones fijas y accesorias 1.393.147 (738.384) 654.763 1.185.550 (525.730) 659.820
Vehiculos de motor 109.281 (109.281) - 137.120 (130.672) 6.448
Instalaciones en Curso 355.405 - 355.405 520.079 - 520.079
Otras propiedades, planta y equipos 108.715 (108.715) - 108.715 (108.715) -
Totales 15.054.257 (7.433.944) 7.610.313 10.862.682 (6.544.133) 4.318.549
b) Movimiento para los periodos 2023 y 2022
Movimiento periodo 2023-2022 Terreno Planta Equipamiento Instalaciones Vehiculos Instalaciones Otras
y equipos tecnologias Fijas de en propiedades,
dela y accesorias Motor Curso planta
informacion y equipo Total
M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$
Saldo inicial al 01.04.2022 - 3.044.128 88.075 659.820 6.448 520.079 - 4.318.550
Adiciones/ (Bajas) 2.717.713 1.478.769 18.327 207.596 - (164.675) - 4.257.730
Gastos por depreciacion - (703.062) (43.804) (212.653) (6.448) - - (965.967)
Saldo final al 31.03.2023 2.717.713 3.819.835 62.598 654.763 - 355.404 - 7.610.313
Movimiento periodo 2022-2021 Planta Equipamiento Instalaciones Vehiculos Instalaciones Otras
Terreno y equipos tecnologias Fijas de en propiedades,
dela y accesorias Motor Curso planta
informacion y equipo Total
M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$
Saldo inicial al 01.04.2021 - 3.068.872 20.847 332.447 16.870 196.975 631  3.636.642
Adiciones/ (Bajas) - 685.055 95.949 404.874 - 323.104 - 1.508.982
Gastos por depreciacion - (709.799) (28.721) (77.501) (10.422) - (631) (827.074)
Saldo final al 31.03.2022 - 3.044.128 88.075 659.820 6.448 520.079 - 4.318.550
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13 Propiedades, planta y equipos, neto (Continuacion)

Deterioro de valor

)

36

Durante el petiodo reportado no se han generado deterioros de valor de propiedades, planta y equipos.

d)

Propiedades, planta y equipos en garantia

El Grupo no presenta garantias en relaciéon con propiedades planta y equipos.

14 Activos por derechos de uso

Los activos por derechos de uso se registran contablemente conforme a las politicas contables informadas en la

Notas 2 y 6.
a) Saldos al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022
31-03-2022
Valor  Depreciacién  Valor Valor  Depreciacion  Valor
bruto acumulada neto bruto acumulada neto
Clases de propiedades, planta M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$
y equipo
Planta y equipo 5.161.315 (1.037.174) 4.124.141| 2.757.031 (390.207) 2.366.824
Vehiculos de motor 261.424 (50.776)  210.648 38.423 (32.673) 5.750
Totales 5.422.739 (1.087.950) 4.334.789| 2.795.454 (422.880) 2.372.574
b) Movimiento para los periodos 2023 y 2022
Planta Vehiculos Total
y equipo de
motor
Movimiento afio 2023-2022 M$ M$ M$
Saldo inicial 2.366.824 5.750 2.372.574
Aumentos 2.044.224 246.329 2.290.553
Aumento por variacién en indices (UF) 334.626 15.387 350.013
Gastos por depreciacién (621.533) (56.818) (678.351)
Saldo final 4.124.141 210.648 4.334.789
Movimiento para los periodos 2022 y 2021
Planta Vehiculos Total
y equipo de
motor

Movimiento afio 2022-2021 M$ M$ M$
Saldo inicial 2.292.916 36.706 2.329.622
Adiciones 261.142 - 261.142
Aumento por variacién en indices (UF) 202.973 1.717 204.690
Gastos por depreciacion (390.207) (32.673) (422.880)
Saldo final 2.366.824 5.750 2.372.574
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15 Otros pasivos financieros
a) A continuacién, se muestran los principales pasivos financieros corrientes y no corrientes vigentes a las

fechas que se indican:

Corrientes No corrientes
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Otros pasivos financieros M$ M$ M$ M$
Préstamos que devengan intereses 3.412.551 3.775.338 518.706 812.605
Pasivos por arrendamiento 1.785.830 304.758 3.666.260 2.330.419

Totales 5.198.381 4.080.096

4.184.966 3.143.024
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15 Otros pasivos financieros (Continuacion)

b) Detalle de otros pasivos financieros cortiente y no corrientes

Al 31 de Marzo de 2023

Prestamos que devengan intereses

38

Acreedor Hasta 30 Entre 31y Mas 90 Total Mas 1 afio Entre3y5 Mas de 5 Total no Tipo Tasa
dias 90 dias dias hasta corriente hasta 3 afios afios corriente Amortiza- nominal
1 afio afios cion promedio
Préstamo Banco Banco Chile - - 1501779  1.501.779 : - : . Mensual 0.60%
de Chile
Forward Banco Banco Chile 146.041 - - 146.041 - ) ) - Trimestral
Chile
Forward Banco ~ Canco Chile - - 36.310 36.310 - - - Semestral
BCl Banco BCI
Préstamo Banco Banco Chile - 63.488 - 63.488 - - - Mensual 0,32%
Chile Fogape
Prestamo Axis Axis Bank - - - - - 518.706 - 518706 Mensual 0.40%
Bank
Factoring BCI BCI Factoring 1.047.520 - - 1.047.520 - - - Mensual 0.72%
Factoring Consorcio 617.413 - - 617.413 - - - Mensual 1,20%
Consorcio
Total 1.810.974 63.488 1.538.089 3.412.551 - 518.706 - 518.706
Obligaciones
Financieras
Pasivos por arrendamientos
Acreedor Hasta 30 Entre 31y Mas 90 Total Mas 1 afio Entre3y5 Mas de 5 Total no Tipo Tasa
dias 90 dias dias hasta corriente hasta 3 afios afios corriente Amortiza- nominal
1 afio aflos cion promedio

Arrendamiento de /Ii\(iiosnorem y ) 71.996 71.996 146.054 R - 146.054 Mensual 0,91%
vehiculo
Arrendamiento 'Si"‘;enzsl'_‘:ga - 168,621 168.691 162.199 . : 162109 ~ Mensual 0.42%
planta y equipos

Inmobiliaria 48.561 48.561 2.446.425 2.446.425 Mensual 0,71%

Arrendamiento

MIP Ltda.
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planta y equipos
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Arrendamiento Inmobiliaria 9.448 9.448 - - -
planta y equipos Ruta 26

Arrendamiento

planta y equipos Banco BCI 1.126.232 1.126.232 - - -
Arrendamiento

planta y equipos Banco Chile 100.910 100.910 - 422.633 422.633
Arrendamiento Rentas

planta y equipos Buenaventura 251.439 251.439 471.600 - 471.600
Arrendamiento Atco Sabinco 8.623 8.623 17.349 - 17.349
planta y equipos

Total, pasivos 1.785.830 1.785.830 797.202 422.633 3.666.260
por

arrendamientos

Totales 3.323.919 5.198.381 797.202 941.339 4.184.966

Mensual

Mensual

Mensual

Mensual

Mensual

0,36%

0,97%

0,86%

0,91%

0,91%
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15 Otros pasivos financieros (Continuacion)

9 Detalle de otros pasivos financieros cortiente y no corrientes

Al 31 de Marzo de 2022

Prestamos que devengan intereses
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Acreedor Hasta 30 Entre 31y Mas 90 Total Mas 1 afio Entre3y5 Mas de 5 Total no Tipo Tasa
dias 90 dias dias hasta corriente hasta 3 afios afios corriente Amortiza- nominal
1 afio afos cion promedio
il - 0,
Préstamo Banco Banco Chile - - 1497162 1.497.162 - . Mensual 0.24%
de Chile
Forward Banco Banco Chile - 75.899 - 75.899 B ) - Trimestral
Chile
Forward Banco ~ Canco Chile - - 14.138 14.138 - - Semestral
Banco BCI
BCI
0,
Préstamo Banco Banco Chile - - 311.913 311.913 - - Mensual 0.32%
Chile Fogape
0,
Prestamo Axis Axis Bank - - - - 812.605 - gl2605  Mensual 0.40%
Bank
0,
Factoring BCI BCI Factoring 1.368.223 - - 1368223 - - Mensual 0.72%
0,
FActoring ACF ACF Capital 508.003 : : 508.003 N . Mensual 1,20%
Capital
Total 1.876.226 75.899 1.823.213 3.775.338 812.605 - 812.605
Obligaciones
Financieras
Pasivos por arrendamientos
Acreedor Hasta 30 Entre 31y Mas 90 Total Méas 1 afio Entre3y5 Mas de 5 Total no Tipo Tasa
dias 90 dias dias hasta corriente hasta 3 afios afios corriente Amortiza- nominal
1 afio afios cion promedio
. Econorent 6.449 6.449 - - Mensual 0,38%
Arrendamiento de - - -
vehiculo
Arrendamient Inversion 143.007 143.007 295.040 - 295.040 Mensual 0,42%
rrendamiento Slam Ltda. - -
planta y equipos
. Inmobiliaria 46.733 46.733 2.035.379 2.035.379 Mensual 0,71%
Arrendamiento MIP Ltda - -

planta y equipos
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0/
Arrendamiento Inmobiliaria - - 8.479 8.479 - - Mensual 0,36%
planta y equipos Ruta 26
Arrendamiento Inmobiliaria 100.090 100.090 - - -
planta y equipos Ferrocarril
Total pasivos - - 304.758 304.758 295.040 2.035.379 2.330.419
por
arrendamientos
Totales 1.876.226 75.899 2.127.971 4.080.096 1.107.645 2.035.379 3.143.024
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16 Cuentas por pagar comerciales y otras cuentas por pagar

A continuacién, las cuentas por pagar comerciales y otras cuentas por pagar a las fechas que se indican:

Al 31 de marzo de 2023

Al 31 de marzo de 2022

Mas 90 Mas 90
Hasta Entre dias Total Hasta Entre dias Total
31y 90 hastal 31y 90 hasta 1
Tipo 30dias dias afio corriente 30 dias dias afio  corriente
de cuenta por pagar M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$ M$
Proveedores nacionales 1.744.174 - - 1.744.174 1.338.539 1.061 - 1.339.600
Proveedores extranjeros 469.213 - - 469.213 753.065 - - 753.065
Retenciones trabajadoras 91.220 - - 91.220 70.224 - - 70.224
Provisiones varias 473.004 - - 473.004 499.004 - - 499.004
Otras cuentas por pagar 409.206 - - 409.206 226.640 - - 226.640
Totales 3.186.817 - - 3.186.817 2.887.472 1.061 - 2.888.533
17 Provisiones y pasivos contingentes
a) Las provisiones por beneficio a los empleados se muestran a continuacion a las fechas que se indican:
Corrientes
Provisiones por beneficios alos empleados, corrientes Vacaciones
al personal Total
M$ M$

Saldo inicial al 01 de abril de 2022 168.017 168.017
Aumentos 28.985 28.985
Disminuciones - -
Saldo final al 31 de marzo de 2023 197.002 197.002
Saldo inicial al 01 de abril de 2021 134.429 134.429
Aumentos 33.588 33.588
Disminuciones - -
Saldo final al 31 de marzo de 2022 168.017 168.017

b) Garantias indirectas
El Grupo no presenta garantfas indirectas.
c) Restricciones
No existen restricciones al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022.
d) Juicios, tramites y/o procedimientos judiciales, prendas y otros

No existen Juicios al 31 de marzo 2022 y 2020.



Tega Industries Chile SpA y Subsidiaria 43

18 Otros pasivos no financieros
A continuacién, se muestran otros pasivos no financieros corrientes y no cortientes a las fechas que se indican:

Otros pasivos financieros

Corrientes No corrientes
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
M$ M$ M$ M$
Anticipos de clientes - 11.668 - -
Totales - 11.668 - -

19 Participaciones no controladoras
La porcién del patrimonio de la subsidiaria perteneciente a terceras personas al cierre de cada petriodo es el siguiente:

a) Al 31 de marzo de 2023

Ganancia
Porcentaje (pérdida)
participacion  Patrimonio Participaciones atribuible a
no neto dela Resultados de no participaciones
controladora subsidiaria la subsidiaria controladoras no controladoras
Razdn social % M$ M$ M$ M$

Edoctum S.A. 0,11 (373.313) (18.536) 134 22
Totales (373.313) (18.536) 134 22

b) Al 31 de marzo de 2022

Ganancia (pérdida)

Porcentaje Patrimonio Participaciones atribuible a
participacion no  neto de la Resultados de no participaciones no
controladora subsidiaria la subsidiaria  controladoras controladoras
Razon social % M$ M$ M$ M$
Edoctum S.A. 0,11 (243.685) (129.628) 112 (168)
Totales (243.685) (129.628) 112 (168)

20 Patrimonio neto
a) Capital emitido

La Sociedad al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022 cuenta con un capital suscrito y pagado de M$28.758.994 y
M$24.062.466 respectivamente.

Serie Acciones Capital Emitido
C 271.173 23.604.173
A 38.727 5.154.821

309.900 28.758.994

Al 31 de marzo 2023 y 2022 Tega Holding Pte. Ltd es propietario del 100% de las acciones de Tega Industries
Chile SpA.
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20 Patrimonio neto (Continuacion)

b) Aumento y diminucién de capital y/o pagados por los periodos 2018 hasta 2022

Fecha Empresa emisora Monto M$ Condicién
07/08/2018 Tega Industries Chile 1.306.905 Se pag6 mediante la capitalizacion de un
SpA crédito entre Tega Holding PTE Ltd.
(Singapur) y Tega Industries Chile SpA
31/12/2018 Tega Industries Chile 537.848 Se pagd mediante la capitalizacion de un
SpA crédito entre Tega Holding PTE Ltd.
(Singapur) y Tega Industries Chile SpA
28/03/2019 Tega Industries Chile 18.907.644 Se pag6 mediante la capitalizacion de un
SpA crédito entre Tega Holding PTE Ltd.
(Singapur) y Tega Industries Chile SpA
01/07/2022 Tega Industries Chile 4.696.528 Se pagd mediante la capitalizacién de un
SpA crédito entre Tega Holding PTE Ltd.
(Singapur) y Tega Industries Chile SpA
Total, aumentos de capital y/o pagados 25.448.925
Fecha Empresa emisora Monto M$ Condicién
31/03/2020 Tega Industries Chile 156.285 Se disminuy6 capital de propia accion de Tega
SpA Industries Chile SpA
Total, disminucién de capital 156.285
Fecha Empresa emisora Monto M$ Condicion
31/12/2020 Tega Industries Chile 3.600.608 Se disminuyd capital de propia accion de Tega
SpA Industries Chile SpA
Total, disminucién de capital 3.600.608
©) Situacién financiera Tega Industries Chile SpA y Subsidiaria

e.1) Al 31 de marzo de 2023

Al 31 de marzo de 2023, la Sociedad presenta capital de trabajo positivo de M$ 5.946.844, ganancia del
ejercicio de M$ 3.105.102.

e.1) Al 31 de marzo de 2022

Al 31 de marzo de 2022, la Sociedad presenta capital de trabajo positivo de M$ 2.996.440, ganancia del
ejercicio de M$ 1.625.998.
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21 Cuentas de resultados
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Las cuentas de resultados por los periodos terminados al 31 de marzo de 2023 y 2022, son los siguientes:

01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
a) Ingresos de actividades ordinarias M$ M$
Ingresos de explotacion 31.756.686 23.090.869
Totales 31.756.686 23.090.869
01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
b) Costo de ventas M$ M$

Costo de venta

(17.657.468)

(13.221.265)

Totales (17.657.468)  (13.221.265)
01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
c) Otrosingresos M$ M$
Otros ingresos por funcién 106.401 168.787
Totales 106.401 168.787
01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
d) Gastos de administracion M$ M$
Comunicacion (60.730) (28.439)
Gastos de viajes (362.398) (103.366)
Remuneraciones (4.101.561) (3.458.929)
Servicios de Terceros (1.315.630) (1.094.065)
Otros (1.881.676) (958.563)
Totales (7.721.995) (5.643.362)
01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
e) Depreciaciony amortizacién M$ M$
Depreciaciones del periodo (1.644.318) (1.249.956)
Amortizaciones del periodo (61.097) (49.815)
Totales (1.705.415)  (1.299.771)
01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
f) Diferencias de cambio M$ M$
Diferencia de cambio (12.083) (498.302)
Totales (12.083) (498.302)
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21 Cuentas de resultados (continuacion)
01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
g) Costos financieros M$ M$
Costos financieros (954.324) (582.203)
Totales (954.324) (582.203)
01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
h) Otros gastos por funcién M$ M$
Otros gastos por funcion - -
Totales - -
01.04.2022 01.04.2021
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
i) Ingresos por impuesto alas ganancias, neto M$ M$
Gasto impuesto a las ganancias / (perdida) (145.236) (5.234)
Impuestos diferidos, neto (561.464) (383.521)
Impuesto a las ganancias, neto (706.700) (388.755)

22 Informacion por segmentos de negocios

Los segmentos de negocios estan dados por las subsidiarias.

23 Compromisos

El Grupo no posee compromisos que mencionar.

24 Medio ambiente

Al cierre de los perfodos 2023 y 2022 no existen asuntos del ambito medio ambiental que informar.

25 Hechos posteriores

En el periodo comprendido entre el 31 de marzo de 2023 y la fecha de presentacion de los presentes estados
financieros consolidados, no han ocurrido hechos posteriores que afecten significativamente a los mismos.

26 Aprobacion de los presentes estados financieros consolidados

Los presentes estados financieros consolidados de Tega Industries Chile SpA y Subsidiaria, han sido
aprobados por el directorio de la Sociedad el 17 de mayo de 2023, siendo autorizado su Gerente General

para su entrega a terceros interesados.
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Losugen Pty Ltd
ABN 26 097 626 849

Jirectors Report

The Directors present their report together with the financial statements of Losugen Pty Ltd (the "Company") for
the year ended 31 March 2023 and the auditor’s report thereon.

1. Directors

The Directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

Madan Mohan Mohanka Appointed 25/01/2011
Mehul Mohanka Appointed 25/01/2011
Satyamurti Joe Viranna Appointed 01/03/2019

2. Company particulars

Losugen Pty Ltd is a company limited by shares and is incorporated in Australia. The immediate parent of the
company is Tega Holdings Pty Ltd and the ultimate parent is Nihal Fiscal Services Private Limited, a company
incorporated in India.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Unit 2, 26 Biscayne Way

Jandakot, WA 6164

REGISTERED OFFICE

Level 8, 235 St Georges Terrace

Perth, WA 6000

3. Environmental regulation

The Company’s operations are subject to the laws of Australia, which impose environmental compliance and
reporting obligations. The directors are not aware of any significant breaches during the period covered by this
report.

4. Principal activities

The Company is an engineering and manufacturing company that specialises in the manufacture of wear
components, especially rubber. The Company designs and manufactures products for a wide range of duties and
industries, from grinding mill linings, trommels, screens, and custom design chute linings. Services that have been
provided over the course of the year include rubber lining, polyurethane, site installation, fabrication and water
cutting.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Company during the year.

5. Review of operations and results of those operations
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

These financial statements are the first general purpose financial statements prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures. In the prior year, the financial statements were general purpose
financial statements prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure
Requirements.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised, measured and classified in the statements of financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company as a result of the change in basis of preparation.

The profit of the Company after income tax is $1,137,669 (Mar 2022: $201,990). The Directors are satisfied with
the performance and operations of the Company during the financial year.
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Jirectors rReport

6. Significant changes in the state of affairs

In the opinion of the directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that
occurred during the year under review.

7. Dividends

No dividends were paid by the Company to members since the end of the previous financial year (2022: $0).

8. Events subsequent to reporting date

No matter or circumstance has occurred subsequent to year end that has significantly affected, or may significantly
affect, the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company or
economic entity in subsequent financial years.

9. Likely developments

Information about likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those
operations in future financial years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the information would
be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company.

10.Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

INDEMNIFICATIONS

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company has not indemnified or made a relevant agreement for
indemnifying against a liability any person who is or has been an officer or auditor of the Company.

INSURANCE PREMIUMS

During the financial year the Company paid premiums in respect of directors’ and officers’ liability and legal
expenses insurance contracts for the year ended 31 March 2023 and since the financial year, the Company has not
paid premiums in respect of such insurance contracts for the year ending 31 March 2024.

[
m"“\h—ﬂ o °
Satyamurti Joe Viranna

Director
Date: 25.05.2023
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Losugen Pty Ltd
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statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Receivables

Inventories

Total Current Assets

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Deferred Tax Assets

Total Non Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits

Total Current Liabilities

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits

Total Non Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

EQUITY
Share Capital
Retained Earnings

Total Equity

Mar 2023

$

806,087
2,311,922
1,565,623

4,683,632

571,223
252,842

824,065
5,507,697

1,383,884
161,125
178,142

1,713,151

106,723
106,723
1,819,874
3,687,823

2
3,687,821

3,687,823

Mar 2022
$

1,125,644
1,690,569
1,578,991

4,395,104

466,274
257,144

723,418
5,118,522

2,009,260
172,690
140,557

2,322,507

147,293
98,568

245,861
2,568,368
2,550,154

2
2,550,152

2,550,154
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Losugen Pty Ltd
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statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprenensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Revenue
Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Other Income
Personnel expenses
Depreciation

Other expenses

Results from operating activities

Finance income

Finance costs
Net finance cost

Profit for the year before income tax

Income Tax
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Note

10

11
11

Mar 2023

$

12,289,829
(6,204,293)

6,085,536

179,486
(2,241,935)
(249,259)
(2,142,512)

1,631,316

704
(4,850)

(4,146)
1,627,170

(489,501)
1,137,669
1,137,669

Mar 2022

$

7,556,427
(4,448,002)

3,108,425

344,570
(2,012,163)
(192,658)
(956,199)

291,975

748
(2,958)

(2,210)
289,765

(87,775)
201,990
201,990
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sldlement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Shares fully Retained Total Equity
paid - share Earnings
capital
$ $ $

Balance at 1 April 2021 2 2,348,162 2,348,164
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Profit for the Year - 201,990 201,990
Total Comprehensive Income - 201,990 201,990
Balance at 31 March 2022 2 2,550,152 2,550,154
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Profit for the Year - 1,137,669 1,137,669
Total Comprehensive Income - 1,137,669 1,137,669
Balance at 31 March 2023 2 3,687,821 3,687,823
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Gash How statement

For the year ended 31 March 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Receipts from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees

Cash Generated from Operations

Income Taxes Paid

Net Cash from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

Proceeds from Disposal
Interest Received

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of Lease Liabilities

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

Mar 2023
Note $

12,783,120
(11,689,242)

1,093,878
(891,836)
202,042

(354,553)
7,496
704

(346,353)

(175,146)
(175,146)
(319,457)

1,125,644
2 806,087

Mar 2022
$

7,271,833
(7,239,002)

32,831
(60,000)
(27,169)

(9,412)
5,000
748

(3.664)

(116,288)
(116,288)
(147,121)

1,272,665
1,125,544
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NOtes [0 the Financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 1 Accounting Policies
FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Company does not have 'public accountability' as defined in AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian
Accounting Standards and is therefore eligible to apply the 'Tier 2' reporting framework under Australian Accounting
Standards. Accordingly, the information in these financial statements has been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement requirements in Australian Accounting Standards and the disclosures in AASB 1060
Simplified Disclosures for For-Profit and Not-for-Profit Tier 2 Entities.

For the purposes of preparing the financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity.

REPORTING ENTITY

Losugen Pty Ltd (the “Company”) is a Company domiciled in Australia. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Level 8, 235 St Georges Tce, Perth 6000. The Company is a for-profit entity and primarily is involved in the
manufacture of wear products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements for distribution to the members. They have
been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures made by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.

These financial statements are the first general purpose financial statements prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures. In the prior year the financial statements were general purpose
financial statements prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure
Requirements. There was no impact on the recognition and measurement of amounts recognised in the statements
of financial position, profit and loss and other comprehensive income and cash flows of the Company as a result of
the change in the basis of preparation.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors as of the date of the Directors’
Declaration.

b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs unless otherwise
stated in the notes.

¢) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.

d) Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the
application of the Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Details of the specific judgement, estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are summarised in the Notes.
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NOtes [0 the Financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

e) Comparatives

Certain prior financial year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current financial year
presentation.

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company has initially adopted the following standard and amendments from 1 July 2021.

- AASB 1060 General Purpose Financial Statements - Simplified Disclosures for For- Profit and Not- for- Profit
Tier 2 Entities;

The above standard and amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are

not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

A number of other new standards are also effective from 1 July 2021 but they do not have a material effect on the
Company's financial statements.

INCOME TAX

On 3 October 2016, the Company elected to form a tax consolidated group, effective 1 April 2014. Tega Holdings
Pty Ltd is the head company of the tax consolidated group.

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year (determined as

though the Company was not part of a tax consolidated group, but excluding transactions with entities within the
tax consolidated group), using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment
to current tax in respect of previous years. As the Company is a member of a tax consolidated group, it does not
recognise any tax payable. Instead, any amount of tax payable is recognised as a loan owing to the head company
of the tax consolidated group, as agreed between the two companies.

ii. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and associates and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Company takes into account the impact of uncertain tax
positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Company believes that its accruals for tax
liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of
tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of
judgements about future events. New information may become available that causes the Company to change its
judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense
in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultaneously.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
balance date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is calculated by using
weighted average cost method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bring them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT

i. Recognition and measurement
ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less

accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is
integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.

ii.  Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with

the expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.

iii. Depreciation
During the year, the Company has adopted the straight-line method of depreciation for all of its assets.

As a result, all items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over
the estimated useful lives of each component.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed and are ready for use.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods are as follows:

Plant and equipment 2 -13 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Office furniture and fittings 2-10 years
Buildings 30 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
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LEASES

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However, for
the leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and
non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end
of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In
that case, the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined
on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing
sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties
for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised
insubstance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities

are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

ii.  Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI — debt investment; FVOCI
— equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of
the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows the are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company has financial assets carried at amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities in the category “at amortized cost” are mainly liabilities (borrowings) to banks and trade accounts
payables.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the

risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
i. Financial assets
Financial instruments and contract assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses ("ECLs") on financial assets measured at
amortised cost and contract assets.

The Company also recognises loss allowances for ECLs on lease receivables, which are disclosed as part of trade
and other receivables.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are
measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables (including lease receivables) and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk.
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Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

ii. Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash Generating Units
("CGUSs"). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

SHARE CAPITAL
i. Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.
Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance with AASB 112.

REVENUE & OTHER INCOME

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.

The following provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.
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A) SALE OF GOODS

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered and have been accepted by customers at their premises. For
contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue will not occur.

Therefore, the amount of revenue recognised is adjusted for expected returns.

Customers obtain control of products when the goods are delivered and have been accepted at their premises.
Invoices are generated at that point in time.

B) RENDERING OF SERVICES

The Company recognises revenue from rendering of services based on the cost to cost method or when timesheets
for services provided are approved and subsequently invoiced.

If the services under a single arrangement are rendered in different reporting periods, then the consideration is
allocated based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone selling price is determined based on that
list prices at which the Company sells the services in separate transactions.

GOODS AND SERVICES TAX (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from,
or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising
from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating
cash flows.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The Company initially recognises government grants related to assets as deferred income at fair value if there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with
the grant; they are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other income on a
systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognised, unless the conditions for receiving the grant
are met after the related expenses have been recognised. In this case, the grant is recognised when it becomes
receivable.

FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit
or loss, using the effective interest method. Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and foreign
exchange gains/losses.
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Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset

are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities are reported on a net basis as either finance
income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.

Mar 2023
Note 2 Cash and Cash Equivalents $
Cash and Bank Balances 806,087
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 806,087

Mar 2023
Note 3 Trade and Other Receivables $
CURRENT
Trade receivables 2,241,734
Prepayments 50,188
Fixed deposit 20,000
Total Current Trade and Other Receivables 2,311,922
Trade receivables are represented net of provision for expected credit losses of $181,397 (2022:

Mar 2023
Note 4 Inventories $
CURRENT
Stock on hand 1,856,959
Less: Provision for stock obsolescence (410,369)
Stores and spares 119,033
Total Current Inventories 1,565,623

Mar 2022
$

1,125,544
1,125,544

Mar 2022
$

1,638,477
32,092
20,000

1,690,569

$48,962).

Mar 2022
$

1,799,549
(334,469)
113,911

1,578,991

In 2023, inventories of $3,462,975 (2022: $2,627,913) were recognised as an expense during the period and

included in the ‘cost of sales’.

In addition, during the 2023 inventories of $75,899 (2022: $79,756) were written down to net realisable value. The

write-downs are included in ‘cost of sales’.
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Note 5 Property, Plant and Equipment

RECONCILIATION OF CARRYING AMOUNT
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Net carrying amount at 1 April 2022
Additions
Depreciation

Disposals: gross carrying amount
Disposals: depreciation offset

Net carrying amount at 31 March 2023
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2023:

Gross carrying amount

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Net carrying amount at 31 March 2023

Property, plant and equipment includes right-of-use assets of $141

Land and
buildings

794,604
(481,337)

313,267

2,374
(174,523)

141,118

796,978
(655,860)

141,118

Plant and
equipment

826,614
(765,577)

61,037
332,666
(42,879)

(93,042)
92,697

350,479

1,066,238
(715,759)

350,479

325,902
(267,534)

58,368

4,250
(15,630)

46,988

330,152
(283,164)

46,988

,118 related to leased properties (see Note 13).

Motor vehicles Office furniture

300,081
(266,517)

33,564

8,111
(10,956)

30,719

308,192
(277,473)

30,719

Lease

improvements

144,425
(144,387)

38

7,152
(5,271)

1,919

151,577
(149,658)

1,919

Total

2,391,626
(1,925,352)

466,274
354,553
(249,259)

(93,042)
92,697

571,223

2,653,137
(2,081,914)

571,223
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Note 6 Income Tax
A. AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS

CURRENT TAX EXPENSE
Current year

DEFERRED TAX EXPENSE
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Tax expense on continuing operations

B. RECONCILIATION OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

Profit for the year

Total tax expense

Profit excluding income tax

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (30.00%)
- Non-deductible expenses (0.08%)/(0.30%)

Mar 2023
$

485,199
485,199

4,302
4,302
489,501

2023

1,137,672
489,501

1,627,173

488,152
1,349

489,501

Mar 2022
$

156,317
156,317

(68,542)
(68,542)
87,775

2022

201,989
87,775

289,764

86,929
846

87,775

Page 19 of 27



Losugen Pty Ltd

ABN 26 097 626 849

NOtes [0 the Financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

C. MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX BALANCES

2022

Property, plant and
equipment

Receivables
Right-of-use assets
Inventories
Prepayments
Employee benefits
Other items

Tax (assets) liabilities

before set off

Set-off of tax

Net tax (assets)
liabilities

2023

Property, plant and
equipment

Receivables
Right-of-use assets
Inventories
Prepayments
Employee benefits
Other items

Tax (assets) liabilities

before set-off

Set-off of tax

Net tax (assets)
liabilities

Net balance at
01 April

(17,719)
(9,000)
5,049
(76,414)
4,205
(50,390)
(44,333)

(188,602)

(188,602)

Net balance at
01 April

(23,498)
(14,689)
93,982
(100,341)
3,719
(105,055)
(111,262)

(257,144)

(257,144)

Recognised in
profit or loss

(5,779)
(5,689)
88,933
(23,927)
(486)
(54,665)
(66,929)

(68,542)

(68,542)

Recognised in
profit or loss

92,817
(39,730)
(51,647)
(22,770)

5,180
(22,738)
43,189

4,301

4,301

Net

(23,498)
(14,689)
93,982
(100,341)
3,719
(105,055)
(111,262)

(257,144)

(257,144)

Net

69,319
(54,419)
42,335
(123,111)
8,899
(127,793)
(68,073)

(252,843)

(252,843)

Balance at 31
March

Deferred tax
assets

(23,498)
(14,689)

(100,341)

(105,055)
(111,262)

(354,845)

97,701

(257,144)

Balance at 31
March

Deferred tax
assets

(54,419)

(123,111)

(127,793)
(68,073)

(373,396)

120,553

(252,843)

Deferred tax
liabilities

93,982

3,719

97,701

(97,701)

Deferred tax
liabilities

69,319

42,335

8,899

120,553

(120,553)
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Mar 2023 Mar 2022

Note 7 Trade and Other Payables $ $
CURRENT

Trade payables 1,098,449 1,347,556
GST Payable 53,206 79,200
Payroll Liabilities 200,708 167,867
Intercompany payable 5,201 411,838
Sundry creditors 26,320 2,799
Total Current 1,383,884 2,009,260

The intercompany payable is payable to Tega Holdings Pty Ltd and includes the portion of tax payable by the tax
consolidated group that is attributable to the Company.

Mar 2023 Mar 2022

Note 8 Employee Benefits $ $
CURRENT
Annual leave provision 178,142 140,557
Total Current 178,142 140,557
NON-CURRENT
Long service leave provision 106,723 98,568
Total Non-Current 106,723 98,568
Note 9 Capital and Reserves
Share capital

2023 2022
On issue at 1 April 2022 2 2
On issue at 31 March 2023 2 2

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued capital. All shares issued are
fully paid.

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at general meetings of the Company. In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank
after creditors and are fully entitled to any proceeds on liquidation.

Dividends

No dividends were paid by the Company to members since the end of the previous financial year (2022: $0).
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Note 10 Revenue

DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Sale of goods

Provision of services
Total Revenue from contracts with customers

Total

Timing of revenue recognition

Products transferred at a point in time
Products and services transferred over time

Primary geographical markets

Asia Pacific (South East Asia and Australia)

Note 11 Net Finance Costs
INTEREST INCOME
Interest income

Total Interest Income

LESS: INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest expenses

Bank charges
Total Less: Interest Expense

Total net finance income/(cost)

Mar 2023
$

8,622,824
3,767,005

12,289,829
12,289,829

Mar 2023
$

8,622,824
3,767,005

12,289,829

Mar 2023
$

12,289,829
12,289,829

Mar 2023
$

704
704

3,915
935

4,850
(4,146)

Mar 2022
$

5,716,505
1,839,922

7,556,427
7,556,427

Mar 2022
$

5,716,505
1,839,922

7,556,427

Mar 2022
$

7,556,427
7,556,427

Mar 2022
$

748
748

1,720
1,238

2,958
(2,210)
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Note 12 Financial Instruments
ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Mar 2023

$
FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST
Trade Receivables 2,311,922
Cash and Cash Equivalents 806,087

3,118,009
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST
Loan from Related Party (5,201)
Trade Payables (1,330,678)

(1,335,879)

Note 13 Leases
LEASES AS LESSEE

The Company leases its warehouse and manufacturing unit.
Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below.

i. Right-of-Use Assets

Right-of-use assets related to leased properties are presented as property, plant and equipment.

Land and
Buildings
Balance at 1 April 2022 313,267
Additions to Right-of-Use Assets 2,374
Depreciation Charge for the Year (174,523)
Balance at 31 March 2023 141,118
ii.  Amounts Recognised in Profit Or Loss
Mar 2023
$
Interest on lease liabilities 3,915
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 174,523
Expenses relating to short-term leases 63,165
241,603

Mar 2022
$

1,690,569
1,125,544

2,816,113

(411,838)
(1,930,060)

(2,341,898)

Total

313,267
2,374
(174,523)

141,118

Mar 2022
$

1,720
113,167
113,612

228,499
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iii.  Future Lease Payments

The total of future lease payments (including those lease payments that are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability, eg for short-term leases and leases of low-value items) are disclosed for each of the following
periods.

Mar 2023 Mar 2022
$ $
Less than one year 151,125 175,147
One to five years - 152,325
More than five years - -
151,125 327,472

Note 14 Commitments
The Company had not committed capital expenditure as at 31 March 2023 (2022: $226,141).

Note 15 Related Parties

A) Parent and ultimate controlling party

The immediate parent of the company is Tega Holdings Pty Ltd and the ultimate parent is Nihal Fiscal Services
Private Limited, a company incorporated in India.

B) Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel compensation comprised short-term employee benefits and post-employment
benefits.

The key management personnel compensation was $289,241 for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: $256,455).
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C) Other related party transactions

Transaction value for the year ended

2023 2022
PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES
Tega Industries Limited 3,312,091 2,471,269
Tega Industries Australia (Pty) Ltd 52,696 402,610
MANAGEMENT FEES
Tega Industries Limited 123,711 11,630
Tega Industries Australia (Pty) Ltd 190,001 211,746
OTHER EXPENSE / (INCOME)
Tega Industries Limited 7,223 4,936
Tega Industries Australia (Pty) Ltd 111,078 82,887

Balance outstanding as at

2023 2022
Tega Industries Limited 816,168 903,708
Tega Industries Australia (Pty) Ltd 3,668 37,006
Tega Holdings Pty Ltd (Australia) 5,201 411,838

All outstanding balances with related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis. None of the balances are secured.
No expense has been recognised in the current year or period year for bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts
owed by related parties. No guarantees have been given or received.

Note 16 Contingencies
The Company has no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2023 (2022: nil).

Mar 2023 Mar 2022
Note 17 Auditors Remuneration $ $
AUDIT SERVICES
Auditor of the Company
KPMG Australia:
Audit of financial reports 41,000 37,000
41,000 37,000
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Note 17 Auditors Remuneration

OTHER SERVICES
Taxation services

Accounting services

Note 18 Subsequent Events

Mar 2023
$

5,220
6,920

12,140
53,140

Mar 2022
$

1,700
8,820

10,520
47,520

No matter or circumstance has occurred subsequent to year end that has significantly affected, or may significantly
affect, the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company or

economic entity in subsequent financial years.
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Jirectors Deciaration

In the opinion of the Directors of Losugen Pty Ltd (the "Company"):
a) The Company is not publicly accountable;

b) The financial statements and notes, as set out in these financial statements, are prepared in accordance with
the basis of accounting described in Note 1, and other mandatory reporting requirements, so as to present
fairly the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and its performance, as represented by the
results of its operations for the financial year ended on that date; and

c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 the Company has:
a) Kept such accounting records as to correctly record and explain its transactions and financial position;

b) Kept its accounting records so that a true and fair financial report of the Company can be prepared from time
to time; and

c) Kept its accounting records so that the financial report of the Company can be conveniently and properly
audited or reviewed.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

[ ]
m*w *
Satyamurti Joe Viranna

Director
Date: 25.05.2023
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ndependent Auditor s Report

To the Directors of Losugen Pty Ltd

We have audited the Financial Report of The Financial Report comprises:
Losugen Pty Ltd (the Company).

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial o Statement of financial position as at 31
Report presents fairly, in all material respects, the March 2023:

financial position of Losugen Pty Ltd as at 31
March 2023, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standard
— Simplified Disclosures Framework.

e Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, Statement of
changes in equity, and Statement of cash
flows for the year then ended; and

e Notes including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’'s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Report in
Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Restriction on use and distribution

The Financial Report has been prepared to assist the Directors of Losugen Pty Ltd for the purpose of
fulfilling their financial reporting obligations.

As a result, the Financial Report and this Auditor's Report may not be suitable for another purpose.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our report is intended solely for the Directors of Losugen Pty Ltd and should not be used by parties
other than the Directors of Losugen Pty Ltd. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any
reliance on this report, or on the Financial Report to which it relates, to any person other than the
Directors of Losugen Pty Ltd or for any other purpose than that for which it was prepared.

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and
logo are trademarks used under license by the independent member firms of the KPMG global organisation. Liability limited by
a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.



Other Information

r

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Losugen Pty Ltd’s annual reporting which
is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor's Report. Management are responsible
for the Other Information.

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information.
In doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial
Report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date
of this Auditor's Report we have nothing to report.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Report

Management are responsible for:

e the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Report in accordance with the financial
reporting requirements of the Australian Accounting Standard — Simplified Disclosures
Framework;

e implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

e assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the
going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report

Our objective is:

e 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

e toissue an Auditor’'s Report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the Financial Report.



KPMG

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:

http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This description forms part of our Auditor’s
Report.

(PM ¢

Perth, WA

25 May 2023


http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf

ANNEXURE K




V. SINGHI & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDHNTOR'S REPORT
Ter the Board of Directors of MONALLY SAYAJI ENGINEERING LIMITEDR

Repart on the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information

Crpindon

We have audibed the accompanying Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information of MeMally Savaji
Engineering Limited (hercinafter referned to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary {eolloctively referred
to as “the Group®} for the period from 259 February, 2023 to 319 March, 2023, which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheel as at 319 March, M3, the Condolidated Staterment of Prodit and  Loss (hiwlideng, (ther
Lomprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows for the period then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Information ineluding a summary
ol significant accounting policies and other explanatory information [hereinafter referred o as “the Special
Prar st Comsalidated Financial lnlormabion”),

In our opinien and to the best of our infermation and according o the explanations given o us, the aforesaid
Special Purpose Consolidated Financlal Information give the information reguired by the Companics Act, 2013
[“the Act™) in the manner so reqoired and give s tree and faae wiow in canformity with the Indian .I'I.q'_'\l:'lrl:|.|1|i1'|Fl-'
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Compandes {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 s amvended, {Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in Indis, of the consolidated state
ol affales of the Group as at 31 March, 2023, and their consolidated prodit, their consolidated other comprehensive
e, their con=olidated changes in equity and their Statement of cash lows for the period ended from 25
February, 2023 10 314 March, 2023,

Basis far Cxpinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purposs Consolidated Financial Information in sccordance with the
Slandards an Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Chur responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Besponsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Information
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") logether with the cthical requirements that are relevant o
our audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information under the prroveislons of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in scoordance with these reguiTements
arsl the ICADs Code of Bthies, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
b provvide a basis for our audit opinien.

Emphasis of Matter

a} Basis of Preparation and Restriction on Distribution and Use

The Special Purpose Consolidated Finanesal Information of McNally Sayaji Enginecring Limited ("the Holding
Company®} and tts subsidiary (the Holding Company and subsidiary together referred 1o as the Group') is
prepared in accorchance with the group accounting policies of Tega Industries Limited, which in tum are aligned
with Indian Accowting Standards (herelnaficr refernsd to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs pursuast to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2003 read with Hule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Bules, 2015 (as amendod) and further adjusted for far valuation adjustoeent to assets
and linbilities pursuant o acquisition of the Holding Company by Tega Industeies Limited in accordance with
Ind AS 13 — Business Combinations. This Special Purpose Consolidated Financial is prepared o fclitate
comsalidation of the Group into the consolidated financial information of Tega Industrics Limited. The
Con=salidahed .sp-l:-l'-if.ﬂ Purpaose Financial Infosmation has boen '|1ch|;:|::|'||_|:~¢:| i accordance with Schedule 1 af the

Companies Act, EEL! i

4.3



V. SINGHI & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We draw atlention o Note 44 1o the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information which diescribes the
basis of accounting, The atoresaid Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Infermation have been prepared by
the management sobely for the lmided porpose to assist Toga Industelos Limited ("the UlHmale Haolding
Company™ ) or its consalidation purpose and tocomply with the requirements under the Act. As a resull, These
special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information miay not be suitable for anather purpose. This report i
tgsued solely for the aforementioned purpose amd intended cnly for the management and accordingly should
not be referred to or distributed for any athor purpose or o sty other party without oor prior webllen consent,
Mecordingly, we donol accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any otbwer purposeor (o any other
perset to whom this report is shown or into whose haids i may come without our prior consent in writing

1] Acconnling reatment for the effects of the Besolution Plan

Wi draw your attention fo Mote 45 1 io the Spacial Purpose Consolidated Financial Information regarding the
implementation of vesolubion plan and scheme of srrangement and amalgamation as approved by the Hon'ble
NCLT, Kolkata Bench on 24" February, 2023 for relief, comeessions and approvals sought Ltherson

Llur report is not medified in vespect of the above matters

Responsibilities of Management and These Charged with Governance for the Special Purpose Consolidated
Financial Information

The Halding Company’s Board of Directors i responsible for the matters stated in section 124(5} of the Act wilh
respect b the preparation and presenitation of these Special Purpose Conselidated Financial Information that jgive
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financlal performance, including tetal
comprihensive income, consolidated changes in equity and eonsolidated cash flows of the Comgany in accordance
with the accounting principles gererally accepted in India induding the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in sccordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarling the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other ireegularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effeciively for
emsuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstalement, whether due to frawd or error,

I preparing the Special Purpose Consolidated Financlal Information, the Management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends bo Bquidate the Croup ar o

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Croup’s financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial
Informations as 4 whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due o fraud or orror, and fo issue an
Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is oot a
guarantee that an audit conducted in sccordance with SAs will always dotect a materlal misstatement when il
exisls. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the apgmregaio,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the sconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special
Purpose Consglidated. Financial Information.
e el s e

Ao partt of _aﬁ nudll"f'n"}hl:t'{lrdﬁl'lft' with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
soeplicisi ‘”.II:'I.'I-'JHHI.'I-IJJ E[Jurrl;u_u_:l'i:_ Wie e

- 5 .



V. SINGHI & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

o [denlifly aml assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Porpose Consolidated  Finanetal
[nformation, whether due to fraud or error, design and perfarm audin procedures responsivie fo fhose pisks,
and abtain aud it ewidence that is sufficient aid .'|J.||.1|.'|.1!:r|'.'|||:: (133 |1nn:_|n.-'i|h-:| hasis Log our ..:.I_'unlun_ The rask of mot
detecting o matedol misstatement resulting from fraud is Bigher than for one sesulting from error, as e
may invelve collusion, forgery, intontional omissions, misrepresentations or the everride of internal control.

*  Ofain an understonding of intermal control relevant o the awedil in order to design audit procedures that ane
apprupriate in the circumstances. Bul mot for expressing an opinion on whether the Company has adequa be
internal fnacial controls with reforence to financial statements in place or the operating of feclivencss of such

controls based onour awdit,

»  Ewvaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policles used and the easonableness of accounting estimaies and
related disclosureds made by the management,

= Conclude om Lhe appropriaiemsess of IEI'HLIIEIH\II'II'H!II.EI."G nuse of the gring concern basks of ¢||:|;_-|.||;,|||1-i:|:rI and,; hpsed
an the audit evidence obdained, whether o material uncertainty exists pelabed to events or conditions that Ty
cast significant doubt on B Croup's ahility to continue as o going concern, If we conclude thal a material
uncerbanty exisls, we are réquired Lo draw attenbion in our Audit Beport to the relabed disclosures in the
Special J"'I.II:'I.'H.'-:"'H'." Consalidated Financial Information or. if such disclosares are inadequate, 1o :|:|||.|di.|:].' e
apinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Aodit Report.
Hewever, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Special Purpese Consolidated Financial
Information, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Consalidated Finareial Information
repredent the underdving transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicale with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, indluding any aignificant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during cur audit,

¥We also provide those charged with grvemnance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requiresents regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationshlps and other matters that
miay reastnably be thought to bear on our independence, and whene applicable, nelated safepuards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were ol
rost significance i the sudit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Finaneial Information of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Audit Report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circomstances, we dotermine that 2 matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably ke
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

CHher Matters Paragraph
a) Moerger of Tega Equipments Private Limited (TEPL) with the Holding Company

e chrw your attention to Note 45 11 D fo0 the Special Purpose Consolidated Financlal Information in respect
of Scheme of Merger {the “Scheme™) between the Holding Company and TEPL (" Transferor Company™), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Tega Industries Limited, from the appointed date of 20 March, 2023, pursuant
to the Resolution Plan approved by Hon'ble NCLT on 24th February, 2023, immediately upon the issuance of
the eguity shares of thie Holding Company o TEPL, as part of that Resolution Plan, gn-:EIF: mrmg and conditions
set oul in the scheme of merger without any further act, instrument or deed. r' e 4 29



V. SINGHI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Further, in accordance with the Schome referred to in Note Mo, 45 T T i e Special Purpose Consolidated
Financial Information, the Financial Statements of the Transferor Company which relloct total assets of Rs,
16,550.07 Lakhs as at 31% March, 2023, net assets of Ks, (6.91] lakhs as at 2990 March, 2023, total net loss afber
Eax of Rs 11,22 Lakhs for the period from 19 April, 2022 to 200 March, 2023, have been included in these
Financial Statements, The said Financial Statements have nol been audited by us but audited by other auditor,
whase report have been furnished to us and have been relisd upon by o,

by Fair Valualion

These Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Infermation have been prepared by the Holding Company’s
management on a fair valuation based on the valuation report provided by an independent valuer. Its purpose
15 o assist ks Holding Company and Ullimate Holding Company for its consolidation purpose and to comply

with the requirements under the Act

¢} Unaudited Financial Information of the Subsidiary Company

The Special Purposs Consolidated Financial Information include the unaudited Financial Information of one
subsidary whose financial information reflects the Group's share of total revenoe of Ks. 73 Lakhs for the period
from 25 February 2023 to 200 March 2023 and the Group's share of total net loss of Is, 49 Lakhs for that
pertod. The Financial Information has been furnishesd o us by the management and our opinion on the Special
Purpose Consolidated Financial Information, in so far as it relates to the amounts and discloswures includod in
respect of the entily is based solely on such interim financial information. In aur opinden and according bo the
infermation and explanalions given to us by the management, this interin financial information is not material

fos thie Growp,

Chur report is not modified in respect of the above matters,

For W, Singhi & Associales
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 311017E

£ 4:_3,&:
Surmil Sir;g 1i

Place: Kolkata Partner
Drate: 200 May, 2023 Membership Mo, 060654
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MeMally Sayaji Enginecring Linnited
Notes forming part of the Speeial Purpose Consolidated Finuneial Information for the period from
2ath Fehraary, oz to 308t Macch, 2023

Mote i Significant Accounting Policies
Carporats Tnfisrmatinn

MeKully Sayuji Enpinvering Limited [MSEL) was meorporated in the vanrt 1943 = a Public Limited Company under
the provigian of the Companies Act 1956 and domiciled in India. The registered office of the comgany i lacated at
Campud 213, Keosgace Business Park, 1P, Bajachat, Newtown Kolkass WI 200060, The Company = eopaged in
maabacturing and morketing of crushing, screening, grindiog, material handling amd mineval processing
eijiripments with integratecd onstomes suppoet sl after sales service. The Company has feur monufuceturing fcilities

Bumnnrduld in Jhavkband, Asoenl in West Bengal, Bongalurs ond Vadedara,

The How'hle Mational Company Law TribunallNCLT], Kolkota Baneh vide order dated 1100/ o000 while admitting
section 7 applicaticn wider [nsdvency snd Bankmpley Cobezoih of 10001 Bank Limited, ane of the finomeial
cooditors, infliated Corporate Inselvency Resobution Prooess against McNally Savnji Engineering Limited, Pursuen
to ite oreler dated ath Februasy, 2023 ("NCLT Order”Jthe Adjudicating Authority approved the resolution plan
[ Approveed. Kesolation Flan”™) subimitted by M/% Toga Indvstries Limited (Reaslutbon Applicant™) {*RA™) for the
Company under Section 31 aof the Insolvency and Bunkroptoy Code, 26 (*Code™). As per the terms of Section 3 of
the Code, the Approved Resolution Plan shall e bindiog on the Company, its employess, members, ereditos,
guarantars and other slakeholilos avielved in the Resclation Plan,

Further, as por the ietms of the approvesd. Besalotion Plan, a Monngement Commiltes Supervision Committes
{MC/EC) is reqquired to be constitoted which shall comprise of 5 (five) members: (2] 20Two) member appointed by
the Resolution Applicant or his representativey (b)) 2 (0wo) members appeEnied by Ool; and () Besolatben
Professsnal, the Monitoring Commiitee was aceordinghy boen formed to mndotain e Company a5 & going coneern
anad o supervise the implementstion of the Approved Resolistion Plan.

This mote provides a list of significant aeconnting policies adopted in the preparation of Hsese Special Parpose
Conedidated Financial Information. These polickes have been consistently applied to ofl the vears presented, unless
atherwise stated,

{2} Basiz of Preparation of Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information

i) Corpdicrmee wigh Ted AN

The Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Infarmation have been prepared 1o comply in all material aspects with
the ndian Aveounting Standards (Ind AS) nolified wider Section 12 of the Companies Act, 2013 {Lhe Act) read with

Cormpanies {Incdian Aceounting Standords) fales, 2015, 08 amended amd other relevant provisions of P Acl,

The pecounting pelicies are applied consistently to all the perlods presented in these Special Furpose Consolidand
Finoncial Information,

(i} Historeal eost comaention

The Special Purpaae Conselidated Financial Information have been prepared a8 going concem on accran] besis amwil
undler the historieal eost eonvention, except for the following assets and linhilities which have been mensured at fuir
value or povalioed amount;

Certuin financial assets gmd Eabilities (inchading derivative instroments) measueed at fais value (refer
accouiting pelicy regarding financial instrumenta); and

Diefimext benfit plong ~ plan assels measared al e valoe,

Bhnre-hased paymenis




MeMally Sayaji Engdnecring Limited
Motes Torming pact of the Special Purpose Consolidiated Financial Information for the period from
a5th Felbrory, soueg to st March, 2osg

(i} et porans Vo Cureend Caselfoazioe

Al assets and Tahilities have beon elassified a5 curvent or non-current as per the company's normal operating cyele
annd other eribecia set out i the Schedobe [ o the Act, Based on the natues of prodicts asd e time between the
aeejuizition of arsets for procesbige sod Ui readization in eash and cash coguilinty, tha coin iy lns ascertnined,
i am average its operating cyele for the purpese of cuerent-non-cirrent classification of assets ond Nahilities to be 12

matha,
frak Lise qf'r'_*:rl'.rmarr_': -rrlr.r|'_|'r1r]'gr'r:l|r.|rf.:

The pstimnbes and judgemients tsed bn the prepamtion of the Specinl Purpose Consolidated Finanein] Information
are aantimally evahisted by the Company ond are based o historleal experleasee and varioos other assumptions ssd
factors (iduding expectations of Didure events) that the Company Belicves 16 be rearomable ander (s existing
girewmstomess, Actunl reaalts may differ from these estimotes, Differences between actnal vesulls and estimates ae

recignsed in the period in which the vl ape knowan) muterfalized.

The estimates and the undeclying sssumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Fevisions (o scconnting estimates
are recognised in the pericd in which the estimate is rovised wod future periods affected.

The anid ostivnates are based on the Bets and events, that existed ns ot the reparting date, or that oecsureed after that
chate bob provicle additional ovidencs showl esnditions existing as al e reporiing date,

() Sepment Reporting

Crperating segrents are reparted 108 manner consistent with the ivternal reporting provided 1o e Chisl Operating
Dregision Maker, The Chiel Operating Decision MakerCODM) comprises of the Chiod Operating Offlcer and Use Chic
Financinl (iiicer. The COTM reviews the Company's perfonmanee on the analysis of proefil before (g al an overal]
lewel. Aecovdingly, there is no ather sepurita reportable sepmant than the geographical sepment as defined by Ind AS

1ol *Crprating Segoeents”,

(e} Forelgn Correncies

The fair value of finoncial sssets denominoted in g fovelgn currency B detessined ot fomsdgn corrency: aned
translated st the spot mte ai the end of ench reporting period, For finangial Habilities that are denominated in a
foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the end of ench reporting period, the foreign exchange pains
anal Iosses ape determine] based on the amortied coet o e insiuments sol are recogrised in Other Ineame’, The
fair value of financial labilities densminated in o foreign curreney is determined o thal foreign cornency and
translated of the epod mete ot the encd of the reporting pesiad. For finnneiad liabifities that are measered al FYTPL, the
foreign exchongs eomponent forms . pact of the fale value gaing or losses and & recopgnised in the Standolone

Saaternent of Profil and Loss

(e} Frmveavanal Cirrereyy

Tremme inelinded i the Special Parpose Consolidoied Finpneal Information of the Company are measired using e
cureeney of the primary cconantic enviromment in which the entity opesates ('the fuselional eurreney’), Thae Speeiil
Purpose Congelislated Financal Information are presented in Indian Rupee (IR, which is the functional currency.




MueNally Sayaji Engineering Linied
Motes forming part of the Specinl Purpose Consolidaied Financial Information Tor ile perisd from
z5th Februnry, 2o to g0 March, 2053

(e Trarscrcdioves cind belanees

Foreign eurrency ransactions are transloted into the fenctional currency using thee exchange mates af the dates.of e
Iramsacticns. Forsign cochange gaing and loses resulting from the sstilensent of such transactions and from s
translation of owmetary asocts anad labilities deiommbaated in fwvign eureoncies st s voar end oxeliasyge rates ore
generally recopnized ln e Standalome Statement af Prsfl and Laoss.

Foreign exchange differences roganded a8 adjustment to borrewing costs are preseited in the Standnlone Statemont
af Profit and Lass, within fnenes costs, ATl other foreign exclange gains and losses are presented (n w Consolidated
Stotement af Frofil and Loss an a ned hessis witl other Fnin.-a_." [lvassnsh,

HNon — mometary items thot are messined at Gic value ina foreign enrreney- are trssdated aamg the exchange rotes ol
the dote when tha: faic valoe wis determined, Translation differences on assets and Habilities corred at fair valoe are
reporied s pact of the fudr value gain or boss,

() Bevenue Recognitien

Ravene towards satisfaction of o performance obligation s measured st the pmount of teanssctben price {nel of
variabde considerntion) allocotes] to that pedformance obligation. The transactien price of geods seld and serdces
rendered is net of variable constderstion on aecount of varines discounts and sehemes affored by the Company as
el of e o,

(i) Sl of Goseds ood Serpices

Far cantracts with customers in which the sale of equipment i geneenlly expected o be the ondy performance
obligation, adoption of Ind AS 115 dacs oot ve any material impavt en the Company's revenne and profit or lass
The Company haes concluded that the revenue recognition is o soour at a poing in toe when control of (he asset is
tramsferred to the customser, generally oo delivery of the goods as per the torms of the condrmels with the costomsers.

Keverm from the sple of gosds is recognized when tha o= are deliverod and tles hove been passed, af which time
all the: fdlowing conditions ore satiefied:

the Company has transferred to the boyer the significant risks and rewnrds of ownership of the poods;
i the Company retaing neither continuing monsgerial volvemen to the degree oselly associated with
avenership ner effective contral ever e goods sobd;

the smount of revenwe ean be meosured colialily;

it s pratnhla thut the econombe benefits associated with the transsetbon will Bew to the Company; and
v thecosts incurred or to be incorred in respect of the transaction can he measured relinhly,

Revenue from Serviees i5 mecognized in acoousting periacl in which services are rendered. Revenoe s recopnized
hased on the scteal service provided G the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total servicos to be
prowided {percentage of completian methad ).




MeMally Sayaji Engineering Limiued
Notes forming part of the Special Purpase Consolidated Financial Information for the period from
25th February, 2oz to gist March, 2ossg

(i) Enckernd e fonderest I

Dividend incomo from investments s recognised when the shareholder's dght to recolve peivonent has boen
eatithlished {provided that it is probable that the cconomic bemefits will fow to the Company asd the ot of

e ein he measaired reliahbed,

Interes] income T o fsancial ssser i recopmized when s prabable thot the eoonomic Teselits will Dew o Uswe
Comgany and the amounil of iocome can be measioed eliably, Dolerest income s acorned on a tme basis, by
referenos o the principol outstanding and at the effective interest eate applicabbe, which i the rate that exzetly
dizcounts eatimaled lutore cach reevipts throagh e expected e of the financial ssacls lo that asset's el Aty

it dm initial recogniton.

{idi ) Export Banefits

Export incentives are accaunted for in the year in which the entifiements ave realised,

(v} Gomeriment Grants

Geanls feom e government ave recopiised at eeir fair value whore there @ 8 teasomadde nssuranee that the grant
will B reeisived and Uhe Company will comply wills all attoebed concditions, Gevernment granls relating to inconse are
diferred and recognised in the saternent of profit snd loes over Use period necossary to mateh them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate and presented within other operating revenune

) Toxation

Tnecaime tax expenae represeats te sum of the tax corrently payalile amd deferred tax expmse;’ (income).

SO Carren Tox

Thee tax carrenily payable is based on wcahle profit for the year. Taxable profil differs from ‘prafit before tay’ s
veported in the Standolone Statement of Profit and Loss bocause of lems of income o7 expense that ame axahle or
ifeductibbe in other years and itemns that are never thxable or deducetible, The Crnpany’s auwrrent tax is caleulated
using tix rates that bave been enncted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peried, 1t estobilshes
provisions whive appropriate on the basis of amounis expected to be paid o Lhe tax aothorities,

ft) Freferred Tox

Dederrest tax i recognised on temporary differences between the earrylng amomnts of assets apd liabilites i the
Special Purpise Consalidated Financinl Information and the corresponding tax bases used #11 the computation of
taxahbe. profit, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogndsed for all taxable emporary diffesences. Deferred tax
assels are generally recognised For afl deductible temporary differences 1o the extent that it &s probable that teable
profits wall be availalle againet which those dedwetible temparary differences can be utilised. Such deforved fax
assets and Habilities are not recognised if the temiporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in o
business combination} of assets and leabilities in o traveaction that affects neither e toakhls pollt nor the

deeaunting profit,
The caveying wnouwst of deferisl b assets is reviewod ot the end of esch reporting perind and reduosd D the sctent
that it i na longer probable that sufficlent tuxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferved Lix

=3t ta hearlilised.
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MeMally Savaiil Enginecring Limnited
Moles foarming it ol the Spe-tlul F‘llq_:lum.- Conzalidated Financial Informatlon for the pr_-jim] lrarmm
a5th Fehouwary, 2o23 to 3ist Marech, 2023

Deferred tux assets and Habilities are offset when there i o legally enforeeable right 1o offset current lax asseds and
lLabitities and when the deferred tox balinoss velate o the same xation aetharity, Corvent x assets and G
liabilities are offsel where e eobity bos o legolly enforeeable cight to offst and inlends either te scottle on a net basks,
ar o realize the nsset nad settle the Lalbbivy stimultaneosly.

Curreast and deferred tax recogoised in the Statensnl of Profil and Lo, except fo the extent thot i relates (o jtens
recopmiscl in Other Comprehensive Income ar direetly in Equity, In cises, the s are also secogaised in Ofhar
Comprebensive Income o divectly n Bgully, as e case moy be.

(F} Lenses

At the inesplwa of o conteact, the eutity shall aseess whotber the contract =, or contams, o lease A contesct ls, or
eomiaing, o lease if the conireod eonveys the right o control the bee of oo identified agsel for 2 period of fime in

exchange for considerotien,

As g Lessed

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract a8 s lease separately from nonslense
vomipenents of the conbract ond allocates the consideration in the contract te cach leaze component on the basis of
e velative stand-nplane price of the lesse componeit and the aggrégate stanc-obone price of the pon-leass
compenends, The Compaiy recgnizes 2 Right=nf-use Asset ("ROU") and & corresponding leage lalbbity for ol lexse
armngements in which it 1 a lesseo af the lease commencement dote, cacept for lenses with a term of twelve months
or Jess {short-tesm loases] and low value lesses. The Compony cecognizes Bease labilities 1o make lease payments
nnd right-of-use assets representing the right to use the anderlying nesets, [Tapplicable. For these short-term and liv
vithae leases, the Compony recognizes the lease payments ns on apernting expense on g steaighi-line basis aver the
term ol Tha lease,

Certain lease arrangements include options 1o extend or terminate the lease before the emi of the lease term, The
right-of-use aesats and leaxe liabilities inclode these optivns when it is roasonably certain that such options wauld be
pxertiscal

The right-of-uge assets s subsequently messured at cost loss any accumulated  deprecintion, necamalated
impaitmenl losses, | any and adjiosted for any remeasarement of the lease lTnbiliiy, The cighi-ol-use assets is
depreciated using the stradglit-line method from the commencement date aver (e shorter of lease term or useful [ife
of Fght-ol-use aspet.

Right-aof-use assets nra testod fur impairment whenever there is any indication that their corrying amounts may not
b recoverable. Inpaitmant loss, it any, is recopnized in the Stateanent of Profit aned Loss.

Laage lability = messured at the presond valoe of the lease payments Dl sre nob paid at the commencement date of
the lease. The lease payments ave discountesd using the interest rate implickt in the bease, if that eate can be rendily
determined. 1f that rate connot be readily determined, the Company uses incrementu] borrawing, rute. Tl leuse
Lahility i subsequently remeasured by increasing the corrving amount to reflect interest on the lease labilit,
roducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease pryments made and remeasiring the cirrying amoont o reflect any
reassessment o lesse modifications. The Company recegnizes the nmeunt of the re-meastromeat of lease lability ns
s adjustosent te the right -ofuse asset. Where the carrying amaount of the right-of-ose asset is redaced o zero aimst
there is 4 further redwction in the measurement of the kease Halility, the Company recogiizes amy remaining nmeunt
of the re-meepsurement in statement of profil amd lass,

Varialde bease payments not inchuded In thie neasurament of the kease Babilities e expensed to the statement of
ferofit ard loss in the period in which the cvents or those pavments occur.

A a Lessor
Lease inoomse from aperating Tease where the Company &= a lessor is recognised in income, The respective beasell
nasEts HE;D-UII[:]H:::[I]QJH the Stamtalone Balonee Sheet hased an their nofure. ;
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MeMally Bavaji Enginecring Limited
Motes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information for the period from
251 Febrwmiry, 2003 to gast March, 2o

(g} lgsairment ol Noo-fGuancial Assels

The Company assesses, at onch reporting date, whether there is an indication that an azset may be impaired. 77 amy
indication exigts, ar when anmenl impairment testing for an assel s veqpuiced, the Company estinimtes the assets
revveralle amiount, An asset's vecoverable amoumd is the ligher of dn saset's or cosh-generating units (00U fair
vilue bess costs of disposal and fts value in use. Becoveralle amount is determined e an individoal assel, uoless the
naset does nol generate casl ieflews ot are largely independent of thesse rom other assets or groupol assets.

Trpsirment loss is recognbzeil whien tie carrying amaant of an asset excewsds reeoverable simaint,

In aszessing valoe in wse, the estimated future eash Mows are discounted 1o their presont value using o pre-ty
dizcount pute that vefects cuerent market nssessmwnts of the thime value of money aned the fsks specific fo e sl
In determining falr valie kesa costs of disposal. recent market ravsactions: are taken info soouont, B no sesh
barsactions can be ideptified, an oppropriate valuation wodel is wsed, These coloulations are corrolarated by
vnlisation multiples, quoted share prives for publicly troaded companies or other svailable foir vobie indicators,

Where an impairment loss snhsequently roverses, the carrving value of the asset {or cash geneeating unit) is
inervazed to the rovised estimate of its recoverable amount zo that the dncreased carrving value dioss oot exceed tie
carrying wloe that would heve been deterouned bad oo impairment Inss boen recognised for the asset (or cosh
EEneraling wnit) in yearx, A reversal of an impaicment ksss e recognised in the statement of preelit and boss

immeditedy,
(he)d Cash wnd Casl Eguivalents

For the purpase of presentation in the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash
on hand, demand deposity with banks, sther shor-term dprEt, highly lguid fovestments, i any, with origioal
maturities of three months or less that are readily comverlible to known amannts of cash and which are subjeet 1o an
inzigniticant ek of chonges i value, and bank ovordrafis, Bank overdenfis are shown within boreowings i curvent

linhilities in the Stapdalone Balionce Sheet,

(i} Trade Becelvables

Traghe pecelvabbes wre rocopnlzed Initially ot transaction peice and subsequently. messared st amortiooed cost less
pnrri:inn I'nr'im]:nni'nmn'r.

(i} Invenlories

Inventaries consists of raw materials and components, stores and spares, lonse teals which are valsed at cost and
work in progress and finished goods which are stoated 6t Tower of cost or mel reabizalde value, Cost of inventories
womprises cost of marchases. Cost of wark in progress and finkshed goods comprise divect material, direct nbore and
an apprapriate portion of varinbde and foed eoverleend expembiture, Cost of inventories alse inclsdes all ather costs
imcurred dn bringhng the tnventories ta their present lecatlon and condition, Casts are assigned 1o individual ems af
mveniory on Bhe hasiz of weighted sverage methad, Cost of purchases in relation bo laventory are determined sftar
deducting rehites and discounts, Met realizable valos is the estimoted selling price in the ordinary sourse of business
lesa the estimuted costs of completion sd the estimated costs secessary to make the sale Obsolete, slow moeving and
defective stocks are kdentified at the time of physical verification of stecks nnd wherens required to complete the plan
indaeate that

o
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MeMally Savaji Engineering Limited
Mutes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Finnncial Information for the period from
25t February, 2023 1o gt March, 2o

(k) Finaneial Liabilities

Finmnnetal liabilities are revagnised when on entity becomes 3 porty 1o the contrackon] provisions of the instemments.

1) Charssi e tion

Financial linhilitics are inidinlly mensured ab fair value. Transaction oosls that amwe directly ativbuiable tw the
ncquigition or isse of financial lishilities (other an fnancial Habitities at fair valoe throngh profit o lose) ane
aclded to or deducted from Use Gde vabee of the financial liabilities, as appropeiaie, on Bitial recopnition, Transsction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of Goancial Eabilities a0 fir value through profit or loss ane recognised
immediately in the Standalooe Statement of Profit and Losa, Where there i a breach of o material provision of a kg
term lonn srrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the sffect thal the Linhility becomes payable
o dlemanad on the reporting date, the entity does mest elassify the lobility 08 earrent, if the lesder agresd, after the
veparting period and before the approval of the (nancial stalements for issue, o to demand payment % a

agmnaeduence af the breach.
fiEl Measuremens

Finnneial Habdlites are clagsified, ot indtial recognition, as Anancial lHabiitles at Gabe value throogh profit or los and
fimancial lahilitics ot amortized cost, o8 required by Ind A8 ws. All financial liabilitles ave recogiised initinlly ax fair
vilue amd, in the case of linbilitics measured at amortized wost net of divcetly attribatable transaction costs. The
Company’s financial labilities incluels eracde and ather payables, loand and borrowiogs including financial guorankes

contractsand derivative financlal instminsents,

Fumaneial liahilitics that are met leld-for-teading amd are i designated as ot FYTPL are meassired af amoriiosd cost
at the end of subsequent aceounting perieds. The earrying amounts of financial linhilities that are subsequently
mogsured st amortived cosl are determined based on the offective interost method. Gains and bosses are recognised
in the Stundalone Stotement of Profit and Loss whens the hobilities ore derecognised o8 well &2 thraogh the ETR

wmortisation process.

(Fit} De-recourmition of fmoenciol Habilites:

A financial Tabillty (or a port of fincial Hability] is de-recognised from Company's balanes shest when obligation
spectfied in the comtract is discharged or caneelled o expired.




MeMally Sayaji Enginecrving Limited

MNates forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information for the peciod from
25th February, 2oeg 1o g ist Marcls, somg

(1} Investments pnd e Finaneial Asseis

Financial assets are recapnised wheo an enbily becomes a party to the conteactsal provisioes of the instiamenss,

(e} Clressificatian

The Camnpany classifies ibs financinl ozsets in the follvwing measireminl entegores:

Thase to be maeasared subseguently st Gie valve throogh profit o lnss,

Those s e measerid subsexpuentiy at firvalue through ather comprehenzive ineone, and
- Thoze messwred sl amaertizeed oast,

Thi classification depends on the witity’s busioess maoded Tor monaging the financial assets and the contruciug) cash
fleaw chiaracteristics of the fnaneal asset

Fer asseds measured of fair vxlue, gainsg and losses will be recorded in the Standalone Statement of Frofit and Loss,
For lovestmeents in ikt instrnnents, this will depend o the basiness oesded i owhich the investment is held,

i Measurerment

AL initinl recognition, the Company measires a fnaneial asset ot its fair valoe plos, in the case of 8 feancial asset not
al fufr value through profit or loss, tramssetion eests that are directly attributoble fo the asepisitien of the fisanetal
dagel, Transpctbo cots of financial pssets earvied ot fair vidoe through peolt or lees wre expenses] in the Sawlnlone
Statement of Profit and Loss, Howewer, trade receivables that do s contain o significant Aoancing component are
messured of fransoction price. Further, o respect of retention ameant receivable frem costomers the munagement
genvrally Las intention (o provide bonk guacantes (o pel an inetanl releass of retention amoest fram cuslomers.,
Therofare, the retention amouwsts ave gencrally carvicd st nmertized cost bess provisien for iImpaiement.

Investmient in Subsidinry, Joint Venture and Associates s recogniosd at cost as por Tnd AS 27 “Heparale Fiancial
[netraments” less impairment provision, if any, a8 per Il AS 36 “lpairment of Financial Asscts®. Where an
indication of impaimment exists, e corrving amount of the imvestment &= assessed and weitten down immedintely 1o
its recoveruhle amomnt, On disposa] of investments be sebsidiares | joint ywenture and Assocstes (e difference
between pet dispasal praceeds and the eorrving smounts ave recognised in the stntement of profit and Joss,

Dbt instruments measurod at aoortized cost - Assets thot are beld for collection of contraciunl casl flows whepe
theyse cksh flows represent solely payments of principal and interest ase mssared of amortized cost. Interest income
liramn these financial assets is incleded in foaee ineome osing the efecstive interest eale mthol,




MeMally Sayaji Engineering Linniled
Mobes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Information for the period from

eith Fehrogwey, soag to i Mareh, sosyg
(rie) Impairaeent of Finaoneial Aveels

The Campanrny rrergnises loss alkwanees using the expected ereidit Ioss (ECLY maded for the Gnansial agsels which
ane not valaesd throagh profit or less, Loss allowance for oll fnancial assets is measured at an amount egual to
lifetime ECL. The Company provides for expeeted credit loss allowance by taking into comsideration listoricad srend,
inelustry practices amd the busises epviionment in which the Company operales, The smousl of capeciod erodit
Insztes (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss alkywanee af the reporting date to the amount that is requived to
b pecopnised as an impairment giin or loss in the Standalone Statement of Profit @md Loss,

For frade vecoivables ond dises from cistoters, the Company applics the simplified appeonch permitted by Ind A%
100 Finanvial Instruments, which requires exposted lifetime kisses 1o be recognimed from initial cecognition of the

recd valdes.

(e Peregagailion of Fioaeeie! Assets

A linancial asset s derecogniesd only when the contractual rights 1o recelve the casl Bows from the Anancial assel
expives o iU transfers the Goancial assetand the transfer qaadifies for deseeognition under Ind A5 106,

(m) Derivatives that ave not desigmated as hedpes

Drarivatives ave initially recogrnised at fair valoe on the dote o derivative controet is entered info and are subssquently
re=mesisinsl fo theie fir valae at the and of eacl reporting pedad. Such contracts nre acesunted Tor ot fals value
Usrough profit o loss and are fncladed o other gains |/ leases, Derivatses ape cagieiod o Enancial assets when the fair
valier iz positive aid a8 Gonascial Habibities when the fair value is negative,

() Offseiting of Financial Instruments

Financial asseds and liabilithes ape offset and the nel onoeed is reported inthe Standalons Bolance Shest where there
i& a legally enforcenble right to offset the recognized amounts aiwl tsers (4 an idention b sektle on a net basde o
realive the asser and settle the lability simultaneously, The kegaliv enforceahbe ight must pot be contingent an
futane events and must be enforoeable in the mormal courss of beasiness.

(o) Froperty, Plant and Egquipment

The enst of an itom of Peoperty, Ploot and Equipment s recognized as an assst if, and only if:

i b it iapn:-l:uul:llo tiak fatiire ecoivianee bemebits ass oeinbed with the item will fow te e "-"“IHF amel

1. the cost ol an item can b maeasured relisably,

Freehold Land is earvied af historienl eost, AR other iteme of property, plant asd squipment are stated of historicol
oost leas depreciation and impaivasent, i oy, Wistorieat cost inelodes exponditire that is divectly abiriboisble to the
asngisition of the flems,

Buhsequent costs are cluded v the asset’s carming ammodt or recopnized ae @ separate assed, a8 apgeopriate, only
when it is probobde that future econemic benefils associated with the item will fow te the Compony and the cost of
the item can be measured relinbly, The carrving anount of any companent acoounted for s o separaty assct =
dorecognized when replaced. All other repairs and muintenance including spare parts are chatped o Statement of
Profit and Loss during the reporting paried inowhibch ey areincarred.

- fepreciobion methods, estimoted pseiel lives ond regidaal alie,

Depireciation i ealeulated nsing the straight-line method L albocate thede cogt, el ol theie nsidual valaes whicl is
eonsidered us Rel, on the basls of seful lives prescribed in Schedule 1 to the Act except the below mentioned cases,
which arzialsn auppm'a{'-:l by tectinieal evaluation.

(4.2
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MeMally Sayaji Dnginecering Dinited
Mates Forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Pinancial Informmtion for the period from
a2zt February, 2023 to 5ist Maech, 203
Extiniated vsefil lives of the assets (vears] whose wsefiul Hves bee different from the wsefal Tives proscribed in
Sehedsle 10 of the Companies Acl 2013 are as flloas:

Maotor Vehickes - Bto 1o years
- Plant & Machinery - B Lo 15 yoars
The asets” nesidual valaes and vseful Tivies are peviewed by the management, and adjested o nppropriate, ot the oil
af eacl reporting porkod
Frechold Land and Lesselold Laod (perpetoal lease} are not depreciated. Other Teasehobd land & amortimed over the
preriend of lease
= mpsiirment of Propedy, Plont & Equipment
Ak agsely carvving amoun is writtem down Immediately 1o s tecoveralle amaunt i, and only if, the receveralile
st of an afsed b8 bess than its carnying amount and an imgairment loss shall be ceopadsed immediately in the
Standalone Statemont of Profit and Loss, Gaing and keses on dispesils are determined by comparing procests with
careving sl These are ineloded incthe Standalone Stateinent of Profit and Loss within other grins/ losses,

{pd Investment Propertics

Propesty that is held for long term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and i not oceupicd by the
Company, b5 classifled ss investinent propecty, Investment property is measured inlzinly at s eost, iscladivg relnted
tramsactiomn costs gud where applicalife borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditur is capitalizod to e asset's careying
ot only when it is probable that fotore scoonie benefils asocisted with e expenditure will fow 1o e
Compary and the eost of the em cn be measured relinbly, All other repairs ad maintenaies cost are charged o
Statemernt of Prodfit omd Loss during the separting peciod in which they are inourred, Whan part of an investment
propecty is replacer, the carrying amoant of the replaced cost is derecognioesd.

Tnveatment properlics are deprecinted using straight line method over the estimated waeful les,

O dransition to Iod AS, the group bas clected 1o continue with the carrying value of its investmenl properties
rasiaived al the grevioms GAAR and use that earrying valise a5 the deeosed cost of investment propertics

() Intangible Asseis
Intangible Assets are stabect at cost of ncouesition net of seeomuointed amortisation snd accaelated smpairmont, i
any,

An asset’s carrying amounl {5 weitten down immedintely te its rocovernble ameant i the sset’s caorving amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Gitiets aned losses on disposals are deteembved by comparing processds with carnding mmount, ‘These ape tneladed in
e Stalemnent of Profit and Lioss,

On transition to Ind AS, the Company bus elected o contims: with the corrving valoe of e intengible assets
measured ab the previous GAAF and use that carrying value as (he desmend cost of intangible nssols

[t} Desinn eod Drawings, Vectmioal krmohowr and otber righis

Separately seguired Design and Drawings, Technica] knowhow and other rights are shown al historical eost.
(i) Coppueter soflesase

Costs assactated with maintaining sofware programmes ave recognlssd 8 an expense a8 incurred, Cost of purchasod
software are reconded as intangibhe assets and amortized from the point at which the ssset s available for e,

!N




MeMally Sayaji Engincerving Linited

Notes forming par of the Special Purpese Consolidated Finuncial Information for the period from
zoth Felwuary, zozg b 3161 March, 2o2g

() Besearrh ard Deaeloprment

Expenditurs on Research and Developaent that does nol mes=t the eriteria bed out in the standand ane recognized s
expenaes us and when incaered, Development costs proviousdy recognized as an expense are not recogiized as an
asset in subsequent perlod.

Pivehgmment costs ane recognessl as intangible assets when the folbvwing criterin are met;

t. it iz techmically foasilble 1o complete the intangille asset o that it will be availslile for use

2, numgement indends to complete he nbangible agset and use ar selb iy

€. there |s an ability b use or sl the intangible arsal

4 it eai be demanateated bow the imtangible zsset will geoerate probable futuee eeomemie benefis

5. adequate technienl, financlal and other resowrces o compbete the developmsent and @ use or sell the intangible

amact are availalde, and

0. theraspenditure attebutable e the intangiblic aset during its developresent cun bo relizbly messared.

Capitalised developmient costs are recorded s intangible assets and amortised bom the point at which the assel is
available far uze

i) Arwrrisentdn mmethods and perioods

The Company smortkses teclnical know-how over g period of five years and designs and drawing poswer over a period
of seven yenrs urder straight Hioe metlod. Computer seftware are amortised on a steakght e basis over @ period of

twin i five vears depending upon their useful Hwees

(r} Teade and Oiler Payvalsbes

Thest pmounts represent Halilities for goads and services provided 10 the Company prior to the end of financial vear
wihich are unpaid. Trade wnd other poyables are presented as corrent lishilities unless payment & not due within 12
mienths after the reparting period, They are recognized initially ot transaction cast or their fir value as applicatile
aned submognently measured al amortooed cost using the effective interest method.

(%) RBorrowings

Eorvowings are initiolly recognized at fair wlue, net of transaction costs incwrred. Borrowings are subsequently
micnsared 8 imortized eost. Any difference between the pracesds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption
nEkent is resagnized in profit and loss over the period of boreowings wsing the effective interest method.

Borrowings are derccopgnised rom the Standalone Balanee Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract 1=
discharged, cuncelled or expined, The differno: between the carrying amount of a fineneial Hability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another porty and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferved or
|Enbilitics assumad, is recopnized tn the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as oiber gaing/ losses.

Borrewings are classified ns eurvant linhilities wnless the Company has an anconditionnl right to defer settlement of
the linhility for at Jeast 12 eonthe after the roporting poriod




MeMally Sayaji Enginecring 1anmited
Nedes forming part of the Special Purpese Consolidated Financial Information for the period from
a5th February, 2o23 ta 3ist Maech, zoa3

(1) Barroswing Costs

Borrowing costs inchude inferest, other costs ineaered in eonneetion with bevoswing ond exchange differences uTESIF
friwm foveign curvemey borrowings o the extent that They are reganded as an acdivstment o the inleeest coat,

feervanwing Costs that are directly attributable 1o the soguisition, construstion or production of o qualifying asset
form part of the cost of that assel. A qualifying asset is an asset thal neceasarily takes substantiol period of time 1o st
veady fur ks indended wae o salbe,

Other barrmwing costs are expensed to the Standolone Statement of Profit and Loas in the pericd in which they aee
ineurrec,

(i} Provisions, Contingent Ligbilities and Contingent Assets

Provision is meognized when the Company has o present legal or constroctive obligstion as o el of past events, il
ig probabile thet an outflow of resourees embodying seonomie benefits will bo regquived to settle e ohligation and
amaunt af the obiligtion can be reliabby cstimated,

Provisions are measured at the present valoe of manngement's beed estimate of the expenditure requited to sctte the
present ohligntion at the end of the reparting periac. The disconnt rate used to determine the present value = o pre
— fax vate that reflects eurment market assessments of the tme vidue of money and the risk spedile o e Tahility,
Thie diseount rate dues oot reflect visks for which futore cash fow stbmates have boen adiosted, The increise in the
prevision due bo the passnge of time is recogniscd as interest expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

A disclosure for contingent lisbilives is made when there is o possible obligation arising from past events, the
exietenee of which will be confirmed only by the cocurrence or non-ocoarrones of o0 or more usceriain felue
events nal wholly witlin the control of the Company or 8 present ablgation thad nrises from past svents whess 1§ i
cither nud probabde thot an outlow of resourees embodying coononie beoefits will be required W settle the
abligation or amount of the abligation cannot be measured with sufficient relishbility.

When there is a possible abligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of reseurees is remote, no
provision or disclosure for contingent lialility is made

; h-'"ﬁ'ul.'ul Toi®



MoMally Savaji Enginecring Limitesd
Moles forming part of the Special Parpose Consolidated Financial Information for the perisd from
zsth Fehirary, @023 to gist March, o2y

Contingent Aszets are ool reeagnised ot are digclossd when oo inflow of seononie benefits & probable. Howeser,
when U realisation of income & virtually certain, fhen the related st i nof o contfngent asset and its reeognition

i ApropTiaty,

Provistons, Contingent Linhilities and Contingent Assels ate neviewed ot sach Balance Sheet date.

PFrovishon for warranly
The cstimated linhility for warranty is vecorded when prodoets are sold. These estumales are establishaed using,

histirial Enformation of previeus 18 months ssles on an average, manageenent estimotes regarding posgible fistumne
inchdenoe based on correstive actions e product Tiluee,

(v} Employee Benefits

(i} Shord-ferm Eogloyes Henefiis

Short term Employee Benelils (Le. benefits fulling due within one vear after the end of the pericsd in which
emplopee tender the related servie) are pecognized as expense in the period in which emploves serdces are
rendesed a8 per the Compuny’s schicme hased oo expected obligations on undiscoonted basis,

(i) chtaer Long-term Splogee Berefits

The: cost of providing leng-term employes benefits is determined wsing Projected Uit Credic Method with sctuarial
viluation being carried ouf st eoch Balanoe Sleot dite. The benedits are disconnted wsiog the marked viehds ab the end
of the reporting period that have ferms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Bemeasurements = a
result of experience adjustments and clanges in actecial assomptions are recognlzsd in ather comprehamgive

imeEme,

(i) Post-eoploupment Beieilt Plens

= Pragiefead Fiomel

This is o defined contribution plon for certaln employses and contributions are remitted to Frovident  Famd
anthorities In aceordance with relsant statute and charged to the profit ar loss in the perdmd in which the related
employee servicos ane Tenderad. The Company has no fiurther obligntions for futore Provident Fund benefits ofher
Hsam its manthby eomdributions,

Cerloin emplevees of the Company receive provident fund benefits, which ore ndministered by the lsdependent
Provident Fund Trast, Aggregate contribotions along with intesest theresn are poid at retirement,  deatly,
imenpocitotion or ferminaticn of employment, Both the emplayees ond the Company make monthly contribotions at
specified pereortage of the employeas’ salary 1o such Providend Fund Trust, The Company has an ebligation to fund
nny sleartfall in return on plan assets over the interest rules prescribes] by the authoritios from me to tme. L view
of the Company's obligation 1o meet the shortfall, there is a defined benelit plan, Actuarial wlention of the
Company’'s linhility under sech selwime i3 cartied oul ander the Projested Undt Credin Method ag s vear end and the
charge/ gain, if any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Los,

- Superannectien Fonl

This i% the delined contribution plan. The Company contributes a certnin pereentage of the eligible salay far
employees covered under the seheme towards supernnnuation fund administered by the Trostees. The Company has
no forther obligations for fulure superanountion benefits ethor than its contributions and recognices such
contributinns as experee in the peviod in which the related emplover services are rendared

- Xty

Thia Is & defined benefit plin. The schemes, which are fundid with SB1 Life Insurance G, Lid. and Life Insurance
Corporation of India {LIC), are administered by independent trosts, The lability i determined based an vear-cmd
nctuarial valuation wsing Prajected Umid Credit Matld.
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MNotes forming part of the Specinl Purpose Consolidated Financial Information for the period from
galh Feliruary, so2g o gist Maceh, 2o

The present vl of thi defined benefit ohligation is determined by disenunting the estimated hiune ensh sniflows
by reference Lo marked vields ot the end of the reporting perdad on gevermment bonds that have tetms approximating
bix theet terms of Use velated oddigation.

The net interest cost i calealated by applymg the disoont rate to the net bolanes of the defined benstit abligation
and e Fair vadue of plan amsets, This cost ks leeluded i amployes bemsfits ecpense in e Standubone Statensont of
Frofit amel Laas,

REeaneasurement goins unel fosses arising from expedence sdppstments and chonge= in actuarial assamplions are
recoginlied in U period in which they s, divectly bis olber comprehensve income, Ty aee included in oeiabned
earnings in the Standnbone Staternemt of Chonges in Equity and in the Standalone Balanes Shest,

Changes in the present value af the defined benefit obfigation resultisg fom plin amendments or eotailmenis ane
recognivd immaediately in the Satement of Proft and Loss as post servioe cost,

- Hones plans
The Company recognizes a linhility and an expense for bonus, The Compiny recopnizes 8 provision where

aoniraciually olliged or where there is.0 past proctice that lsos created a comstructive shligntion,

Non- Current Assets held for sile,

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if thefr corrving amonits will be
recovered principally through o sole mther than through continutng wee. Actions required 0 compbote the sale
should indicate that it is unlikely that significant chonges o the sale will be made or that the decision to soll will be
witherown,

Far these purpases, sale transactions includo exchanges of non-ourrent assets for other non-current nssets wien the
wxchange has commereial substance. The eritern for held for sale clossification s regarded as met anly when the
assets or disposal grosp s available for innsediate sale i its present condition, aubsjoct cotly Lo terms that are msual
and customary G sabes (or disposal gronpsd, it zale 15 highly probablis; and it will genoinely be seld, ot abandosed,
The Cempany treats sale of the asset or disposal groug o be highly probalde when:

i The npproprinte bvel of management i committed tooa plan tosoll the asset (or dispossl groap),

b Am aetive progromme to laeate o buyer and complete the plan hos been initiatod (if applicable],

i The neset (or disposal group) is being netively marketed for sale @t o preice thal is roasenable in relation 1o its

current foir valoe,
oL The sale is expected to qualify for recognition a5 o completed sale within one year from the date of classification,

and

e Actions required o complete the plany indicate that it is enlikely that slgnificant changes g0 the plon will be made
et that the plan will be withdrawn, Non-Current Assets beld for sale and disposal groups e measared ab (he Tower
of their carrying amount and the fir salue less cost o sell, Assets and Labilities classified as held for sale are

presented sopacately in (e Balanee Sheet.

iMher Assets held for snle
Any athier asdet (tangibde or intangible) held for sale is disclosed separvately in Financial Statements, us appropriate.

FPE and Intangible Assete once classified as held for sabe are not depreciated or smiertised.




MeMally Sayaji Engineering Limited
Motes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidoted Finonelal Information for the period from
25th Felwruary, so2g to 3ist Maeel, sowg

Exceptional items
When items of income and expenses within the statement of profit and less fom aedinasy activities ave of sueh sz,

pature amlb or incidenee thol their dischsure s relevant e explain the performnmes of the enterpeise Tor the period,
Ihe nature and amount of sweh materind items are disclosed deprrately as exceptional items,

{w) Contrilmbed Eoguity

Exity Shores of the company are clesified as equity, The issue oxpensed of seciritics which qualify ws eouity
instricments arme writfen off against secorities prensiun.

(%] Dividends Foyment

Provision = made for e amoont of any dividend declared, belng approprately anthorized amd no longee at the
diseration of the entity, o or before e end of the reporting peeiod but nat distribuied a1 ithe end of the reperting

jrerdisl,

{y) Enrnings Per Share

(i} Busie Enrnings Per Share

Bacie Earnings Per Share is caleulated by dividing

Profity € Lass) attrlbatable to equity shareholders of the Company
By the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding diring the Goancial year,

(i) Prfuted Borabigs Per Shore

Diluted Earstings Per Blare adjusts the figores psed in their determination of basic eamings per share o ke nfo
ascaunt

’ Prodit/[Lass) aftor incomae tax affect of interest and other fnoneing oosts sssociated with dilubive jotentinl

Equlty Slares, aml
; The welghted average mzmber of additional Equity Shares that would have been outstanding assoming the

conversion of pll dilutive potentinl Equaty Shares,




MeNally Sayaji Engincoring Limited

Motes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Finoncial Information Tor the period from
25th February, soaeg to gist March, 2o23

(£} Recent pronsuncements

The Ministry of Corporate Allaims CMOA™) notifics now standaeds of amendoents fo the cxisting standards wader
Compgrundes (Tnadian Avcounting Standards) Riles as issoed fram time to time. On March 51, 20243, MOCA amended thes
Componies (Ibian Acoounting Standords) Amendment Rules, 202, the effective date for adoption of this
amenclment is anmunl pericds beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Rules are stated belaw;

Ind AS 1 - Presentution of Financial Statements -

This amendment requires the entitics W disdose their materin] aceownting policies rather than their significan
avconnting policies. The Company hos evaloated the amendment aod the impact of the amendment i insignificant in
the Specinl Purpose Copselidated Financial Information,

Indd AS B - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Extimates and Errors -

This amendment has introduced a definition of “sceounting estimates” and inchided mmendments (e Ind A8 8 to help
enfitics distinguish chonges in aoccounting policies from changes (n aceounting estimotes, The Company has
evaliatesd the ammendmeant and there is te impact on its Special Parpose Conselidated Founcinl Information

Inad A% i3 = Ineome Taxes -

This amendment has narrowed the seope of the initial recognition exemplion se that it does net apply te snssetions
that give risa o equal ond offseiting emporry differences, The Company his evaluated the amendment and there is
o impact on ks Special Porpese Consolidoted Finaocial Infaemation.

Ind AS 1007 - Financial Instruments Diselosares -

This amesdment has mode an addition which sy that “Tnformation ubout (he messurement bisis for Goancial
instruments used in prepoarimg the fnancial statements 18 moterial accounting policy inforsatien and is to be
diselosed,” The Company has evaluated the amendment and there 5 me imgact on its Special Parpase Consolidated
Firaameial Information,

Rowmiling off ammounts

All amoants discosed in the Special Purpose Consolidated Finoneial Information and notes have been raundid off o
the nearest lakhs as por the requivement of Scheduals 1T to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

Holkala
PiRNLED




MeMally Sayaji Enginceving Limived

Wotes formibng par of the Special Purpose Consolldated Financial Information for the poriod Trom
a5th Fehrsowry, @o2g tie 3ist March, 2023

Niste ¢ 2 Sipgnificant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumplions.

The preparation of (e Special Parpese Conselidated  Financial Information requires management 10 take
Judgements, estimates and assumptions, These estimates, jodgements amd assumptions offect the appication of
aceounting palicics and the reporied amaunts of assets and labilitios, the disclossires velaling Lo contingant Habilitics
al thee cate of the Special Porpose Consolidoted Finaseial Inlormation and ceported smounts of resesoes and
exponses during the pedd. The application of sccounting policles that regquire oritical accounting estimatos
invelving comples and sulifective judgements amd the use of pssumplions [0 these Speclal Poepese Consolidated
Fitineial Tnformation. Accounting estimates could change from periad to poricd. Actial results could dilfer fram
thase estimates. Approprinte changes v estimobes ave made a9 the Managemend beeamos awsre of chaiges i
cirqunstances sureinding the estimates. Changes in catimates e reflected b tie Speclal Porpase Consolidatosd
Finnncinl Information in the perons requived Lo complete the plan indicate that it is unlilely that sipnificant chnnges
b the plar will bee psacle or that the plon will be withd s, Mo

n the process of applying the group's aceounting policies, the following management etimates, jodpements and
assumptions, have g significant effect oo the amounts recognized and disclased in e Special Porpase Consolidated

Finanssal Informntiemn:

1. Geing Coneern Assumplions in the pregarmtion of the Special Purpose Consolidated Flnansial Information,

2. Fair Valise Measurement of Financial Instruments,

3. Rexognitben of Deferrec) Tax Assete for earried forwad tax Issaes
4. hopaiomend of Trude Becetvalifes and due feom costaemess

5 Prowisions, Clalms and Contingent Lishilities

i Fatomation of Defined Benefils Ohligation

7. Uschul life of Property, Plant and Eguigaent

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluaied on an ongoing basis. They are based on bistogical CRpEricae
onel other factors, including sxpectations of future events that may bave a fnancial fmpoct on the Campany and tal
arg helieved to be reasonalde onder the circumstances, Difference, iF ooy, hetween the actoal resnlts and estimnies is

recognised in e period inwhich the results are koown,
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MaMally Suvaj Enginecering Limited
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Aufd ZFur e period

Baesw Traralir (o Frogedy, Mant ond Eguipmis
Closling Accunnslaled Depredntion

o
ST

Mol Crryving Amaoont

i} Leasing Arrangemenis

Enwvestment propecties are lessal s lenans under canmlloble spersting las with eotaks yapable moin ity

i} Fair value
Pirtisailinrs

sl Mok, 2023

myils FE‘I.H-dr:rj'.,
By

{lisssinient Prujuerty®

U AR

Eatinantion of falr valus

* The fairf valwation & based on veporied value as on 2080009 inosctive macket for simibar propertio:, The main inpits used are quantum, ares, Tomisn, demand,

restrictive ergry and treml of fair market wenl in the anes of property [ncated.

The valuativs: & based an valuatian performed by an acervited Independent valuer, Al resulting fair vaboe sthnates Sor imoestiment properties are induded in level o
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Tirtiealirs st March, | 2400 Febresry.,
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I inclinlis Be. o Lakhs doaih Frbaary, som5%: B sl Laikhs) otfor i han MBEPF Trast D
Mate 232 (Hber Carrend Lishilitkes
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Eong udieg
Mahvanin roveived BRHTL EEBSGR:
Chburrs L] 150
Diies pray sbshs b growvernimut antlcor bes 47 B3
Tokal idber cireent Ralalfing waf i

Mle ng | Decnimimiasitning Lishiliy
The Company os moade prndsiom ae o yeor end for sl monesial beses, i any, on Bog feem oontrosts.,




Metally Sayaji Enginecring Linnited
Mustes Tormbing part of the Ceneadblated Finoscial Siaiemeniz

Mude 25: Hevenase R Opeeeathons

AN meanumds o i M fokbs, e nibser i st )

-_F'nr the periad froms | For the peerinad from st
PFarticulars ath February, soeg to | April, 2020 to wgih
sl Mareh, 20z] liehrunry, zazg
S ol Prolucks 2440 538
Sale ol Servaces ) fiehi
Cilhor Uperaling Heswrmin a4 10H
Tl Revenue fnsm Dgrerations BT i@y |

ot pde Ol Tisconare

Partlcyilaes

Vo tha oriod Drom
w51l February, somy to

Kenial Inedmi

For the perbod T il

ibine Mawch, =oegy Feloriary, #omy

April, zoos be zqtl

Iieceal Tveome T Finascinl Asseta al amorised Coss o ¥
Linhiligy s kiger required written Lk - -
Proncision wo keaiger fosuived weiiben hack (EE1] 1705
Inferest un Befund u =
Wet Foreign Exchange Gaim fi 14
1Mesiisian Tue Warran by writbon back 1w -
[ty Drawhack Licome . i
Ml Ly om L value of disposal group i L
Mlicellameuss lnmene . g
Tatal (ither Ineome 44 | ]

Warte 2 Cosl of Materkals Cossainacd

Far tlie perked fiowim

For the period from st

Farticulars 25l Fehraiary, 20 b | April, soes 1o wgib
Fsd Mprch, doag Febiruinry, a0y
M Matisials at ther lugimming of the period L0 2,075
Akl Porchasms L7 Gl
Lesz: Ronw Miterial 8 U end of the periml 1454 1,073
Tl Cost of Materisls Consmnsed mmEy R

Nale atiz Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Wiork-in- ux
| Fiie The period Trom

Forthe peebod Do sl
Parlicialars gath Febronry, goayto | Apell, siees e agth
qust Mareh, miog Febriary, poog
Dpening alance
L‘I-'p‘ml:hh TR a5k 2.
Finichivd G = £
Total opening halaieo 2, K 81
Chosfiagg Badnacy
waork-in progress 3 ik 2,806
Finbslisd Goode A *
Totil closing lulane: 2 R |
Total Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Wark-in-Progress lﬂ'ﬂl iz}
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Mades Toviabog part ol the Comsaolidated Finmmels] SEatsmenis

Mobe di Eovpployes Benelits Expeise

EAN ramraly rew o Wy ok, raless odhiorim=e sheadal]

Fur thie perisl fram | Foie the jieciof Groom it
Partleulars agthy Felsmeary, zozg o Al daras e 2g 1y
gt Muoreh, snoeg Fehruary, woeg
Baluries, Weges mnl Bopos 'Er_w o000
Cenbribubion to Provideo wesd Dehee Finds 5l e
Stafl Wellans Expimair 14 157
|'i'1l1-l|F FEmplayves I:Iﬂlr:l'h:l: Eapense anT 2,501

Nadle s Finamere Cosks

Faiie Ve posiad fromm

T the period liom sl

Farticulars 2510 Felmmary, 20z to | April, 2022 10 241k
_l:m'-l_h'lnmh, oKz |"l!||l"|.ln.11.'..-.ll:|||-'

Fimance Charge

liketinesl Fxpuinsas

L Bank orransligs 3 R
On Lavssds Dindvilibes | #
Ciher Bornewing Cos 12 *':l
Tival Finamnae Ciss 1 f o)
M s Despaeciatiom and Amortisation Expensc

Far the perimd from | Far e peeiod freons esl

Paitlcubars eElh Felbrwnry, 2ozt to | April, So2s te 2gqth
Hrst Mards, ®mag February, =ozg
Depredatsm an Proparty, Plant s Eqgquipaneni Lty il
Adnnitidnisen of Intangible Assm 5 :
I'.I‘nlﬂl Dhegrrecintin and Amortisaiiem Exjurisn 14 Big

Male 33t Other Lvpenses

Far the perind frame | For the peelad fron ist

Porticulars agth Februnry, 2oz br|  Apeil, 2023 1o @2qth
et Mareh, snog Felrrmary, wminey

Cunsuupiien af Stons aiel Sjers My -
Falsrisntion smd Daher Charges Ly 1,077
Porwer by a6
Hepidrs and Maimlbemosee:
To Flant and BEnchinery [ A
T Parilifangs - 4
Ta tihers g fig
Professiomal Pees ot 1
Rﬁnlnlﬂ.aqll,mll_u 4 5
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Hakew: amel Tinzes ] e
Tnsnranos 2 4l
Freight P 234
Traved npad Cosvevanen N7 =4k
Comymssion Lapenses = i
ooty Sorviom " (-1}
Provising for Soalalis il anl sl a oy
Frervisin for Warranty
Lansze auti sl 1 Trwlerinking 41 .
Adhnee ancd ofher recevaldes wlidon off ¥ |
Payrresd Lo audiicrs [refor nofe 22 da) LK 17
CIRP Bxpenses [reles sobe g2 (hil 4 74
Midellareous Bxprnses 255
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Wadle 3ednln Poymesil i onglitor

CAN wanmry wee ive K Rk, il e e shmteed)

: Far the perind froms | For the peciod fesm @l
FMarticulars apth Felruary, sosg o [ April, zozo 10 24th
z1sd Mlnech, 2om Febrwney,
Arilitors Bamumeeenl b - ! e
A Audiloes i i
Foer LinsHael B -
ulal Anditars Bemiiicraion 1 .:
MMl g ) CIHEP Expenses incloles
Fur the periosd fram | For the pevied from st

Particulars

aglh Felwuary, soey ie
A1 March, kg

Apral, g to pgth
Fishruary, wieeg

Resalutsm Motessiannl Fis
l!l-lﬂl-'ﬂlh- Blnnnpeirent Feis
Faopal aved Proffessiannl Fees
[BEI8] Faazs

I'T S rviscems aned ofkers

1

7
i
o

JT-ula'I CIRP Expensis

i
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Bl fsrmating et off e ConsnBalnied Tinsneiol Susic seenis
PAN avsaniinin in M fukhe, v vt v e ool

Bl p Tinvesinic T Exgrenee
Thii murbe prrowwides an nnalyels of the Gings's inemme s espesce, dausameanis thal wm recognied divently in wapuiby il te oy e i allnse] by
s and so-dedueilik: geoe 18 sl oogialis signl ot cslmssen mmse i e b B Grimgs's ny poiition s

st Blareh, poes | 2pk Fohrunry, posg

Cidl Inoaiiee Tax Expenas
Chirrrnd b Faanler greor - [k
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{hefiererd Ty i =
Pee reuer lInciees] s delemimil Biv anseip Z.45
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imoeme Tas Fgieni s
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1l Krwumeilinkiom 0F tax expemsr ami the seom sling ol andliplied by apglicahile e b

F08 Marrh, =0y s Febimamiy, 2ody
Predit i Loss] befare Income Tas Expassa s Hag

ANher Comprelenee o £ {31
= o ot
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Achil : Il rnad Tex Aol croabal foe U reybesorbed bisdi e ks
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|3 Brasmnice= o {femis o L jrurpanss on el bk " F

Tiaalinwaiiie Nor denlifnl Sobie and dontilill sdvanee =
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MeNally Snyadi Eaplaneering Limiled

Mabes forming part ol Uie Consolalaied Finpncks] SEglenients

Maole a5 Fobr Valoe Measuromemts Fliinacial lestromonis by enbegory

AN armounte in M5 kabds, andiey stleninse Ay

et March, pay b e biriany, 2oz

FVPL O """'"g::“” PV Vo "‘":’__r:':“"'
Finaipehil Asvrlz
Einvisinenits 5 = =
Ve Hov vl - hA - = CRLH
Codty il Carhy Papniwsilenis - 1Rk e = 2,574
Bardk Talainces other than €8sh aad Caly BEquivmlents 3 B = aha
Chber Famncial Assets - M - 306
Tainl Fimmieial Aseeds = - Horan x . &5
Fiaramadnd Finfeifirics
lorrowings - 10,00 = FRA
Lartuse Oihiligangioon - ui 2y
Trailir Payaliis = i - LAnd
Cher Finasckil Lishilitios . - 51 . P
Tulil Flaamal Linkililies . E 12,8 H ¥ eI

(8] Falr Valire Hicrarchy

Thas sectiom explobes the judgements and estimated male in determiming the fale vulnes of the Anancial nstrsacits Uil gee () recugnisel
andd measared ol fair value (0] neasaied of ametised cost and fore which frir value are discdlossd in the Fisncial Slatements. Tao peondeli an
Inalication shaut the rellalslity of the inputs used in dietermining ir volue, e (Irnup Bks elassifed fis fnancial lestranesais no thee
tevels preseribied uedlber B accoenting stondasd, An esplanagion of sach level ol wadsmpsgh the able

The Growps waes the fallowing Iieraredsy far determining and diselosing the fair value of finaoeial memments L valualicm techmigue

Leaed 0: Queted furadjusted) prices in active market for #lentical assets ur labilities.

Lavel i Other technigues for which all npots which hive o sigaificonst effect on the seecrded fale vade are obssrvable, elthor diveetly or
imelirectly:

Lasiard 3: Techniques which use bupiste that hive a sigmifiesnt effect o the raoorded fiir value that ase wol lsased on abservable markel @i,

() Valuation technique used to determine fair valoe
Speciile valuntivn technigues vsed b valie financial insoaness neade:

= the wse af guntad morket prives or dealer quules fie smilar ingruments

= thne fiv value of Frwal forelgn exchimgre comtracts is debermine) using farwand exchonge mbe ai ibo halanee dveot dsa
= thier fakr wahse of foreign curreney option tontracts is determined using the Mack Schofes waluntion el

(i) Fale valae of U financinl nsset and Jinbilities measored si simoctises) cost

The nasnaganuent considers that tlee earrving amounts of financid assets and lahiities recogrized in the Financinl Statements are mesked at
amoried cost upproaddmeti eir foir value ns oe et Marely, soey and sath Febranry, moas,




MoNally Enyaji Englneering Limied
Mates lorming part of the Consalidated Financinl Statemenls

AN omemands (n K dokls, uablise odberieise stage?
M Fo: Finanecial Risk Mansgpemont
The Group’s mtivities wne exposod b mocket sk, Beublioy vk and ivedit rigk, In order b enfnlisisa any milverse effocts on (e (sl
perurmance: of Lhe Group, devivative faelal instiments, sucl as Goeigs exclisngs word ostracts anid interesl e RIATIE are umsd
o hedge varinhle Inferest el exporunes. Derntives s wied eschiaively for Bedging popases snd not a5 trading o speoalntive
L,
The Group's risk managnsinl i arried ool by @ eonteal ooy dopariment (Ovep Treasary) usder policies approved 1o the
managemett. Group Tresuey idestifies. ovalintes aod hedges ool vigke in close conpertion with 1 groggp's aperaking, unlts The
mnasgement proavides wien rﬂ'illtiph fror orvernll risk manapement, 25 well os palleles covering suecific arcas, siel as Tredgn eaclznpe
riak, Intercsl rabe risk, use of dorlvabive Gnancal instromets o don-desivative il nstnsmesis, sid investsent of teeasd
ligquislity.

(A} Crandit Rink

Credit rsk arisest from Ul Cash Equivalests; Other Bopk Bolosces, Investments, Teade isalvables amd other financisl oy sl
ot st iEed cost snd dl’.‘|lﬂ:i|.‘i veat® aithire sl insetiins, s weell s el AT uum"dhq resephail]

(i) Credit Risk Manapeiment
T Grosip sssigns fhe following credin ratings to ench closs of financinl assete lased on assamptions, inpute sl Gcors specfic te
elass of fimancial geseds

i1z High-quality ssavis, negligible eredit etk ; V02: Quality assets, Jow enedit s ; VL3 Stancand assets, moderate ermlit rk - Vi
Sulwtanifan] assets, relatively high eradi risk ; VLg: Liw quality sssots, very high evedit rick : VEG: Doubitfl assets, credit impaleed.

The Giroup coricers the probahility of defaolt upan mitial recognition of aset aod shether there hus been o sigaifient incrense in eredi
riak an an ongeéng basls througlhont each reporting petiod, To assess whether there is @ significant inerease i medit dsk the company
varmpires thie Fisk of a defult scensding wn Uhe aseet as al the reponting daie with the sk of defaalt s o the daie of il vepagnitlem, 18
considers availablo reasanabile and supportive forwand information, Especinlly the fallowing indiestons are incorparated:

- inbernal creds patiiag

= inclrmmal eredit rating

= sctial ar expected sipgaifiond charges i s operaging resulis of de payr

- signifient inevease in credit risk an other fincial instrumends of the same payor

- algnifbeant chirges in the value of the collatoim] sapporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party gaarees o credit
enhinsements

- algmilicanl changes in the expected perfrmusoe and behavier of the payer, Induding changes o the opensting rsulis of the pavrar.

Marroroanamin information (sach as regilabory chimges, morkes inbesest niko ar grswith rates) is incorporaged w8 parl of Ehe indensal
rating model.

Financlal nssets are writben off wlen there b oo eesscoable expectations of reonery, such as debior failing to engnge in & ropeyment plon
with thee Growg ur where payur fhomoser dows not have finonclal capability to repay its debis, Whore Joons or receivablies i e
writaeny off, the Groap continues b engage It enforeement activities b stiempt (o reeover the recsivables dac.

(i} Pravision for Expected Credil Losses

The Group provides for expecied crodit s of tnude reeelvalibs and other financial assmis based an historical trend, indastry praciies
ainied s Ingsinnss envivemment i which the sstity operaies. Lo rates oo based on ocheal credit buss experience aml pus e,
Wheemever required, past troonl is adjusted to veflecs the offects of the carrent enditkons apl Forerasts of fotare cosditiens that did mot
affect the period o which the historial dota i based, and to omove to effects of the conditions In the higtorisal perind 1t are pal

redevant b the febane contractual cash flovs
fiil) Reconeilintion af loss illowance pravision- Trade Beceivaliles

Particulnrs Ax at pist Mareh, 2owg | Asal ggth Fehrmanry, 2oy
Loz allewamoe ut opening balance shisg date A0 4,30
Clengies b loes allowanoe L4 f1z7l
Lass allowsnes a L'lll!i!E_h.‘lh.ﬂL'b sho date 4,109 4,004

tho Insalvency ond

The Griwp has eeeetvables. from aertain customers ngninst whom insolvency procoedings hive ben initiated u
Tl-:ml:-::p._rt{i-'_l;ﬁdu;;u_ﬂ!&._ In wiew of the same, the Grounp hes made mbeguate provisios e s futuees faanelol |

Fo,
i By S T



Merally Savaii Engineoring Limited
Males Tirrming porl of the Consolidated Finanecial Statemenis
(AN mmoumets o Ks dakis, unbsy odfierarae sfofed)]

Mate gie Finonelol Bish Monagement {Cipmid, )

(1} Liguidity Kish

Frondent Timidity rsk monsggment implies maintsining sufcient cash and marketable securities snd the ovaflabélite of fanding throgh
s pideaguate asouml of enmmitted eredit feflitios to meet obligations when due sod 10 dose ot markel positbeis, Du 1o dyise
matare: af the wederlying Businesis, group treasuey nointaivs Desilslity in fomfing by maintnising ovallabilizy gioder comimitied eredli
linea,

Management monibars plllieg e of the Group's lquidicy possthon (rvnprising the ondrwn bosrowing faciligivs elew) and cash
and eash aquivalents an the basis of mepected ensh ows, In addition, the Group's Bgeldine managemest policy involves prajicting cish
fluves in oajor surmenchis pil considering the ol of Uil assots neocssany 1o meel these, monitocsg Tabanee seet Teuidity ratses
apnival Isfermal and external requalatany wgji i ot aml miimlainimg debe fnomchng pLann.

(il Muoturities of fnosedal lnhifities

Tha: tubsby oo analyses the Groug's finmmelal Babilithe into relevant matwrity graupings bassd in their contractunl maturitios for

(i} uld non-derivative fimancial Babilties, and ;
(i et e proes sedtlisl derivative G etraments for which g oootrecis ] saliniees o esengial e on ondestanding of e

Lirvming ol Ehe s Denes,

Tl amounts discdosed in the fable v the comtmetanl endiscounted cash Gows, balsnoes doe within 1 months equil el carving
balanees as the opact of discoumting is nes significant

Camirnetinl
malurilivs of Corryving Conbre gl Lesa thimi a More than g
Annasclul labilities Vatue oy Flowi e 1-3pears | 3-gyears | TN |
a1 Mlareh, faney
Barrowings (LTHT 10, sl - im0 oanis e
Lense Lishilibes 0 R0 4% 1 15 =D
Tratle Payables 1,602 14z 50 - -
her Fennnecial ; .
Liahilitics 37 o o ) "
Interes] payvable om ;
above horrawilgs 7 by B 1 e 1,246 gy
Trotnl Lialsillgbes L, UL 10,716 EN T 200 4501 6471
Coniradciznl
matorities of Carrying Conilractosl Tawisi than i Bl ore than 5
fnameial liabilities Yalue Cash Flows year tryears | - fyesra ——
wath Felruaiy, s
Barrowings o) BN e - - .
Lesse Liabiliis 20y q42 42 o1 100 11
Tragle Pavihles 1408 Laal 140k -
Oabetr Finnncial . J i
Lt Jee S S =
lmterest pasabhe on . B x i .
alrer borrowings X
Total Liahilitics 10,74 1, B His 143, 570 am 1634 1143




MeNally Sayaji Engineoring Limited
Naotes forming porl of the Finnseial Staleaments for the yvear ended 4is March, sosy

AN amonmrs o Nz bobks, iiolise oibeaoie steled)
Flate i Finomeial Bisk Management {Connd, )
L) Market Risk
(i) Foreign Currsiiey Riak
Tl Gircnip 5 expwail 10 foreign ssehange risk arsig G forign ooreosy Bnnsnions. iy wisls respect bo the S8 anel ELIMG.
Fareign exchinge risk aslses from neoognised dssets and Nabiliths demominated ina curreney that is oot the Groug's funetional ecrmemey
R, 242 Lakls, The sk & nseasured thioigli the sspocied fomesn curreniy ensly (howy |mived un the Groups recelpt ool repasamend
sihedule B veecggn ] asmcis anad linbilities denmminated in & chiretiy lbier than Bapees. The objestise of the hedgimg s 4o misdoske
tls saskitility of the INR cash ows of sich meoognised assets ondd Hahilitie,

L] Farefign curmemcy risk exposme
The Grroups expasure b Farggh cormeiey sk 2 the end of the reporfing pevkol expoossed io [N is as fidlws

As ol Fisl March, 2oz | AsaE z4th Feliruary, @od:g
L& LR s KR
Keccivabilios
Trode Beceivalles 2% - 24N -
ogz - T .
(b} Sensilivily:
Impact an prailt
Aaal gisi March, 2oy |As ot 2yt Feleraney, 202
LS RO UsD EURD
Tnegease by 5% 8 12 - 12
Dioeropsn by 5% # (1) - (21 =

& Halelimg a1l niher variables sonstant

CEEY Cash flose nnd Fair valdue interest rote visk

The Gromp's nein interest rate sk arses oo kaig-tern bormwings with vardabke ries, wiich erpises the Groap 1o ensh fow inlees
rate risk. During the pesiod oided 2ist March, 2oz the Geoup's borrosings ab varinbde rate were nssinly oot o BNE .

The Grrenip’s fived rate hirowings ane enrried ol amortised cost These are themedor hol subjot b mberst mbe vidk 33 defised in Tod AS
17, Alneen nedt b il corrving amoant naor the fubare cash Bows will Suctuite Bease af o vhangr in markel intenst raes

{3 Inveresl rale risk exposure
The EXpEITLIE of the [iﬂﬂlﬂ'a -I"-"IT"""'-1II|'E §1r inberesi raie {h.w erid ol “E!l-‘.“ﬁl”'“d are as fnllows:

Ax &l gisl March, 2oey [ As al 240 Felraary, sozg

Wirdalile rate bormesing 1AM 14547
T e barmowings -

Thae Cirougs it et dihioed m Dnderest robe swap foe cortain laai b momitar foreign curresey inlenesd e posine.

) Bty
Mrofit or boss 39 senskiive o higher/lower inberest expense fron hurronvings ax & rosul of clianges b [sieres) raios

As at 31 March, 2033 Ax at 2gth Felimury, 203y
Terens: n iatonosd ratos by 50 bosis painis (50 lpe) # {r) -

Dyvtvsss i interes mbes by 5o hasls polais EE"'_E‘I_I i |
# Holding all others sarahlos constan




Masbe p7e Cwpalial Rluingenent
Hik Manapgemien

Thne G siieE I annge il vapital efficieney 50 a8 to salegasid it alality tocantinue as going cancern and to optimise refums to the

ahurehaliders

Tlie Giroip's albes i for mpita mannpement = o mokimize gliaschaldesy’ wealth, =fmgninl huminess contimiity anml eappart the growik
o b Qrowp. The Group determboes e capatal mnnagement regquirement hased oo annnal apernting plans snd g term anid sther
slrabepe imvertmend plans. The fmding reguiremenas see ool throvgh squity |, lorowimps and aperating cosh Mo s regiied, Ts ander
i maintaiiv o adjust e eopiial strncune, the Grng may adjust $hse amount af divichrnis pood o shardulders, relurm o capital 1o
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MeNally Sayadl Englneering Linited
Muotes forming part of the Consolbdaied Finaocinl Satenents

Marle 431 Kelateid Party Treaissnetions

il Ulvimmate Hedcding Conpany
Mikal Fiscal Services Private Linvibsd (w.ef. 24th Felvimy, mos3)

i} Halalimg; Cisimigrany

Tegn Inddusiries Limiged CTTL) (w0, 240h Febirpary o)

Mooy ot Enginecring Cosnpany Lisdtod (MIERCLY (g bo s4th Febnmre, 2o0a)

Tegn Egmipments Trivate Limited (wel eqth Pehruary, sozg and amalgasmted witly the Canpany an 2oth March, woz3)
W) Wilkally Diwined Sulsidiary
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. Furadit Koy = Clebel Financial Offfoer
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Mr. Mehol Moliankm - Non- Esecatie Direcor {w.s . sath March, ooeg)
M. Maniof Kugnar Siinho - Exesative Dinsdor fwe . sath March, soz3)
M r. Arbwaid Maheglwenn - Hon Toeeutive Indepeartent Ddrecton{w,f, 20l March, 2a2y)
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MeNally Sayaji Engineering Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financinl Statements

Molc 44

The Special Purpose Consolidated Finaneial Statements have been prepared on fair values based
on the valuation report provided by an independent valuer solely for the limited purpose to assist
Tega Industries Limited (*Ultimate Holding Company™) to assist Tega Industries Limited {“the
Ultimate Holding Company ™) or its corsolidatson purpose and to comply with the requirsments under the
Act. As a result, these Special Purpose Consalidated Financial Statements may not be suitable for

any other purpose,

Based on the Valuation Report, the revaluation of assets and liabilities of the Holding Company
resulted ina net gain of Rs. 6,375 Lakhs which comprize of net gain of Rs, 6,122 Lakhs for Property,
Plant and Equipment, Rs. 259 Lakhs for intangible agssets and recognition of net deferved tax
liability of Rs. 1,301 Lalkhs,

Class of Assels Revalued

 Carrying Amount Amount (in Lakhs) |
Freehold Land - 2By
Building Hifg
Plant and Machinery = bl |
Furnitures and Fixtures a7
Refrigerators and Air Conditioners —
Office Equipments T
Maotor Yehiclos ]

“Right to Use Assets 2,426
Brand .

[ Total 11,647
Note 45

L. A) The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (*Hon'ble NCLT™) on 24
Felrruary 2023, under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRPY) of the Insolvency
and Bankruptey Code 2016 (“Code”) passed an order regarding the implementation of resolution
plan and scheme of arrangement and amalgamation for relief, coneessions and approvals,

B} Vide the said order, Hon'ble NCLT of Kolkata also approved the merger of TEPL with the
company and consequently the company has become a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Teza
Industries Limited (Ultimate Holding Companyl

C} The scheme of arrangement and amalgamation had been given effect in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 103 — *Business Combinations".

1. l‘ﬁrﬁﬁf‘tn the Resolution Plan and Scheme of arrangement and amalgamation
as approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Kolkata

=1 ..-l
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MeMNully Savaji Engineering Linited
Naotes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements

Beneh on February 24, 2023 under section 30 & 31 of the Insolvency and Bankruptoy
Code, 2016 ("code™} for velief, concessions and approvals sought thereon:

A) Constitution of the Boaed

K)

C)
i)

i}

iii)

The office of the directors who were suspended during CIRP stands vacated and new Board of
Directors as nominated by the SRA (Tega Industries Limited) is constituted to talee over the
contral of MSEL.

Delisting of shares

The Holding Company was listed in Metropolitan Stock Exchange in India. On application of
the company dated 270 Febroary,2o23 for de-listing the equity shares from the Exchange
records as per the Resolution Plan approved by the Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench, the Stock
Exchange vide cireular dated 11" April 2024 informed as under;

a.  The company will be suspended for trading from the Exchange w.e.f. 13" April,20273;

and
b.  The equity shares of the company will be delisted from the Exchange records w.e.f, 2om
April,zo23
Alteration of Capital

Ta alter the Authorised Share Capital of the Holding Company from Rs, 5,400 Lakhs (Rupees
Five Thousand Four Hundred Lakhs Only) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crores) equity
shares of Rs., 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and 40,00,000 (Forty Lakhs) Compulsorily
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten Only) to Rs, 7,000 Lakhs
(Rupees Seven Thousaned Lakhs Only) divided into §,60,00,000 (Six Crore Sixty Lakhs)
equity shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten Only) and 4000000 (Forty Lakhs) Compulsorily
Convertible Redeemable Preference Sharves of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten Only) each ranking
paripassu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Company.

The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the company comprising
12580273 (One Crore Twenty-Five Lakhs Eighty-Nine Thousand Two Hundred And
Seventy-Three Only) equity shares of Rs 10/- {Rupees Ten Only) each shall stand reduced and
cancelled from the transfer date Le. 2gth March, 2023, There shall be no requirement of
adding “and reduced” in the name of MSEL pursuant to the reduction.

In aevordance with such approved Resolution Plan, the aforessid reduction of the share capital
will be without any payment outgo either from McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited (MSEL)
or Tega Industries Limited (T1L) to the respective shareholders,

Following the reduction of the existing share capital as stated above, all rdghts, entitfements,
Liabilities (including arrears of dividend, lien and other rights) arising out of or relating to
dues from any Person who held such Equity Shares shall alao be reduced on the Transfer Date.

) Arrangement & Amalgamation

i

Simyi!:ij]}%}fmﬁr'il]ﬂ the capital reduction as contemplated in such Plan, MSEL shall issue
ru.,'i':;_,ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬂﬁ'nﬂﬂlhm' of fresh Equity Shares of Bs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only), constituting 100%
of ﬂli‘. piast i-&‘slllllll".'ald capital to Tega Equipments Private Limited. (TEPL) which is a Special
. I ®
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MeNully Sayaji Engincering Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements

i)

iii)

iv)

vi)

purpose vehicle and was incorporated by TIL, as a limited [Eabilily company under the
Companies Act, 2013 and whose shareholding is entirely held by TIL on the Transfer Date,

Ilmmediately upon the issnance of the equity shares to TEPL it shall stand amalgamated into
MSEL on the terms and conditions set out in the merger scheme forming part of such plan,

MSEL, the Transteree Company, shall without any requirement of any further act or deed issue
and allot to the existing equity shareholders of TEPL ie. Transferor Company, 1,00,000
niimber of equity shares of MSEL, in same proportion as such sharcholders hold shaves in

TEPL

Pursuant to issuance of the equity shares as aforesaid, the shares of TEPL held by their
sharcholders and the shares held by the TEPL in the MSEL shall be deemed to have been
automatically cancelled and be of no effect on and from the Transfer Date.

Consequent to and as part of amalgamation of TEPL with MSEL herein, the authorized share
capilal of TEPL shall stand transferred to and be amalgamated /combined with the authorized

share capital of the MSEL.

All assets and labilities and reserves of TEPL transferred to MSEL under the Scheme shall he
recorded in the books of account of MSEL at their existing carrving amounts and in the same
form as recorded in the books of TEPL, The identity of reserves of TEPL shall be preserved and
they would appear in the financial statements of MSEL in the same form in which they

appepred in the finaneal statements of the TEPL.

vii] The value of the identifiable asscts and liabilities of the TEPL as at the date of amalgamation

*amount is beluw__lw'sh:l_ipg off norms adopted by the Company.

and purchase consideration is as under:

(Al amounts are in Kz lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Rs. in Lakhs
Asscts

[nvestments 3, 5730
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11
Short-term Loans & Advances — i1 10,000
Total (A) ) B 16,550
Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings 10,0108
Short-term Borrowings 6,557
Other Corrent liabilities® 0
Reserves & Surplus {17)
Total (E) ] 16,540
Total identifiable net assets acquired (C) = [(A-B) 10
Equity Shares issued to the Shareholders of TEPL i.e. TIL (I

{ Face Yalue Bz, 10/- each) i




MeMally Savaji Engincering Linbled
Motes forming part of the Special Purpose Conzolidated Financial Stalcements

E) Others

i) The Secured and Unsecored Financial Creditors” outstanding dues as admitted in the
CIRF have been settled as per the approved terms of the Resolution Plan, a brief summary

as under:

a. the admitted liabilities towards Secured Finaneial Creditors have been settled
against payment of Rs.a6,400 lakhs,

b. In addition to above, the Secored Financial Creditors have also been paid out of
remaining Cash and Cash equivalent amounting to Rs. 121208 lakhs after
adjustment of shortfall CIRF Cost and shortfall of Interim Management Cost,

¢ Infull and Gnal setilement of the admitted liabilittes towards Unsecured Finaneial
Creditors payment of Rs, 0,30 lakhs has been made,

d. Full and final settlement of the admitted labilities lowards Unsecured Finaneial
Creditors (Related Party) has been made with payment of Bs. 0,30 lakhs.

{All amounts are in Ra lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Details  of | Details of Settlement
Finaneial Creditors Claim Claim byt
received | admitted | P00
Secured Financial Creditors being lenders
ﬁh‘: Eumpah;,] [ECE CLLELLITS LENE, ICIRECTS 3'21”?25 2"_-,|',-41ﬁ 14.5{{?
(B} Unsecured Financial Creditors 13,174 a3 o'
1 ] T
(] i}:;]gumred Related  Parties  Finaneial & fgy 4,212 o
() CIKP Cost 5 ~ TH
(E) Corporate Guarantee R.a50 5 2,008
Total (A+B+C+D+E} 17,613

*amount is below rounding off norms adopted by the Company,

i) The Operational Creditors’ (including Trade Creditors-Related Party, Trade Creditors-
Unrelated Party, Workmen & Employess and Statutory Liabilities) outstanding dues as
admitted in the CIRP have been settled in terms of the approved Resolution Plan as under:

{All amounts are in Rs lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Details  of | Details of
Operational Creditors Claim Claim E:‘:ﬂ::’:ﬂll
received admitted
{A) Operational Creditors who are Workmen & . ; y
Employecs _ . - =
(B Operational Creditors towards Govt, Taxes
| & Duties ) o 8,869 L,609 !
Cy  Operational Creditors towards Trade
Conditon e 135
Lg!:tljgpwmimnal Creditors towards Related e i o
Total (A8 =C +D) 10,608 7.510 | 134
“amount is belmy f inding off norms adopted by the Cnmlmn{.}f_l -
i A

(¥,
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MeMally Sayaji Engincering Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements

i)

iv)

vi)

NOTE 46

Counter Bank Guarantes aggregating to Rs. 1320 lakhs towards the BG-counter
guaraintes 1o the extent remained alive,

The encumbrances and/ or collateral over the azsets (ereated for the debt availed by
the Company or the erstwhile holding company] stand duly satisfied.

In respeet of de-recognition of financial & operational ereditors, differences
amounting to Hs. 6324 Lakhs for Financial Creditors amd Rs. 6008 Lakhs for
Operational Creditors  between  the canying amount of nancial Tabilites
extinguished and consideration paid, are recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss
Aceount as "Exceptional Items” in sccovdanee wath the provigion preseribed under Ind
AS 109 and Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2003, Further claim against corporale
gunrantes of Ra. 5050 Lakhs given by the Company in favor of the lenders of the
erstwhile holding company has alsa been seltled against the payment of Rs. 2998
Lakhs. The same has been recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss Account as
"Exceptional Iem",

All labilities in relation to any period prior to the completion date or arising on
account of the acquisition of control by the Resolution Applicant ever the Company
pursuant to the Rezolution Plan shall be written off in full and shall stand permanently
extinguished and the Company shall at no point of time be directly or indirectly held
respeisible or liable in relstion thereto,

The management of the Company is of the Opinicn that while the Resolution Plan
provides for extinguishment of all liabilities of the Company owed to Finaneial
Creditors and Operational Creditors as of the Insolvency Commencement Date ie.
11th February, 2021, the implementation of the Resolution Plan does not have any
such similar effect over claims or receivables owed 1o the Company. Accordingly, the
Company has concluded that any receivables due to the Company, evaluated based on
merits of underlying litigations, from various governmental agencies (presented under
Crther Financial Asscts — Corrent and Other Current Assets) continue to subsist.

The Resolution Applicant shall have the right to recover and take necessary action of
all actionable claims including loans and advances (provided or not provided or
written off),

The Company ean recast its hooks of accounts to give effect Lo this Resolution Plan i.e.,
te inter alia give effect to reduction of capital, set off the balance in the security
premium reserve, impairment of assets, write back fwrite off the debt/Linbilities etc.,
and make the consequential adjustment in retained earning withoul requiring to
comply with any procedure,

Pursuint to the Approved Resolution Plan, the erstwhile Company TEPL deposited an amount of
Rs. 17,752 Lakhs in a separate escrow account, for payment to the finaneial and operational
ereditors of the Company. Out of the amount deposited in such eserow account, an amount of Bs,
21 Lakhs iz still ynpaid to the operational ereditors and same halanece to the extent is lying in the
esCrow, aeeounts "ﬂ'lle management is of the opinion that such eserow account is being operated
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McNally Sayaji Engincering Limited
Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Consalidated Financial Statements

and controlled by the erstwhile Resolution Professional. Consequently, both the bank balanee in
escrow aeconnt and wnpaid Hability is not to reflect in these Finaneial Statements. This financial

statement is prepared aceordingly.

Mote 47
Exceptional Ttems

(All amounts are in Bs lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the period | For the period |
Parilesiiics ) from 25th From 18t April,
February, 2023 to | 2022 Lo 24th
318t March, 2023 | Fehruary, 2023
A) Due to effects of implementation of Resolution
Plan,thers has been a net gain of Ks. 10254 lakhs on
account of the following:
- Extingunishment of Financial Creditors - 0,324
- Extinguishment of Operational Creditors - he08
- Payment made on aecount of Corporate Guarantes - {2994)
1) Write Down of Inventory to Net Realisable Valoein | [
PrevVious year
Total (A+B) - 10,254

Nole 48

The Boand of Directors of TEPL has discussed and decided in their meeting held on 27 February,
2023 that, on reconstitution of the Board of Direetors of the Company pursuant to the Resolution
Plan, the investment in wholly owned subsidiary MBE Coal & Mineral Technology India Private
Limited ('"MBE CMTI') shall be disposed of. Pursuant to this the reconstituted board of the
Directors and the members of the company approved the said disposal at their respective meeting
held on 29th Mareh, 2023, the Company has disposed of its investment in MBE CMTI on the

same date.

Mote 49

The Central Goods & Services Tax Commissioner of Bolpur earried ant investigation against the
company for availing irregular Input tax credit and issued summons dated 8th February, 2020
under section 70 of the Central Goods & Services Tax Act, 2017 directing the company to pay Bs
#67 Lakhs. Further, the department blocked input credit of Rs 10 Lakhs and company has paid
Bs 46 Lakhs through DRC-03 by debiting the balance available in the clectronic eredit ledger.
Thereafler, the department instrocted the company to pay the balance amount, However, in view
of the CIRP and approved Resolution Plan the demand was vacated and input eredit Blocked
earlier of Rs. 10 Lakhs was subsequently unblocked by the department and refund/input of Rs.

46 lakhs is yet to be received.

Mote o

These Special Purpase Consolidated Financial Statement have been prepared for the apecific
purpose of @gﬁiﬁﬁmem, for an interim perod from 25th February, 2023 to 315t March, 2023 i.e.
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MeNally Sayaji Engincering Limited
Motes forming purel of the Special Purpose Consalidated Finanecisl Statements

& weeks approximately and therefore the figures of current period are not comparable with those
al previous period from 18l April, 2o22 to 241h Febroary, 2oz,

Signature to the Notes 1 to 50

As e Our R-E|HH‘¢ ol even dale

For W, Singhi & Associates Por MeMally Sayvaji Engineering Limited
Chartered Accountamnty

Firm Registration No: 311017E
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Chiof Finaneial Officer Company Secrctury
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